
 
 

Agenda 
 

Virginia Port Authority (VPA) Board of Commissioners 
Regular Meeting – Session – 425 

 
Tuesday, April 29, 2025 – 9:00 AM  

 
Meeting Location: 

Virginia Inland Port – 2nd Floor Board Room 
7685 Winchester Road, Front Royal. VA 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Safety Briefing – Joseph P. Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer, Virginia International Terminals, LLC 

(VIT) 
 
3. Approval of Minutes 

 
A. Approval of the minutes of the VPA Board of Commissioners Public Session Meeting held January 

28, 2025 
 
4. Introductions and Opportunity for Public Comment 

 
5. Special Presentation from the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission – Dennis Morris, 

NSVRC 
 
6. Reports of Committees 

 
A. Executive Committee – Aubrey L. Layne, Chair 

 
1. Report of Executive Committee 

 
 

B. Finance and Audit Committee – James C. Burnett, Committee Chair 
 

1. Report of Finance and Audit Committee – Committee Chair Burnett 
 

2. Quarterly Financial Results – Rodney Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 
 

3. Consideration of Resolution 25-06 – Approval of the Consideration and Approval of the 
Authorization for The Virginia Port Authority to Enter Into an Amendment to the VPA-VIG 
Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement – Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial 
Officer 

 
4. Consideration of Resolution 25-07 – Approval of Defeasance of All Existing Debt - Rodney W. 

Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 
 

5. Consideration of Resolution 25-08 – Approval of Establishing a New Master Resolution for 
Borrowing - Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 

 
6. Consideration of Resolution 25-09 – Approval of Establishing a VPA Line of Credit - Rodney W. 

Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 
 

7. Consideration of Resolution 25-10 – Approval of Issuance of New Bonds - Rodney W. Oliver, 



Chief Financial Officer 
 

8. Consideration of Resolution 25-11 – Approval of Authorizing Aid to Local Ports Funding - Barbara 
Nelson, VP Transportation & Government Affairs 

 
9. Consideration of Resolution 25-12- Approval of Authorization for Waterway Maintenance Grant 

Funding -  Barbara Nelson, VP Transportation & Government Affairs 
 

10. Consideration of Resolution 25-13 – Approval of Authorization for the Virginia Port Authority to 
Enter Into a Contract Amendment for the Acquisition of Engineering Services for EPA Grant 
Funded Project - Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 

 
11. Consideration of Resolution 25-14 – Approval of Authorization for the VPA to Enter Into Contract 

Documents for the Acquisition of Bombcarts - Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 
 

12. Consideration of Resolution 25-15 – Approval of Authorization for the Virginia Port Authority to 
Enter Into Contract Documents for the Acquisition of Crane Demolition Services - Rodney W. 
Oliver, Chief Financial Officer 

 
13. Consideration of Resolution 25-16 – Approval of Authorization for the Middle Peninsula 

Chesapeake Bay Public Access Authority Municipal Dredging Operating Program and Municipal 
Dredging Operating Agreement 

 
 

C. Operations and Infrastructure Committee – John W. Kirk, III, Committee Chair 
 

1. Report of Operations and Infrastructure Committee – Committee Chair Kirk 
 

2. Report on Safety and Operations – Joseph P. Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer, Virginia 
International Terminals, LLC (VIT) 

 
3. Infrastructure Projects Update – Joseph P. Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer, Virginia International 

Terminals, LLC (VIT) 
 

D. Growth Committee – John C. Asbury, Committee Chair 
 

1. Report of Growth Committee – Committee Chair Asbury 
 

2. Report on Sales and Volume – Thomas C. Capozzi, Chief Sales Officer, Virginia International 
Terminals, LLC (VIT) 

 
3. USEC Ports Market Comparison - Thomas C. Capozzi, Chief Sales Officer, Virginia International 

Terminals, LLC (VIT) 
 

7. Report of CEO/Executive Director – Stephen A. Edwards 
 

8. Virginia Inland Port Project Update/Tour - Emily Dodson, Manager Virginia Inland Port 
 

9. Other Business 
 

10. Adjourn 
 
 
 
The next meeting of the VPA Board of Commissioners will be held on July 29, 2025. 
 



1

Virginia Port Authority
Board of Commissioners

Regular Meeting
Session 425

April 29, 2025



Approval of Minutes - January 28, 2025 (Public Meeting)

Committee/Regular Reports

CEO / Executive Director Report

Introductions and Opportunity for Public Comment

Other Business and Adjournment

Agenda

2Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Special Presentation by 
Northern Shenandoah Valley 
Regional Commission
Dennis Morris, NSVRC

3Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Executive Committee Report
Chair Layne

4Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Finance and Audit Committee 
Report
Committee Chair Burnett

5Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Quarterly Financial Results
Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

6Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



7

Fiscal Year 2025 YTD Highlights

July - March Actual Budget
Fav. (Unfav.)
% Variance

Volume 1,410,172 1,432,934 (1.6)%

Operating Revenues $637.5m $583.8m 9.2%

Operating Expenses $556.1m $541.3m (2.7)%

Operating Income $81.4m $  42.5m 91.5%

EBITDA $231.7m $194.7m 19.0%

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



8

Cash Flow – USD millions 

FY24 YTD FY25 YTD
Net cash provided by operating activities $      200.0 $ 236.9
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing 
activities 0.5 (4.7)
Payments made on VIG lease (81.1) (83.8)
Payments made on long-term debt and other leases (72.3) (75.8)
Acquisition of capital assets (313.1) (260.2)
Other cash provided by financing activities 144.9 120.3
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 21.1 (46.6)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $    (100.0) $ (113.9)

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Resolution 25-06
Consideration and Approval of the Authorization 
For The Virginia Port Authority to Enter Into an 
Amendment to the VPA-VIG Amended and 
Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement
Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

9Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Resolution 25-07
Consideration and Approval of Defeasance of all
Existing Debt
Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

10Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Resolution 25-08
Consideration and Approval of Establishing a New 
Master Resolution for Borrowing
Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

11Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Resolution 25-09
Consideration and Approval of Establishing a
VPA Line of Credit

Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

12Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Resolution 25-10
Consideration and Approval of Authorizing the 
Issuance of Port Facilities Revenue Bonds

Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 13



Resolution 25-11
Consideration and Approval of Authorizing Aid to
Local Ports Funding 

Barbara Nelson, VP Transportation & Government Affairs

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 14



Resolution 25-12
Consideration and Approval of Authorization for
Waterway Maintenance Grant Funding 

Barbara Nelson, VP Transportation & Government Affairs

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 15



Resolution 25-13
Consideration and Approval of Authorization for the
Virginia Port Authority to Enter Into a Contract 
Amendment for the Acquisition of Engineering 
Services for EPA Grant Funded Project

Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 16



Resolution 25-14
Consideration and Approval of Authorization for the 
Virginia Port Authority to Enter Into Contract 
Documents for the Acquisition of Bombcarts

Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 17



Resolution 25-15
Consideration and Approval of Authorization for the
Virginia Port Authority to Enter Into Contract 
Documents for the Acquisition of Crane Demolition
Services

Rodney W. Oliver, Chief Financial Officer

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 18



Resolution 25-16
Consideration and Approval of Authorization for 
The Middle Peninsula Chesapeake Bay Public
Access Authority Municipal Dredging Operating 
Program and Municipal Dredging Operating
Agreement

Barbara Nelson, VP Transportation & Government Affairs

Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 19



Operations and Infrastructure
Committee Report
Committee Chair Kirk

19Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Safety Update
Joseph P. Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer, VIT

20Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



OSHA Safety Metrics – FY25 Mar

• 6.6% decrease from FY24

• 30.1% decrease from FY23

• FY25 year-end goal is 1.36

As of Mar 31st the POV FY25 
Lost Work Day (LWD) rate of 1.28 is:

22Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Operations Update
Joseph P. Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer, VIT

22Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Operations KPI – FY25 Mar

23Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Infrastructure and Projects Update
Joseph P. Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer, VIT

24Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



PMT Offshore Wind Staging Port

100%

Land design complete Mar 22
Dredging design complete Apr 23

Design

100%

In Progress

Construction Overall

In Progress

99.5%

Design

North NIT Optimization

56.2%

Construction Overall

55.3 %

On-Time On-Time

100%

Complete

Design

Infrastructure Projects Dashboard

25Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Growth Committee Report
Committee Chair Asbury

27Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Sales and Volume Report
Thomas C. Capozzi, Chief Sales Officer, VIT

28Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Beneficial Cargo Owners

Volumes: Q3 FY25 

FY25 Q3 FY24 Q3 Change % Change
Total TEUs 813,955 850,294 (36,339) (4.3%)

Export Loaded TEUs 269,058 295,515 (26,457) (9.0%)
Import Loaded TEUs 372,774 395,113 (22,338) (5.7%)
Empty TEUs 172,123 159,667 12,456 7.8%

Total Barge Containers 19,668 16,790 2,878 17.1%
RMT Containers 7,555 8,268 (713) (8.6%)

Total Truck Containers 266,843 249,102 17,741 7.1%
Non-Containerized Tonnage 87,344 47,837 39,507 82.6%
Vessel Calls 428 417 11 2.6%

29Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Beneficial Cargo Owners

USEC Ports Market Comparison 

FY 2025 FY 2024 Change % Change

New York / New Jersey 2,952,742 3,173,978 (221,236) (7.0%)

Savannah 2,379,964 2,247,345 132,619 5.9%

The Port of Virginia 1,557,723 1,574,651 (16,928) (1.1%)

Charleston 1,079,810 1,135,910 (56,100) (4.9%)

*Source: Reported Actuals – Loaded TEUs

*Fiscal period included: July 2024 through January 2025

30Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



CEO/Executive Director Report
Stephen A. Edwards, CEO/Executive Director

31Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Virginia Inland Port
Project Update/Tour
Emily Dodson, Manager, Virginia Inland Port

32Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Virg in ia  In land Por t  Update



34



35



VIP Infrastructure Project

3636Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Virginia
Distribution &
Manufacturing
Centers 

37Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Other Business
Chair Layne

37Confidential proprietary information and data pursuant to §2.2-3705.6(1) and §62.1-132.4 of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act 



Virginia Port Authority
Board of Commissioners

Regular Meeting
Session 425

April 29, 2025

Thank You



 

VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY                                                                               
RESOLUTION 25-06 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE VPA-VIG AMENDED AND RESTATED DEED OF FACILITIES 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority"), a body corporate and a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, has been established pursuant to Chapter I0, 
Title 62.1 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the "Act"); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is empowered to rent, lease, buy, own, 
acquire, construct, reconstruct, and dispose of harbors, seaports, port facilities and such 
property, whether real or personal, as it may find necessary or convenient and issue revenue 
bonds therefore without pledging the faith and credit of the Commonwealth; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, it is the duty of the Authority to foster and stimulate the 
commerce of the ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities by serving as the United States 
Eastern Seaboard gateway for the global import and export of freight throughout the world, to 
promote the shipment of freight through the maritime and inland ports, to seek to secure 
necessary improvements of navigable tidal waters within the Commonwealth, and in general to 
perform any act or function that may be useful in developing, improving, or increasing the 
commerce, both foreign and domestic, of all maritime and inland ports of the Commonwealth and 
related facilities; 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of this duty, the Authority leases the Virginia International 
Gateway facility (the “VIG Facility”) from Virginia International Gateway, Inc. (“VIG”) pursuant 
to the Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement dated as of September 21, 
2016 between the Authority and VIG, and associated agreements (the “Lease”), the forms of 
which were approved by the Authority pursuant to its Resolution 16-8; 

WHEREAS, the Authority seeks to execute and deliver a certain First Amendment to 
the Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement (the “First Amendment”) in the 
form and substance attached hereto in Appendix A; 

WHEREAS, under the First Amendment, among other things set forth therein: (A) the 
Authority will be granted greater operational control and flexibility with respect to the VIG 
Facility, (B) the purchase price with respect to the Authority’s purchase option at the expiration 
of the Lease will be confirmed as $950,000,000 and the structure of any such exercise will be 
confirmed as an asset sale, and (C) the Authority’s rental payment obligations under the Lease 
will be modified as described in Section 4(I) of the First Amendment (to include an upfront rental 
payment of $335,000,000 payable upon the effective date of the First Amendment); 

WHEREAS, the City of Portsmouth (the “City”) has been and remains a key stakeholder 
with respect to the VIG Facility and will be provided notice in the event the First Amendment is 
subsequently amended;  

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Port Authority (the “Board”) has 
previously adopted its Variable Rate Debt Management Guidelines, amended on July 30, 2024 
stating that the Authority’s lease arrangement with VIG is not classified as variable rate debt for 
purposes of such guidelines; and 



 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to enter into 
the First Amendment, and delegate to the CEO and Executive Director the authority to execute 
the First Amendment. 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board, as follows: 

Section 1 Approval of the Option Contract. The Authority’s execution and delivery of 
the First Amendment is hereby authorized, and the CEO and Executive Director is hereby 
authorized to execute and deliver the First Amendment on behalf of the Authority. The execution 
of the First Amendment by the CEO and Executive Director shall be conclusive evidence of the 
Board's and the Authority’s approval of the First Amendment. The Board hereby authorizes the 
Authority (and the CEO and Executive Director on behalf thereof) to execute and deliver all 
ancillary documents which he deems necessary to further the intent of this Resolution. 

Section 2 Ratification; Further Action. All actions previously taken by the 
Commissioners, officers, and staff of the Authority in furtherance of the First Amendment are 
hereby ratified and affirmed. The officers and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized 
to take such actions, and deliver such additional documents and certificates, as they may in 
their discretion deem necessary or proper in furtherance of the First Amendment and the 
transactions described therein if and when they are approved and executed. 

Section 3 Consultation with the City of Portsmouth. The Authority shall consult with 
the City prior to entering into any future amendment to the Lease (as the Lease is amended by 
the First Amendment) that would negatively impact the City’s annual property tax revenue prior 
to the expiration of the Lease (as the Lease is amended by the First Amendment). 

Section 4. Additional Rent not Variable Rate Debt.  Consistent with the treatment of rent 
currently paid to VIG, the incremental rent payable under the First Amendment is not classified 
as variable rate debt by the Authority, and the incurrence of such additional rent is not 
considered to be an unhedged variable rate obligation.  The Board affirms that the Authority’s 
financial operations, including the management of its short term investment portfolio, serves as 
risk mitigation versus the CPI escalation feature of incremental rent. 

Section 5 Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. The Secretary to the Board shall file this Resolution with the books and records of the 
Authority maintained according to Section 3.11 of the Authority's Bylaws. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April, 2025 

 

 
Aubrey L. Layne 
Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 

 

       By:  
     Name:  Lisa Nelson 

      Title:     Secretary to the Board



 

APPENDIX A 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT 
 

(SEE ATTACHED) 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 25-07 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DEFEASANCE OF ALL OUTSTANDING BONDS AND 
SUBORDINATE OBLIGATIONS ISSUED UNDER HERETOFORE ADOPTED RESOLUTION 
NO. 16-9 AND TERMINATING RESOLUTION 16-9 AND THE TRUST ESTATE CREATED 
THEREBY; AND DIRECTING THE TRANSFER AND DEPOSIT OF VARIOUS FUNDS MADE 
AVAILABLE ON ACCOUNT OF THE AFORESAID DEFEASANCE. 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority") has issued, and there are currently 
outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $235,195,000, multiple series of its Port Facilities 
Revenue Refunding Bonds (collectively, the "Outstanding Bonds") issued under its Resolution 
No. 16-9, as supplemented (the "2016 Resolution"); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has issued, and there are currently outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $55,109,968, its Master Equipment Leases (collectively, the "Outstanding 
Equipment Leases") under the 2016 Resolution, which are secured as Subordinate Obligations 
(as defined in the 2016 Resolution) under the 2016 Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is necessary and desirable to defease 
the Outstanding Bonds and to redeem and retire the Outstanding Equipment Leases so that upon 
the defeasance of the Outstanding Bonds and the redemption and termination of the Outstanding 
Equipment Leases, the 2016 Resolution may be rescinded and terminated pursuant to Section 
1201(a) thereof and the estate pledged to the trustee thereunder may cease, terminate and 
become void; and 

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the Board a proposed plan of defeasance (the 
"Plan of Defeasance") whereby the Authority will defease the Outstanding Bonds and redeem 
and retire the Outstanding Equipment Leases through the use of the Authority's available funds, 
which may be cash of the Authority or funds made available to the Authority under a taxable credit 
facility; and 

WHEREAS, there has also been presented to the Board the following: (i) the form of a 
proposed Escrow Deposit Agreement to be entered into with an escrow agent, pursuant to which 
a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds will be invested in Defeasance Obligations 
(as such term is defined in the 2016 Resolution) that mature in amounts and pay interest at rates 
sufficient to pay, when due, all of the outstanding principal, redemption premium, and interest on 
the Outstanding Bonds (the "Escrow Deposit Agreement"), and (ii) the instructions to the trustee 
under the 2016 Resolution to redeem and retire the Outstanding Equipment Leases (collectively, 
the "Defeasance Documents"); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly reviewed and considered the forms of the Defeasance 
Documents and has determined that each is in acceptable form; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to delegate to the Executive 
Director and the Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, the authority to the details of the 
Plan of Defeasance and the Defeasance Documents that cannot be determined except under 
actual market conditions as they exist at the time of delivery of the Defeasance Documents, but 
subject to the parameters established hereby. 



NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the "Board") of 
the Authority, as follows: 

Section 1. Authorization of Plan of Defeasance. (a) The Plan of Defeasance is hereby 
authorized and approved. All Outstanding Bonds and Outstanding Equipment Leases shall be 
defeased, retired, or terminated (as applicable) in accordance with the Defeasance Documents, 
the 2016 Resolution and the documents applicable thereto. 

(b) The Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is 
authorized and directed to transfer an amount not to exceed $300,000,000 from the funds of the 
Authority (which may be from funds made available to the Authority under a taxable credit facility) 
to the trustee of the 2016 Resolution to be used in accordance with the Defeasance Documents. 

(c) The Authority hereby makes or confirms as Verification Agent for purposes of 
providing an independent confirmation of the sufficiency and yield of the Defeasance Obligations 
credited to the escrow created under the Escrow Deposit Agreement, Robert Thomas CPA LLC. 

Section 2. Release and Transfer of Trustee-Held Funds. As provided in Section 
1201(a) of the 2016 Resolution upon the defeasance, retirement or termination (as applicable) of 
the Outstanding Bonds and the Outstanding Equipment Leases, the rights of the trustee under 
the 2016 Resolution shall cease.  The Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer, either of 
whom may act, is hereby authorized and directed to provide written instructions to the trustee 
directing the trustee to close all existing funds and accounts held under the 2016 Resolution and 
to transfer any amounts held by the trustee to other accounts or funds of the Authority. 

Section 3. Approval of Defeasance Documents. The Board approves the form of the 
Defeasance Documents. The Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer, either of whom 
may act, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Defeasance Documents, the Defeasance 
Documents to be in substantially the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions 
and omissions as may be approved by the executing officer, and his execution of the Defeasance 
Documents to be conclusive evidence of such approval. 

Section 4. Defeasance. The investment of available funds of the Authority in 
Government Obligations in accordance with the provisions of the Escrow Deposit Agreement to 
provide for the defeasance of the Outstanding Bonds issued under the 2016 Resolution is hereby 
authorized. Upon such investment and the confirmation thereof by the Escrow Agent, and upon 
the retirement and termination of the Outstanding Equipment Leases and the confirmation thereof 
by the trustee, the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is 
hereby authorized to take any and all action deemed necessary by him, on the advice of Bond 
Counsel, to terminate Resolution 16-9 and to void and terminate the trust estate created thereby. 

 

Section 5. Tax Covenant. The Authority covenants that it will comply with the 
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, so that interest on the Outstanding 
Bonds and the Outstanding Equipment Leases that was exempt when issued will remain exempt 
from existing federal income taxes to which it is subject on the date of the issuance or incurrence 
thereof. 

Section 6. Ratification; Further Action. The actions previously taken by the officers 
and staff of the Authority are hereby ratified and confirmed. The officers and staff of the Authority 



are hereby authorized to take such actions, and deliver such additional documents and 
certificates, as they may in their discretion deem necessary or proper in connection with the Plan 
of Defeasance. 

Section 7. Other Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings given to them in the 2016 Resolution. 

Section 8. Effective Date. This Series Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 

[END OF RESOLUTION] 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th Day of April, 2025. 

 

By:        
Name: Aubrey L. Layne 
Title: Chairman 
 

Attest: 
 
 
By:       
Name: Lisa Nelson 
Title: Secretary to the Board 



202268459.5 

 
VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 

Resolution No. 25-08 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION  
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF  

PORT FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS  
 
 
 
 

Adopted April 29, 2025 
 
 



 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 Page 
ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS ......................................................................................................... 4 

Section 101. Meaning of Words and Terms ......................................................................... 4 
Section 102. Miscellaneous Definition ................................................................................18 

ARTICLE II. AUTHORIZATION, FORM, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY AND  REGISTRATION OF 
BONDS .....................................................................................................................................18 

Section 201. Limitation on Issuance of Bonds ....................................................................18 
Section 202. Form of Bonds ...............................................................................................18 
Section 203. Details of Bonds .............................................................................................23 
Section 204. Authentication of Bonds .................................................................................25 
Section 205. Exchange of Bonds ........................................................................................25 
Section 206. Registration of Transfer of Bonds ...................................................................25 
Section 207. Ownership of Bonds .......................................................................................26 
Section 208. Authorization and Issuance of Bonds .............................................................26 
Section 209. Additional Bonds ............................................................................................27 
Section 210. Refunding Bonds ...........................................................................................31 
Section 211. Temporary Bonds ..........................................................................................33 
Section 212. Mutilated Bonds .............................................................................................34 

ARTICLE III. REDEMPTION OF BONDS ..................................................................................34 
Section 301. Redemption of Bonds by the Authority ...........................................................34 
Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed ..............................................................34 
Section 303. Redemption Notice ........................................................................................34 
Section 304. Effect of Calling for Redemption .....................................................................35 
Section 305. Redemption Portion of Bonds ........................................................................35 
Section 306. Cancellation ...................................................................................................36 
Section 307. Use of Government Obligations to Redeem Bonds ........................................36 

ARTICLE IV. CONSTRUCTION FUND .....................................................................................36 
Section 401. Construction Fund ..........................................................................................36 
Section 402. Payments from Construction Fund .................................................................36 
Section 403. Cost of Projects ..............................................................................................36 
Section 404. Requisitions on Construction Fund .................................................................37 
Section 405. Cost Control of Projects .................................................................................38 
Section 406. Disposition of Construction Fund Balance ......................................................38 

ARTICLE V. REVENUES AND FUNDS ....................................................................................39 
Section 501. Rates and Charges ........................................................................................39 
Section 502. Annual Budget ...............................................................................................40 
Section 503. Transfer of Revenues by Port Operators to Authority .....................................40 
Section 504. Operating Account; Transfers ........................................................................40 
Section 505. Current Expenses ..........................................................................................41 
Section 506. Debt Service Fund .........................................................................................41 
Section 507. Application of Money in Debt Service Account ...............................................43 
Section 508. Debt Service Reserve Account ......................................................................43 
Section 509. Revenue Stabilization Fund ...........................................................................45 
Section 510. Subordinate Obligations Fund and Authorization for 2025 Note .....................45 
Section 511. Senior Obligations Fund .................................................................................47 
Section 512. Residual Fund ................................................................................................48 



ii 
 

Section 513. Derivative Indebtedness .................................................................................48 
Section 514. Money Held in Trust .......................................................................................49 
Section 515. Cancellation of Bonds ....................................................................................49 

ARTICLE VI. DEPOSITARIES OF MONEY, SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS  AND INVESTMENT 
OF FUNDS ...............................................................................................................................49 

Section 601. Security for Deposits ......................................................................................49 
Section 602. Investment of Money ......................................................................................49 
Section 603. Valuation ........................................................................................................50 

ARTICLE VII. PARTICULAR COVENANTS ..............................................................................51 
Section 701. Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium and Pledge of Revenues ...........51 
Section 702. Covenant to Complete Projects ......................................................................51 
Section 703. Covenant Against Encumbrances ..................................................................52 
Section 704. Removal or Disposition of Property ................................................................52 
Section 705. Employment of Engineer ................................................................................53 
Section 706. Employment or Management Consultant .......................................................53 
Section 707. Insurance Provisions ......................................................................................53 
Section 708. Insurance Companies and Policies ................................................................54 
Section 709. Insurance Claims ...........................................................................................54 
Section 710. Covenant as to Damaged or Destroyed Property ...........................................54 
Section 711. Recording and Filing ......................................................................................54 
Section 712. Further Instruments and Actions ....................................................................55 
Section 713. Authority Audits ..............................................................................................55 
Section 714. No-Default Certificate .....................................................................................55 
Section 715. Covenant as to Revenues ..............................................................................55 
Section 716. Maintenance of Port Facilities ........................................................................55 
Section 717. Operation of Port Facilities .............................................................................56 
Section 718. Port Operators ...............................................................................................56 
Section 719. Additional Financial Covenants of the Authority .............................................58 
Section 720. Parity Indebtedness .......................................................................................58 
Section 721. Covenants with Credit Providers ....................................................................59 
Section 722. Covenant Limiting Incurrence of Additional Senior Obligations ......................59 

ARTICLE VIII. REMEDIES ........................................................................................................59 
Section 801. Events of Default ............................................................................................59 
Section 802. Enforcement of Remedies ..............................................................................60 
Section 803. Pro Rata Application of Funds ........................................................................61 
Section 804. Effect of Discontinuance of Proceedings ........................................................62 
Section 805. Control of Proceedings by Bondholders .........................................................62 
Section 806. Restrictions Upon Individual Bondholder Actions ...........................................63 
Section 807. No Remedy Exclusive ....................................................................................63 
Section 808. Delay Not a Waiver ........................................................................................63 
Section 809. Notice of Event of Default ..............................................................................63 

ARTICLE IX. CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE, THE BOND REGISTRAR AND DEPOSITARIES
 .................................................................................................................................................64 

Section 901. Acceptance of Duties .....................................................................................64 
Section 902. Indemnification of Trustee as Condition for Remedial Action..........................65 
Section 903. Limitations on Obligations and Responsibilities and of Trustee ......................65 
Section 904. Trustee Not Liable for Failure of Authority to Act ............................................65 
Section 905. Compensation and Indemnification of Trustee and Bond Registrar ................66 



iii 
 

Section 906. Semi-Annual Statements  from Trustee .........................................................66 
Section 907. Trustee May Rely on Certificates ...................................................................67 
Section 908. Notice of Default ............................................................................................67 
Section 909. Trustee Not Responsible for Recitals .............................................................67 
Section 910. Trustee Protected in Relying on Certain Documents ......................................67 
Section 911. Resignation and Removal of Trustee Subject to Appointment  Successor .....67 
Section 912. Resignation of Trustee ...................................................................................67 
Section 913. Removal of Trustee ........................................................................................67 
Section 914. Appointment of Successor Trustee ................................................................68 
Section 915. Vesting of Duties in Successor Trustee ..........................................................69 
Section 916. Depositaries ...................................................................................................69 
Section 917. Co-Trustee .....................................................................................................70 

ARTICLE X. EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY HOLDERS AND  PROOF OF OWNERSHIP 
OF BONDS ...............................................................................................................................70 

Section 1001. Execution of Instruments by Holders ..............................................................70 
ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE RESOLUTIONS; AMENDMENTS 
AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE PORT OPERATOR AGREEMENTS ........................................71 

Section 1101. Adoption of Supplemental Resolutions by Board ............................................71 
Section 1102. Modification of Resolution with Holder Consent .............................................72 
Section 1103. Supplemental Resolutions a Part of this Resolution .......................................73 
Section 1104. Supplements and Amendments to Port Operator Agreements .......................73 
Section 1105. Supplements and Amendments to Port Operator Agreements Without 

Bondholder Consent ......................................................................................73 
ARTICLE XII. DEFEASANCE ...................................................................................................73 

Section 1201. Cessation of Interest of Bondholders .............................................................73 
ARTICLE XIII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .....................................................................75 

Section 1301. Successorship of Bond Registrar and Paying Agents.....................................75 
Section 1302. Dealing in Bonds ............................................................................................75 
Section 1303. Manner of Giving Notice .................................................................................75 
Section 1304. Authority, Trustee and Holders Alone Have Rights Under Resolution ............76 
Section 1305. Effect of Partial Invalidity ................................................................................76 
Section 1306. Effect of Covenants ........................................................................................76 
Section 1307. Expenses Payable .........................................................................................76 
Section 1308. Resolution Effective .......................................................................................76 

 



 

 

VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 

Resolution 25-08 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF PORT FACILITIES 
REVENUE BONDS  

WHEREAS, by Sections 62.1-128 to 62.1-147.2, inclusive, of the Code of Virginia, as 
amended (herein sometimes called the "Act"), the Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority") has 
been duly created a body corporate of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the "Commonwealth") and 
the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Port Authority (the "Board"), has been designated the 
governing body of the Authority and has been empowered to exercise all the powers, rights and 
duties conferred by the Act and other provisions of law upon the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, by virtue of the Act, the Authority in order to carry out the purposes of the Act 
but without pledging the faith and credit of the Commonwealth and in addition to other powers 
granted to it by the Act, 

1. is vested with the powers of a body corporate, including the power to sue 
and to be sued and to make contracts; 

2. is authorized to acquire, construct, maintain, equip and operate marine 
terminals, port facilities, wharves, docks, ships, piers, quays, elevators, 
compressors, refrigeration storage plants, warehouses and other structures, 
necessary for the convenient use of the same in the aid of commerce; 

3. is authorized to undertake or make arrangements for the dredging of 
approaches to each facility and the construction of shipping and transportation 
facilities incident thereto; 

4. is authorized to issue revenue bonds and refunding bonds for the aforesaid 
purposes; 

5. is authorized to rent, lease, buy, own, acquire, construct, reconstruct, and 
dispose of Port Facilities, herein defined, and such property, real or personal, as 
the Authority finds necessary or convenient and to issue revenue bonds therefor 
without pledging the faith and credit of the Commonwealth; and to lease to another 
such part or all of its property, real or personal, for such period and upon such 
terms and conditions as the Authority may determine; 

6. is authorized to fix and revise charges for the use of the Port Facilities under 
its control and the different parts or sections thereof, and to contract with any 
person, partnership, association or corporation desiring the use of any part thereof, 
and to fix the terms, conditions, rents and rates of charges for such use; and 

7. shall have such other powers as may be granted by the General Assembly 
of the Commonwealth from time to time, whether or not under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the primary Port Facilities currently owned or leased by the Authority include 
the Norfolk International Terminals ("NIT"), marine terminals located on the south side of the 
harbor at the mouth of the Elizabeth River; the Newport News Marine Terminal ("NNMT"), a 



2 

marine terminal located on the north side of the Harbor at the mouth of the James River; the 
Portsmouth Marine Terminal ("PMT"), a marine terminal located on the Elizabeth River on the 
south side of the Harbor; the Virginia International Gateway Terminal ("VIGT") located on the 
Elizabeth River on the south side of the harbor and currently owned by Virginia International 
Gateway, Inc., a Virginia corporation; the Richmond Marine Terminal ("RMT") located on the 
James River in the City of Richmond, Virginia and currently owned by the City of Richmond, 
Virginia; and the Virginia Inland Port ("VIP"), an intermodal container transfer facility located in 
Warren County; and 

WHEREAS, Virginia International Terminals, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, the 
sole member of which is the Authority, currently operates the Port Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, VIT is currently obligated, and the Authority will covenant that it will cause 
VIT to continue to be obligated, subject to certain exceptions, to make certain payments to the 
Authority from income derived by VIT, and any of its Subsidiaries, herein defined, in existence 
from time to time from the operation by VIT or its Subsidiaries of the Port Facilities or any part 
thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority holds a leasehold interest in VIGT pursuant to an Amended and 
Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement, dated September 21, 2016 (the "2016 Lease 
Agreement"), as further amended and supplemented by the First Amendment to Amended and 
Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement to be executed on or about __________ _____, 
2025 (the "2025 Lease Amendment" and together with the 2016 Lease, and as the same is 
altered, amended, modified, or supplemented, from time to time, the "Senior Lease"), the rent 
payable on which will be secured by a lien on and be payable from specific revenues of the 
Authority, which rent shall have a claim prior to and superior to that of the bonds and other 
obligations authorized hereunder upon certain specified revenues of the Authority as and to the 
extent set forth herein, and such bonds and other obligations will be issued hereunder subject 
and subordinate to the Senior Lease; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has issued under Resolution No. 02-4, as supplemented and 
amended (the "CPF Resolution"), revenue bonds to finance the cost of certain Port Facilities, and 
there are now outstanding multiple series of its revenue bonds payable primarily from certain 
incremental excise taxes allocated by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth to the 
Commonwealth Port Fund within the Commonwealth's Transportation Trust Fund, and such 
revenue bonds have no lien on the revenues derived by the Authority from the operation of its 
Port Facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has issued, and there are currently outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $235,195,000, multiple series of its Port Facilities Revenue Refunding Bonds 
(collectively, the "Outstanding Bonds") issued under its Resolution No. 16-9, as supplemented 
(the "2016 Resolution"); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has issued, and there are currently outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $55,109,968, its Master Equipment Leases (collectively, the "Outstanding 
Equipment Leases" and together with the Outstanding Bonds, the "Obligations To Be Defeased") 
under the 2016 Resolution, which are secured as Subordinate Obligations (as defined in the 2016 
Resolution) under the 2016 Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority expects to use available funds, which may include the line of 
credit facility authorized under Section 510 below or cash of the Authority to defease the 



3 

Outstanding Bonds and to redeem and retire the Outstanding Equipment Leases so that upon the 
defeasance of the Outstanding Bonds and the redemption and termination of the Outstanding 
Equipment Leases, the 2016 Resolution will be rescinded and terminated pursuant to Section 
1201(a) thereof and the estate pledged to the trustee thereunder may cease, terminate and 
become void; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is necessary and desirable to maintain a 
long-term leasehold interest in VIGT by executing and delivering the 2025 Lease Amendment; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to defease the Outstanding Bonds and 
terminate the Outstanding Equipment Leases; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the effectiveness of the 2025 Lease Amendment, the 
Authority must pay to VIG a First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment (as defined in the 2025 
Lease Amendment); and  

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to authorize the issuance hereunder of its port 
facilities revenue bonds, to which only the revenues of Port Facilities are pledged, such pledge 
being subordinate and inferior in right to the pledge of revenues of Port Facilities granted to VIG 
under the Senior Lease, without limitation as to amount, except as otherwise expressly provided 
herein, for the purposes of (i) ensuring operational and investment control of the Virginia 
International Gateway Terminal by financing and refinancing the costs of the First Amendment 
Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) funding debt service reserve accounts and (iii) paying the cost of 
issuance of such port facilities revenue bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to authorize the issuance hereunder of its line 
of credit note, to which only the revenues of Port Facilities are pledged, such pledge being 
subordinate and inferior in right to the pledge of revenues of Port Facilities granted to VIG under 
the Senior Lease and to the pledge of revenues of Port Facilities granted to the holders of Bonds 
and Parity Indebtedness, without limitation as to amount, except as otherwise expressly provided 
herein, for the purposes of (i) ensuring operational and investment control of the Virginia 
International Gateway Terminal by financing and refinancing the costs of the First Amendment 
Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) defeasing the Outstanding Bonds not defeased from unencumbered 
cash and investments on hand, (iii) terminating the Outstanding Equipment Leases not retired or 
terminated from unencumbered cash and investments on hand; (iv) funding debt service reserve 
accounts and (v) paying the cost of issuance of such port facilities revenue bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to authorize in the future, from time to time, in 
the discretion of the Authority's Board of Commissioners, the issuance of additional bonds, 
refunding bonds and other obligations to pay the "cost" (as defined in the Act) of the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, maintenance, equipping and control of Port Facilities (the "Projects") 
and for the other purposes authorized hereby, all as more specifically provided in the series 
resolutions providing for the issuance of such bonds, refunding bonds and other obligations; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has found and determined that the objectives of the Act will be 
attained and the interest of the general public will be served through the providing of Projects and 
the issuance of its revenue bonds (with the meaning of Section 62.1-140.A. of the Act) and 
contracting and incurring other obligations and indebtedness for the purpose of paying, with other 
funds that shall be available therefor, the cost of Projects and for the further purposes of refunding 
and retiring outstanding revenue bonds of the Authority and other obligations and indebtedness 



4 

of the Authority on the terms and conditions set forth herein and in resolutions supplemental 
hereto and permitted hereby. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE I. 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 101. Meaning of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms elsewhere 
defined in this Resolution, the following words and terms as used in this Resolution shall have the 
following meanings, unless some other meaning is plainly intended: 

"2025 Bonds" has the meaning assigned to it in the definition of "Bonds". 

"Accountant" shall mean, in the case of the Authority, the Auditor of Public Accounts or 
the firm of independent public accountants at the time employed or caused to be employed under 
the provisions of Section 713 of this Resolution to perform and carry out the functions of the 

Accountant for the Authority under this Resolution and, in the case of the Port Operators, 
the firm of independent public accountants at the time employed or cause to be employed under 
the provisions of Section 718(c) of this Resolution to perform and carry out the functions of the 
Accountant for the Port Operators under this Resolution. 

"Accreted Amount" shall mean with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds of any Series, 
the amount set forth in a Series Resolution as the amount representing the initial public offering 
price, plus the accumulated and compounded interest on such Capital Appreciation Bonds. 

"Act" shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 

"Additional Bonds" has the meaning assigned to it in the definition of "Bonds". 

"Adjusted Net Revenue" shall mean for any period of time, the Net Revenue of the 
Authority increased by the amount of those items that are included in "Current Expenses" and 
"Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements" and are paid or budgeted to be paid by the 
Authority from sources, such as the Commonwealth Port Fund or Commonwealth general funds, 
other than Gross Revenues. 

"Agency Obligations" shall mean obligations of or guaranteed by the Federal National 
Mortgage Association, the Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Federal Banks for Cooperatives, 
Federal Land Banks, Federal Housing Administration, Federal Home Loan Banks, Government 
National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Corporation, United States Maritime 
Administration, Export-Import Bank of the United States, United States Postal Service, Resolution 
Funding Corporation or any other agency or corporation approved in writing, if necessary, by any 
insurer of any Series of Bonds, which is or may hereafter be created by or pursuant to an Act of 
the Congress of the United States as an agency or instrumentality thereof. 

"Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue" shall mean for any period of time, the sum of (i) 
Adjusted Net Revenue, (ii) twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount of cash and Investment 
Obligations in the Revenue Stabilization Fund, if in existence, and (iii) the Port Operator Capital 
Expenditures. 



5 

"Aggregate Net Revenue" shall mean for any period of time, the sum of (i) Net Revenue, 
(ii) twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount of cash and Investment Obligations in the Revenue 
Stabilization Fund, if in existence, and (iii) the Port Operator Capital Expenditures. 

"Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements" for any Bond Year, shall mean the sum 
of (i) Principal and Interest Requirements for such year and (ii) the Senior Obligations for such 
year. 

"Amortization Requirements" for the Term Bonds, if any, of each Series for any Bond Year 
shall be the respective principal amounts of such Bonds to be redeemed by mandatory sinking 
fund redemption, or otherwise retired, on the date or dates in such Bond Year or the next 
succeeding Bond Year, as the case may be, as fixed in the applicable Series Resolution. The 
aggregate amount of such Amortization Requirements for the Term Bonds of each Series shall 
be equal to the aggregate principal amount of Term Bonds of such Series. The Amortization 
Requirements for the Term Bonds of each Series shall begin in the Bond Year determined by the 
Board and shall end in the Bond Year of the maturity of such Term Bonds (the Amortization 
Requirement for such Bond Year being the amount payable at maturity). 

If at the close of any Bond Year the total principal amount of Term Bonds of any Series 
maturing on the same date retired either by purchase or mandatory sinking fund redemption (or 
called for redemption under the provisions of this Resolution prior to the close of such Bond Year) 
shall be less than the Amortization Requirements for such Bond Year, then the Amortization 
Requirements for such Bonds in the ensuing Bond Year shall be increased by the amount of such 
deficiency. 

If at the close of any Bond Year the total principal amount of the Term Bonds of any Series 
and maturing on the same date retired either by purchase or optional redemption, shall be in 
excess of the total amount of the Amortization Requirements for the Term Bonds of such Series 
and maturity to and including such Principal Payment Date, then the total amount of the 
Amortization Requirements for the Term Bonds of such Series and maturity for all subsequent 
Principal Payment Dates shall, to the extent hereinafter provided, be reduced by the amount of 
such excess in such order and in such manner as the Authority shall determine. 

"Annual Budget" shall mean the budget (i) for the Authority for a Fiscal Year adopted by 
the Authority, as the same may be amended from time to time, in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 502 of this Resolution and (ii) for a Port Operator and its Subsidiaries for a Fiscal Year 
adopted by a Port Operator and approved by the Authority, as the same may be amended from 
time to time, in accordance with the provisions of Section 718(a) of this Resolution. 

"Applicable Principal Payment Date" shall mean the date so designated and described 
within the definition of "Principal Requirement", hereinafter set forth. 

"Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness" shall mean Long-Term Indebtedness twenty-five 
percent (25%) or more of the principal of which matures on the same date, which portion of the 
principal is not required by the documents governing such Indebtedness to be subject to 
Amortization Requirements or otherwise to be amortized by redemption prior to such date, 
provided, however, Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness shall not include interim Indebtedness. 

"Board" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals 

"Bond Counsel" shall mean a firm of attorneys nationally recognized as expert in the law 
of public finance and selected by the Authority. 



6 

"Bond Insurance Policy" shall mean a municipal bond new issue insurance policy issued 
by the Insurer and guaranteeing the payment of principal of and interest on a Series of Bonds or 
certain maturities thereof as may be provided in a Series Resolution. 

"Bond Registrar" shall mean the person appointed by the Series Resolution and at the 
time serving as the Bond Registrar pursuant to Article II hereof, for a particular Series of Bonds, 
whether the original or a successor bond registrar performing the functions of bond registrar under 
the provisions of this Resolution. 

"Bonds" shall mean the revenue bonds and revenue refunding bonds issuable by the 
Authority under Sections 208, 209 or 210 of this Resolution (as applicable). "2025 Bonds", 
"Additional Bonds" and "Refunding Bonds" shall mean the Bonds authorized pursuant to Sections 
208, 209 and 210, respectively. 

"Bond Year" shall mean the period commencing on the first day of July of any calendar 
year and ending on the 30th day of June of the following calendar year. 

"Business Day" shall mean any day other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which 
commercial banks (including the Trustee, any Depositary, the Bond Registrar, any Paying Agent 
and any Credit Bank or Insurer) are open for business in the Commonwealth and in New York, 
New York and on which the New York Stock Exchange is open. 

"Capital Appreciation Bonds" shall mean any Bonds of any Series the interest on which is 
compounded and accumulated at the rates and on the dates set forth in a Series Resolution and 
is payable on the date or dates, if any, on which such Bonds become Current Interest Bonds or 
upon redemption or on the maturity date of such Bonds. 

"Closing" shall mean the date on which the Bonds are delivered against payment therefor. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. "Commonwealth" 
shall mean the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

"Completion Date" shall mean as to each Project the date of completion thereof as such 
date shall be certified pursuant to Section 406 of this Resolution. 

"Construction Fund" shall mean the Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bond 
Construction Fund created and so designated by Section 401 of this Resolution. 

"Cost", as applied to any Project, shall have the meaning set forth in Section 403 of this 
Resolution. 

"Credit Bank" shall mean, as to any particular Series of Bonds, the person (other than an 
Insurer) providing a Credit Facility, as designated in the Series Resolution providing for the 
issuance of such series of Bonds or other Supplemental Resolution. 

"Credit Facility" shall mean as to any particular Series of Bonds, a letter of credit, a line of 
credit, a guaranty, standby bond purchase agreement or other credit- or liquidity-enhancement 
facility (other than a Bond Insurance Policy), as described in the Series Resolution providing for 
the issuance of such series of Bonds or other Supplemental Resolution. 

"Crossover Date" shall mean, with respect to Crossover Refunding Bonds, the date 
specified in or determined in accordance with the provisions of the Series Resolution authorizing 



7 

such Bonds on which Bonds or other Indebtedness to be refunded in whole or in part with the 
proceeds of such Crossover Refunding Bonds are to be paid at maturity or redeemed (or provision 
made for such payment or redemption). 

"Crossover Refunding Bonds" shall mean Bonds, as determined in the Series Resolution 
authorizing such Bonds, the proceeds of which will be used on the Crossover Date to pay at 
maturity or redeem or to provide for such payment or redemption any Bonds to be so paid or 
refunded. 

"Current Expenses" shall mean the reasonable and necessary current expenses of 
maintenance, repair and operation of the Port Facilities and shall include, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, all ordinary and usual expenses of maintenance, repair and operation, 
which may include expenses not annually recurring, rental payments pursuant to contracts not 
required to be capitalized under generally accepted accounting principles, premiums for 
insurance, fees or premiums for a Credit Facility (but not including any amounts payable as 
interest, whether or not characterized as a fee or premium, on draws, advances or loans), all 
administrative and engineering expenses relating to maintenance, repair and operation of Port 
Facilities, fees and expenses of depositaries, legal expenses, any taxes or service charges 
lawfully levied on the Port Facilities, any reasonable payments to pension, retirement, vacation, 
holiday, dues or other benefits required by virtue of contracts or other agreements with employees 
or executives, and any other expenses required or permitted to be paid under the provisions of 
the Senior Documents, or required by law, but shall not include any reserves for maintenance or 
repair, or any allowance for depreciation or amortization, or any deposits or transfers to the credit 
of the Senior Obligations Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Revenue Stabilization Fund, if in 
existence, or the Subordinate Obligations Fund, if any, required by this Resolution. Except as 
specifically mentioned above, Current Expenses of the Authority shall not include any impost, fee, 
transfer, payment in lieu of taxes or other exaction or contractual obligation payable, directly or 
indirectly, to or for the account of any public body, whether payable pursuant to law, agreement 
or otherwise; provided, however, that any such items not payable as Current Expenses may be 
paid from the Residual Fund. 

"Current Interest Bonds" shall mean Bonds the interest on which is payable on the Interest 
Payment Dates provided therefor in a Series Resolution which Resolution may also provide that 
Bonds initially issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds may become Current Interest Bonds on the 
date specified therein. 

"Debt Service Account" shall mean the account in the Debt Service Fund created and so 
designated by Section 506 of this Resolution. 

"Debt Service Fund" shall mean the Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds 
Debt Service Fund created and so designated by Section 506 of this Resolution. 

"Debt Service Reserve Account" (or "Reserve Account") shall mean any account so 
designated in the Debt Service Fund pursuant to a Series Resolution and intended to provide a 
reserve for the payment of principal and interest on Bonds of a Series Outstanding issued 
pursuant to this Resolution and to provide for the redemption of such Series of Outstanding Bonds 
prior to its stated maturity as provided in Section 506 hereof. 

"Defaulted Interest" shall mean Defaulted Interest as defined in Section 203 of this 
Resolution. 



8 

"Defeased Municipal Obligations" shall mean obligations of any state or territory of the 
United States or any political subdivision thereof which obligations are rated in the highest rating 
category by the Rating Services and which obligations meet the following requirements: (i) the 
obligations are not subject to redemption or the trustee thereof has been given irrevocable 
instructions to call such obligations for redemption and the issuer has covenanted not to redeem 
such obligations other than as set forth in such instructions; (ii) the obligations are secured by 
cash or Government Obligations (which are not subject to redemption other than at the option of 
the holder thereof) that may be applied only to interest, principal, and premium payments of such 
obligations; (iii) the principal of and interest on the Government Obligations (plus any cash in the 
escrow fund) are sufficient to meet the liabilities of the obligations; (iv) the Government 
Obligations serving as security for such obligations are held by an escrow deposit agent or trustee; 
and (v) the Government Obligations are not available to satisfy any other claims, including those 
against the trustee or escrow deposit agent. 

"Defeasance Obligations" shall mean (i) Government Obligations which are not subject to 
redemption other than at the option of the holder thereof and (ii) if and to the extent permitted by 
law, Defeased Municipal Obligations. 

"Deposit Day" shall mean, unless otherwise provided by a Series Resolution, a Business 
Day on or after the 20th day and on or before the 25th day of each month following the delivery 
of the 2025 Bonds. 

"Depositary" shall mean the Treasurer of the Commonwealth, the Trustee and the one or 
more banks or trust companies, including the Bond Registrar, authorized under the laws of the 
United States of America or the Commonwealth, to engage in banking business within the 
Commonwealth, meeting the definition of a "qualified public depository" under Chapter 44, Title 
2.2, Code of Virginia 1950, as amended (or any successor act), and designated by the Authority 
as a depositary of money under the provisions of Section 916 of this Resolution. 

"Derivative Agreement" shall mean, without limitation, (i) any contract known as or referred 
to or which performs the function of an interest rate swap agreement, currency swap agreement, 
forward payment conversion agreement, commodity swap agreement or futures contract; (ii) any 
contract providing for payments based on levels of, or changes or differences in, interest rates, 
currency exchange rates, or stock or other indices; (iii) any contract to exchange cash flows or 
payments or series of payments; (iv) any type of contract called, or designed to perform the 
function of, interest rate floors or caps, options, puts or calls, to hedge or minimize any type of 
financial risk, including, without limitation, payment, currency, rate or other financial risk; and (v) 
any other type of contract or arrangement that the Authority determines is to be used, or is 
intended to be used, to manage or reduce the cost of Indebtedness, to convert any element of 
Indebtedness from one form to another, to maximize or increase investment return, to minimize 
investment return risk or to protect against any type of financial risk or uncertainty. 

"Derivative Indebtedness" shall mean Indebtedness or any portion thereof with respect to 
which the Authority shall have entered into a Derivative Agreement. Derivative Indebtedness: 
shall be subject to the provisions of Section 513. 

"Derivative Period" shall mean the period during which a Derivative Agreement is in effect. 

"Engineer" shall mean the engineer or engineering firm at the time employed by the 
Authority under the provisions of Section 705 of this Resolution to perform and carry out the duties 
imposed on the Engineer by this Resolution. 



9 

"Event of Default" shall mean with respect to this Resolution each of those events set forth 
in Section 801 of this Resolution. 

"Fiscal Year" shall mean the twelve month period beginning on July 1 of one calendar year 
and ending on June 30 of the next succeeding calendar year or such other twelve month period 
established by or for the Authority from time to time as its fiscal year. 

"Government Obligations" shall mean (i) direct obligations of the United States of America, 
(ii) obligations the payment on which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the United States 
of America including, but not limited to, stripped interest components of obligations issued by the 
Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP) and non-callable, non-prepayable debt obligations 
of the United States Agency for International Development (US AID), which pay principal and 
interest at least three (3) business days prior to any respective escrow requirement dates, or (iii) 
non-callable, senior debt obligations of any agency or instrumentality of the United States of 
America created by an act of congress including, but not limited to, the Federal Home Loan Banks, 
Freddie Mac, Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation, and Fannie Mae. 

"Governmental Restrictions" shall mean federal, Commonwealth or other applicable 
governmental laws or regulations affecting the Authority or its Port Operators and the Port 
Facilities, which place restrictions and limitations on the (i) fees, tariffs and charges to be fixed, 
charged and collected or revenues to be earned by the Authority or its Port Operators or (ii) timing 
of the receipt of such revenues. 

"Gross Revenues" shall mean for any period all revenues, including receipts, proceeds, 
income and other money, received by the Authority or by any Port Operator and paid to the 
Authority pursuant to Port Operator Agreements during such period from the ownership, leasing 
or operation of, or in connection with, the Port Facilities, or any part thereof, including, among 
others, revenues derived from services rendered by, or any use or occupancy of, the Port 
Facilities or any part thereof, or revenues derived from rents, leases, subleases, contracts, 
concessions, accounts receivable, insurance and other sources, proceeds derived from the sale 
of any interest in any property constituting a part of the Port Facilities, proceeds derived from 
condemnation awards and insurance, grants, appropriations and other receipts, including the 
income and profits therefrom, in each case lawfully available for the payment of the costs of 
operation, maintenance, repair or management of the Port Facilities, the payment of Senior 
Obligations, the payment of the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on any 
Bonds and Parity Indebtedness and the funding of all required reserves, but excluding certain 
income as described below. Gross Revenues do not include the amount of any appropriation by 
the General Assembly from the Transportation Trust Fund, the Commonwealth Port Fund, the 
Commonwealth's General Fund or other funding sources of the Commonwealth, or the investment 
income thereon receivable by the Authority, which are not derived from the 

Authority's, the Port Operator's or any Subsidiaries' operating revenues. Gross Revenues 
shall include other investment income received and receivable by the Authority, any Port Operator 
and any Subsidiaries and the income from the investment of Liquidity Reserve Requirements held 
in operating accounts. For purposes of this Resolution, Gross Revenues derived from or in 
respect of Port Facilities financed with Special Obligations constituting Conduit Indebtedness shall 
include only the excess funds available for transfer to the Operating Account after satisfaction of 
the requirements of the Special Obligations constituting Conduit Indebtedness in accordance with 
instruments securing such obligations. 



10 

"Guaranties" means all obligations of the Authority guaranteeing in any manner, whether 
directly or indirectly, any obligations of any other person which obligation would, if it were the 
obligation of the Authority constitute Long-Term Indebtedness hereunder. 

"Holder" means a person in whose name a Bond (or one or more predecessor Bonds) is 
registered in the registration books provided for in Section 206 of this Resolution or who holds 
Parity Indebtedness. 

"Indebtedness" means all obligations for borrowed money, installment sales and 
capitalized lease obligations, including Bonds, Parity Indebtedness, Guaranties, Long-Term 
Indebtedness, Interim Indebtedness, Short-Term Indebtedness, Derivative Indebtedness, or any 
other obligation for payments of principal and interest with respect to money borrowed, except (i) 
Senior Obligations, (ii) Subordinate Obligations, (iii) Special Obligations, (iv) obligations of the 
Authority to a Port Operator or its Subsidiaries, (v) obligations of a Port Operator or its Subsidiaries 
to the Authority, (vi) reimbursement obligations of a Port Operator or its Subsidiaries to an issuer 
of an Eligible Credit Facility, as that term is defined in Section 718(d) of this Resolution, (vii) lease 
obligations of Lessee, a Port Operator and its Subsidiaries for the acquisition of equipment 
pursuant to the Annual Budget; provided such lease obligations do not exceed six percent (6%) 
of budgeted Current Expenses of Lessee, such Port Operator and its Subsidiaries in any Fiscal 
Year, with the exception of chassis leases of HRCP II, L.L.C., a Virginia limited liability company, 
the sole member of which is VIT, which shall be unlimited. 

"Insurer" shall mean, as to any particular maturity or any particular Series of Bonds, the 
person undertaking to insure pursuant to a Bond Insurance Policy such Bonds as may be 
designated in a Series Resolution providing for the issuance of such Bonds. 

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean, except as otherwise provided by an applicable Series 
Resolution, January 1 and July 1, as the case may be. 

"Interest Requirement" for any Fiscal Year or any other period, as the context may require, 
as applied to Bonds of any Series and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding, shall mean the total 
of the sums that would be deemed to accrue on such Bonds and Parity Indebtedness during such 
Fiscal Year or such other period if the interest on the Current Interest Bonds of such Series and 
Parity Indebtedness were deemed to accrue daily during such year or period in equal amounts, 
employing (i) for purposes of the tests set forth in Sections 209(1) and (II), 210(II)(B) and 720 the 
methods of calculation set forth in clauses (A), (B) and (C) of Section 209 hereof and (ii) for all 
other purposes the methods of calculation set forth in clauses (A) and (B) of Section 209, in the 
cases of Optional Tender Indebtedness and Variable Rate Indebtedness; provided, however, that 
interest expense shall be excluded from the determination of Interest Requirement to the extent 
that such interest is to be paid from the proceeds of Bonds or other available moneys or from 
investment (but not reinvestment) earnings thereon if they shall have been invested in Investment 
Obligations and to the extent such earnings may be determined precisely. Unless the Authority 
shall otherwise provide in a Series Resolution, interest expense on Credit Facilities drawn upon 
to purchase but not to retire Bonds, except to the extent such interest exceeds the interest 
otherwise payable on such Bonds, shall not be included in the determination of Interest 
Requirement. 

"Interim Indebtedness" means any Indebtedness issued in anticipation of any Series of 
Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, which Bonds or Parity Indebtedness have been previously 
authorized for issuance by the Authority. 



11 

"Investment Obligations" shall mean, subject to the provisions of any Supplemental 
Resolution, any investments which are at the time legal investments for public funds of the type 
to be invested under Virginia law, including without limitation the Investment of Public Funds Act, 
Chapter 45 of Title 2.2 of the Virginia Code or any successor provision of law and the Government 
Non-Arbitrage Investment Act, Chapter 47 of Title 2.2 of the Code of Virginia or any successor 
provision of law. 

"Liquidity Reserve Requirement" shall mean a reasonable reserve to be maintained in the 
Operating Account, subject to the provisions of Section 504(a), for payment of Current Expenses 
by the Authority as established from time to time in the Authority's Annual Budget, but not 
exceeding one-sixth (I/6th) of the Authority's budgeted Current Expenses for any Fiscal Year. 

"Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfall" shall mean, for a Measurement Period, the 
amount by which the Authority's Gross Revenues is less than Current Expenses plus any Liquidity 
Reserve Requirement Restoration Amount. 

"Liquidity Reserve Requirement Restoration Amount" shall have the meaning given to that 
term in Section 504(a). 

"Long-Term Indebtedness" shall mean all Indebtedness of the Authority or VIT (including 
any Guaranty by the Authority or VIT of any obligation of any person which is not an affiliate) for 
any of the following: 

(a) payments of principal and interest with respect to money borrowed for an 
original term, or renewable at the option of the borrower for a period from the date originally 
incurred, longer than one year; 

(b) payments under leases which are capitalized in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles having an original term, or renewable at the option of the lessee 
for a period from the date originally incurred, longer than one year; and 

(c) payments under installment purchase contracts having an original term in 
excess of one year. 

"Management Consultant" shall mean the management consultant employed under the 
provisions of Section 706 of this Resolution. 

"Measurement Period" shall mean the monthly period starting on the 1st day of each 
month and ending on the last day of the same month. 

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service, Inc., and any successor in interest that is a 
nationally recognized rating agency. 

"Net Revenue" means for any period Gross Revenues received by the Authority during 
such period, less (i) the Current Expenses of the Authority during such period, and less (ii) the 
Liquidity Reserve Requirement Restoration Amount, if any, for such period. 

"Non-Scheduled Payments" means any payments under any Derivative Agreement that 
are not Regularly Scheduled Payments, including but not limited to any additional payments due 
to a Counterparty under the Derivative Agreement as a result of its early termination. 



12 

"Officer's Certificate" shall mean a certificate signed by the Chairman of the Board or the 
Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer of the Authority. 

Each Officer's Certificate presented under this Resolution shall state that it is being 
delivered pursuant to (and shall identify specifically the provision of) this Resolution and shall 
incorporate by reference and use in all appropriate instances all terms defined in this Resolution. 
Each Officer's Certificate shall state (i) whether the terms thereof are in compliance with the 
requirements of the provision pursuant to which such Officer's Certificate is delivered, or shall 
state in reasonable detail the nature of any non-compliance and the steps being taken to remedy 
such non-compliance, and (ii) that it is being delivered together with any opinions, schedules, 
statements or other documents required in connection therewith. 

"Operating Account" shall mean the account referred to in Section 504(a) of this 
Resolution which account may be comprised of one or more accounts held by one or more 
Depositaries. 

"Opinion of Counsel" shall mean a written opinion of counsel who may (unless expressly 
otherwise provided in this Resolution) be counsel to the Authority. 

"Optional Tender Indebtedness" shall mean any portion of Indebtedness incurred under 
this Resolution a feature of which is an option on the part of the holders of such Indebtedness to 
tender to the Authority or the Trustee or a Depositary, Paying Agent or other fiduciary for such 
holders, or an agent of any of the foregoing, all or a portion of such Indebtedness for payment. 

"Outstanding" shall mean all Bonds which have been authenticated and delivered by the 
Bond Registrar under this Resolution, except: 

i Bonds paid or redeemed or delivered to or acquired by the Trustee or the 
Bond Registrar for cancellation; 

 
ii Bonds deemed to have been paid in accordance with Article XII of this 

Resolution; and 

 
iii Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been 

authenticated and delivered under this Resolution; 

provided, however, that in determining whether the Holders of the requisite principal amount of 
Outstanding Bonds have given any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or 
waiver hereunder, Bonds owned by the Authority or any other obligor upon the Bonds shall be 
disregarded and deemed not to be outstanding, except that, in determining whether the Trustee, 
a Depositary, the Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar shall be protected in relying upon any such 
request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver, only Bonds which the 
Trustee, a Depositary, the Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar, as the case may be, knows to be 
so owned shall be so disregarded. Bonds so owned which have been pledged in good faith may 
be regarded as outstanding if the pledgee establishes to the satisfaction of the Trustee, a 
Depositary, the Paying Agent or the Bond Registrar the pledgee's right so to act with respect to 
such Bonds and that the pledgee is not the Authority or any other obligor upon the Bonds. 
Outstanding shall also include any unpaid Parity Indebtedness. 



13 

"Parity Indebtedness" means any Indebtedness incurred in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 720 hereof and payable on a parity with the Principal and Interest Requirements of 
Bonds. Parity Indebtedness does not include Bonds. 

"Paying Agents" shall mean one of more of the banks or trust companies, the Trustee, the 
Bond Registrar, the Depositary or the Treasurer of the Commonwealth as may be designated by 
the applicable Series Resolution, at which the principal of Bonds shall be payable. 

"Payment Agreement" shall mean that certain Payment Agreement, dated as of the 
Closing, by and between the Authority and VIT and joined by HRCP II, L.L.C., a Virginia limited 
liability company, the sole member of which is VIT, as the same may be supplemented or 
amended. 

"Person" shall include an association, unincorporated organization, a corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, business trust or a government or an agency or a political subdivision 
thereof, or any other entity. 

"Port Facilities" shall mean and include the Projects, NIT, NNMT, PMT, VIGT, VIP and 
RMT (as such terms are defined in the preamble to this Resolution), harbors, seaports and other 
facilities and tangible real and personal properties, property rights and interests of the Authority, 
whether now existing or to be constructed, installed or acquired hereafter, except properties in 
which the Authority has a nonpossessory interest solely by virtue of its having financed the same 
with Special Obligations constituting Conduit Indebtedness. 

"Port Operator" shall mean VIT or other Port Facilities operator, now existing or becoming 
such in the future, so long as VIT or such other Port Facilities operator is affiliated with and 
controlled by the Authority. 

"Port Operator Agreements" shall mean, collectively, (i) the Payment Agreement and (ii) 
any other agreement made in the future between the Authority and any Port Operator and its 
Subsidiaries, during which time the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness are Outstanding or the Senior 
Documents are in effect, which amends, modifies or terminates the Payment Agreement or 
governs the operation of any of the Port Facilities and payments to the Authority as required by 
Section 718(a) of this Resolution. 

"Port Operator Capital Expenditures" shall mean the reasonable and necessary current 
expenditures of extraordinary repair and maintenance, renewal, replacement, acquisition and 
construction of the Port Facilities incurred by a Port Operator or any Subsidiary which is required 
to be capitalized under generally accepted accounting principles; provided, however, that Port 
Operator Capital Expenditures in any Fiscal Year shall not exceed six percent (6%) of the amount 
equal to the Port Operator's or its Subsidiaries' then budgeted Current Expenses for such Fiscal 
Year less its then-budgeted administrative and general expenses for such Fiscal Year. 

"Predecessor Bonds" of any particular Bond shall mean every previous bond evidencing 
all or a portion of the same debt as that evidenced by such particular Bond; and, for purposes of 
this definition, any Bond authenticated and delivered under Section 212 of this Resolution in lieu 
of a destroyed, stolen or lost Bond shall be deemed to evidence the same debt as the destroyed, 
stolen or lost Bond. 

"Principal" shall mean (i) with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, the Accreted 
Amount thereof (the difference between the stated amount to be paid at maturity and the Accreted 
Amount being deemed unearned interest) except as used in this Resolution in connection with 



14 

the authorization and issuance of Bonds and with the order of priority of payments of Bonds after 
an Event of Default, in which case "principal" means the initial public offering price of a Capital 
Appreciation Bond (the difference between the Accreted Amount and the initial public offering 
price being deemed interest) but when used in connection with determining whether the owners 
of the requisite principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding have given any request, demand, 
authorization, direction, notice, consent or waiver or with respect to the Redemption Price of any 
Capital Appreciation Bond, "principal amount" means the Accreted Amount and (ii) with respect 
to the principal amount of any Current Interest Bond, the principal amount of such bond payable 
in satisfaction of an Amortization Requirement, if applicable, or at maturity. 

"Principal and Interest Requirements" for any Bond Year, as applied to the Bonds and 
Parity Indebtedness, shall mean the sum of the Principal Requirement and the Interest 
Requirement for such Year. 

"Principal Payment Date" shall mean, except as otherwise provided in an applicable 
Series Resolution, a July 1 upon which the principal of any bond is stated to mature or upon which 
the principal of any term bond is subject to redemption in satisfaction of an Amortization 
Requirement; provided, however, that Principal Payment Date may mean, if so provided by a 
Supplemental Resolution, such other date or dates as may be provided thereby or permitted 
therein. 

"Principal Requirement" for any Fiscal Year, as applied to the Bonds of any Series and 
Parity Indebtedness, shall mean, if and to the extent for such Series of Bonds and Parity 
Indebtedness a Principal Payment Date or Dates shall occur on July 2 or thereafter during such 
Fiscal Year or on July 1 of the next succeeding Fiscal Year (each, an "Applicable Principal 
Payment Date"), an amount calculated beginning 

(i) on the preceding Principal Payment Date, if any, that occurs one 
year or less before each Applicable Principal Payment Date, or 

(ii) one year prior to each Applicable Principal Payment Date if there is 
no prior Principal Payment Date or if the preceding Principal Payment Date is more than one year 
prior to the Applicable Principal Payment Dates; 

(iii) which amount shall equal the sums that would be deemed to accrue 
on such Bonds and Parity Indebtedness during such Fiscal Year if 

(iv) the principal of the Current Interest Bonds of such Series and Parity 
Indebtedness scheduled to mature or be subject to an Amortization Requirement on or prior to 
the Applicable Principal Payment Date, and 

(v) the Accreted Amount of the Capital Appreciation Bonds of such 
Series scheduled to become due or be subject to an Amortization Requirement on or prior to the 
Applicable Principal Payment Date, 

determined by employing the methods of calculation set forth in clauses (A) and (B) of Section 
209 hereof in the cases of Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness and Optional Tender Indebtedness, 
were each deemed to accrue daily during such year in equal amounts to but not including the 
Applicable Principal Payment Date; provided, however, that an amount of principal shall be 
excluded from the determination of Principal Requirement to the extent that such amount is to be 
paid from the proceeds of Bonds or other available moneys or from the investment (but not 



15 

reinvestment) earnings thereon if such proceeds or other moneys shall have been invested in 
Investment Obligations and to the extent such earnings may be determined precisely. 

"Project" shall mean with respect to certain Port Facilities, the cost of the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, maintenance, equipping and control of which is to be paid from the 
proceeds of Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, a description of which is furnished by the Series 
Resolution providing for the issuance of such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness. 

"Purchase Price" shall mean the purchase price established in any Supplemental 
Resolution for Optional Tender Indebtedness as the purchase price to be paid for such Bonds 
upon an optional or mandatory tender of all or a portion of such Bonds. 

"Rating Services" shall mean the nationally recognized rating services, or any of them that 
shall have assigned ratings to any Bonds Outstanding as requested by or on behalf of the 
Authority, and which ratings are then currently in effect. 

"Redemption Price" shall mean, with respect to Bonds or a portion thereof the principal 
amount of such Bonds or portion thereof plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon 
redemption thereof in the manner contemplated in accordance with their terms and this 
Resolution. 

"Refunding Bonds" has the meaning assigned to it in the definition of "Bonds". 

"Regular Record Date" shall mean the 15th day of the month preceding any Interest 
Payment Date. 

"Regularly Scheduled Payments" shall mean any payments scheduled (at the time such 
Derivative Agreement is executed) for payment on dates corresponding to interest payment dates 
with respect to the related Derivative Indebtedness and which are intended to be "interest-like" 
when the interest on the related Derivative Indebtedness and such payments are viewed together. 

"Reserve Account Credit Facility" shall mean a letter of credit issued by a United States 
bank or financial institution or foreign bank or financial institution with a branch in the United 
States, in each case having a long-term senior rating of no less than "A-" from S&P and "A3" from 
Moody's which meets the requirements of Section 508(d) hereof. 

"Reserve Account Requirement" shall mean, as of any date of calculation, the debt service 
reserve account requirement, if any, established by a Series Resolution authorizing a Series of 
Bonds; provided, however, any such debt service reserve account requirement established for a 
Series of Bonds shall not exceed the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements in any future 
Bond Year for such Series of Bonds. 

"Residual Fund" shall mean the Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds 
Residual Fund created and so designated by Section 512 of this Resolution. 

"Resolution" shall mean this resolution authorizing the Bonds, adopted by the Authority on 
__________ _____, 2025, as the same shall be supplemented and amended as permitted 
hereby. 

"Revenue Stabilization Fund" shall mean the Virginia Port Authority Series 2025 Bonds 
Revenue Stabilization Fund created and so designated by Section 509 of this Resolution. 



16 

"Revenue Stabilization Fund Cap" has the meaning set forth in Section 509. 

"S&P" shall mean S&P Global Ratings and any successor in interest that is a nationally 
recognized rating agency. 

"Senior Documents" shall mean, collectively, the Senior Lease. 

"Senior Lease" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 

"Senior Obligations" shall mean, collectively, the Senior Rent. 

"Senior Obligations Fund" shall mean the Virginia Port Authority Senior Obligations Fund 
created and so designated by Section 511 of this Resolution. 

"Senior Rent" shall mean the Rent, as that term is defined in the Senior Lease, payable 
by the Authority to VIG under the Senior Lease. 

"Serial Bonds" shall mean the Bonds of any Series which are stated to mature in 
consecutive annual installments and are so designated by the applicable Series Resolution. 

"Series" shall mean the Bonds delivered at any one time issued under the provisions of 
this Resolution. 

"Series Resolution" shall mean a resolution of the Authority, supplemental to this 
Resolution and in conformity with the provisions of Article XI hereof, providing for the issuance of 
a Series of the Bonds and setting forth the provisions and details thereof not inconsistent herewith. 
If the Board shall delegate to the Finance and Audit Committee of the Board or the Executive 
Director the power to determine specifically matters generally authorized by a Series Resolution 
of the Board, the resolution of the Finance and Audit Committee, or the certificate of the Executive 
Director, as the case may be, in furtherance of such Series Resolution shall be deemed to be part 
thereof. 

"Short-Term Indebtedness" means Indebtedness having an original maturity less than or 
equal to one year and not renewable at the Authority's option for a term greater than one year 
beyond the date originally incurred, provided that Short-Term Indebtedness shall constitute 
Subordinate Obligations for all purposes of this Resolution. 

"Special Obligations" shall mean any Indebtedness the source of repayment and security 
for which is effectively limited to (1) the property, the purchase, acquisition or improvement of 
which was financed with the proceeds of such Special Obligations with no recourse, directly or 
indirectly, to any Gross Revenues of the Authority, the Port Operators or Subsidiaries or to any 
other property covered by the definition of "Port Facilities" ("Nonrecourse Indebtedness") or (2) 
the promise of a non-governmental person other than the Authority, the Port Operators or 
Subsidiaries to make to or for the account of the Authority, the Port Operators or Subsidiaries 
payments sufficient to amortize and pay fully such Nonrecourse Indebtedness for which the 
Authority was a conduit issuer ("Conduit Indebtedness"). In addition, obligations contracted or 
incurred and bonds issued by the Authority that are payable solely from the Transportation Trust 
Fund, the Commonwealth Port Fund, the Commonwealth's General Fund or other funding 
sources of the Commonwealth that are not derived from the Port Operator's, any Subsidiaries' or 
the Authority's Gross Revenues, and that have no lien on Gross Revenues shall be deemed to 
be Special Obligations. 



17 

"Special Record Date" for the payment of any Defaulted Interest on Bonds means a date 
fixed by the Trustee pursuant to Section 203 of this Resolution. 

"Subordinate Obligations" shall mean any Indebtedness (other than Bonds) incurred, 
issued and secured by or payable from Net Revenue credited to the Subordinate Obligations 
Fund or not otherwise paid or payable from the Operating Account, the Debt Service Account or 
the Debt Service Reserve, to the extent such Indebtedness is expressly subordinated in writing 
as to payment from Net Revenue as contemplated by Section 504(b). 

"Subordinate Obligations Fund" shall mean the Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities 
Revenue Bonds Subordinate Obligations Fund created and so designated by Section 510 of this 
Resolution. 

"Subsidiary" shall mean with respect to the Authority or a Port Operator, any corporation, 
limited liability company, partnership, association, or other business entity of which (i) if a 
corporation, a majority of the total voting power of shares of stock entitled (without regard to the 
occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors, managers, or trustees thereof 
is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Authority or a Port Operator (as 
applicable) or one or more of the other Subsidiaries of the Authority or the Port Operator (as 
applicable) or a combination thereof or (ii) if a limited liability company, partnership, association, 
or other business entity (other than a corporation), a majority of the partnership or other similar 
ownership interests thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Authority 
or the Port Operator (as applicable) or one or more Subsidiaries of the Authority or the Port 
Operator (as applicable) or a combination thereof and for this purpose, the Authority or the Port 
Operator (as applicable) owns a majority ownership interest in such a business entity (other than 
a corporation) if the Authority or the Port Operator (as applicable) or one or more Subsidiaries of 
the Authority or the Port Operator (as applicable) shall be allocated a majority of such business 
entity's gains or losses or shall be or control any managing director or general partner of such 
business entity (other than a corporation). The term "Subsidiary" shall include all Subsidiaries of 
such Subsidiary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term "Subsidiary" shall not apply to any of 
the foregoing which is not an operator of a Port Facility. 

"Supplemental Resolution" shall mean a Series Resolution or any other resolution adopted 
by the Authority, supplemental to this Resolution and in conformity with the provisions of Article 
XI hereof, providing for the issuance of a Series of Bonds and setting forth the provisions and 
details thereof not inconsistent herewith. 

"Term Bonds" shall mean the Bonds of any Series, other than Serial Bonds, stated to be 
payable by their terms on one date and so designated by the applicable Series Resolution. 

"Trustee" shall mean the bank or trust company appointed and acting as such at the time 
under this Resolution, whether the original or a successor trustee. 

"Variable Rate Indebtedness" shall mean any portion of Indebtedness the interest rate on 
which is not established at the time of incurrence at a single numerical rate for the entire term of 
the Indebtedness. 

"VIG" shall mean Virginia International Gateway, Inc., a Virginia corporation, as Lessor 
under the Senior Lease, and its successors and assigns. 



18 

"VIT" shall mean Virginia International Terminals, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, 
which serves, or will serve, until removed pursuant to the terms of this Resolution, as the operator 
of the Port Facilities of the Authority; and its successors. 

Section 102. Miscellaneous Definition.  (a) Unless the context otherwise indicates, 
words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice-versa and the use of the neuter, 
masculine or feminine gender is for convenience only and shall be deemed to mean and include 
the neuter, masculine, or feminine gender. 

(b) Where the character or amount of any asset, liability or item of income or 
expense is required to be determined or any consolidation, combination or other accounting 
computation is required to be made for the purpose hereof or executed and delivered in 
accordance with or pursuant to this Resolution, the same shall be done in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles of such agreement, document or certificate; provided, 
however, whenever the context makes clear that the requirement is that cash, or its equivalent, 
be available to meet Indebtedness, computations regarding such requirement shall be computed 
on a cash and not on a generally accepted accounting basis. 

(c) Headings of articles in sections herein and the table of contents hereof are 
solely for convenience of reference, do not constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the 
meaning, construction or effect hereof. 

(d) Provisions calling for the redemption of Indebtedness or the calling of 
Indebtedness for redemption do not mean or include the payment of Indebtedness at its stated 
maturity. 

ARTICLE II. 
AUTHORIZATION, FORM, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY AND  

REGISTRATION OF BONDS 

Section 201. Limitation on Issuance of Bonds. No Bonds or other Indebtedness may 
be issued under the provisions of this Resolution except in accordance with the provisions of this 
Article, but the aggregate principal amount thereof that may be issued is not hereby limited. 

Section 202. Form of Bonds. The definitive Bonds are issuable in fully registered form 
in such minimum denomination as may be specified by the applicable Series Resolution and any 
whole multiple thereof. The definitive Bonds issued under the provisions of this Article shall be 
substantially in the form hereinafter set forth, with such appropriate variations, omissions and 
insertions as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to the provisions of this Resolution. All 
Bonds may have endorsed thereon such legends or text as may be necessary or appropriate to 
conform to any applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or of any securities 
exchange on which the Bonds may be listed or any usage or requirement of law with respect 
thereto. 

[Form of Face of the Current Interest Bonds] 

United States of America Commonwealth of Virginia 
 

VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
PORT FACILITIES REVENUE [REFUNDING] BONDS SERIES 

 



19 

    
No. ___________   $    
    

Interest Rate 
 

Maturity Date Dated Date CUSIP 

                
    
Registered Owner:           

          
          
 

Principal Amount          Dollars 
 

(i) Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority"), a body corporate of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (the "Commonwealth") duly created by the Act (hereinafter 
mentioned), for value received, promises to pay, but solely from the sources and in the manner 
hereinafter provided, to the Registered Owner hereof, or registered assigns or legal 
representative, on the Maturity Date set forth above (or earlier as hereinafter referred to), upon 
the presentation and surrender hereof, at the designated corporate trust office of 
_______________ in the City of ____________ , __________ (the "Bond Registrar"), the 
Principal Amount set forth above in any coin or currency of the United States of America which 
on the date of payment thereof is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts, and to 
pay in like coin or currency interest on said Principal Amount on each January 1 and July 1, 
commencing ______________, solely from such sources, from the date hereof or the January I 
or July 1 next preceding the date on which this Bond is authenticated unless it is authenticated 
on January 1 or July 1, in which event from such date, at the Interest Rate set forth above until 
the principal amount hereof is paid. The interest so payable and punctually paid or duly provided 
for on any interest payment date will, as provided in the Resolution hereinafter referred to, be paid 
by check mailed to the person in whose name this Bond (or one or more predecessor bonds, as 
defined in the Resolution) is registered at the close of business on the regular record date for 
such interest, which shall be the June 15 or December 15 (whether or not a business day) next 
preceding such interest payment date. Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided 
for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner on such regular record date, and 
may be paid to the person in whose name this Bond (or any predecessor bond) is registered at 
the close of business on a special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest to be 
fixed by the Trustee hereinafter mentioned, notice whereof being given by the Trustee by mail to 
the registered owners not less than ten (10) days prior to such special record date, or may be 
paid at any time in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities 
exchange on which the Bonds of this series may be listed and upon such notice as may be 
required by such exchange, or as more fully provided in the Resolution. Such payment of interest 
shall be by check mailed to the registered owner at his address as it appears on the bond 
registration books of the Authority maintained by the Bond Registrar and shall be made in any 
coin or currency of the United States of America which on the date of payment thereof is legal 
tender for the payment of public and private debts. 

(ii) This Bond is one of a duly authorized series of revenue bonds of 
the Authority, designated "Port Facilities Revenue [Refunding] Bonds, Series ______", issued 
under Resolution No. 25-_____ adopted by the Authority on __________ _____, 2025 (said 
resolution, as supplemented or amended as permitted thereby, being hereinafter referred to as 
the "Resolution"). The Bonds are being issued to provide funds, together with other available 
funds, to __________________________________________________, _____________ a 



20 

national banking association having trust powers duly organized under the laws of the United 
States of America, with its designated corporate trust office in     has been appointed Trustee 
under the Resolution. 

(iii) The Resolution authorizes the issuance, from time to time, under 
the conditions, limitations and restrictions therein set forth, of additional series of Bonds (such 
Bonds and the Bonds of the series of which this is one being herein collectively called the 
"Bonds"). 

(iv) The Bonds are payable from the "Net Revenue" of the Authority 
derived from its "Port Facilities", after reservation by the Authority of sufficient funds therefrom for 
payment by the Authority of the Rent (the "Senior Rent") due and payable under the provisions of 
that certain Second Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement, dated 
__________ _____, 2025 (the "Senior Lease"), by and between Virginia International Gateway, 
Inc. ("VIG"), as lessor, and the Authority, as lessee, and deposited to the credit of the "Debt 
Service Fund" under the Resolution. The Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt of the 
Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof. Neither the Commonwealth nor the 
Authority shall be obligated to pay the Bonds or the interest thereon except from the Net Revenue 
of the Port Facilities, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth 
or of any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of or the interest 
on such Bonds. The Authority has no taxing power. Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Bonds is subject to appropriation by the General Assembly of the 
Commonwealth. 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS OF THIS BOND ARE SET FORTH ON THE REVERSE 
HEREOF AND SHALL FOR ALL PURPOSES HAVE THE SAME EFFECT AS THOUGH SET 
FORTH HERE. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Virginia Port Authority has caused this Bond to be executed 
with the facsimile signature of its Executive Director and a facsimile of its official seal to be 
imprinted hereon and attested by its Secretary and this Bond to be dated the _____ day of 
______________ , 20___. 

VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
 
BY:       

Executive Director 
 
 

BY:       
Secretary 

[FACSIMILE OF OFFICIAL SEAL] 
 
 



 

21 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 

This Bond is one of the bonds of the Series designated in and issued under the provisions 
of the within-mentioned Resolution. 

     , 
Bond Registrar 

 
 
By:       

Authorized Signatory 
 

Date of authentication: 
 
    
 

[Form of Reverse of Bonds] 

(v) The Authority is the sole member of, and has retained or will retain 
Virginia International Terminals, LLC ("VIT"), a Virginia limited liability company, to operate, its 
public water terminals located on the Harbor of Hampton Roads, including the Norfolk 
International Terminals, the Newport News Marine Terminal, the Portsmouth Marine Terminal, 
and the Virginia International Gateway Terminal, and the Richmond Marine Terminal located on 
the James River and the Virginia Inland Port located in Warren County, Virginia and other facilities 
(collectively, the "Port Facilities"). The Authority has covenanted that it will cause VIT, or any other 
Port Operator (as defined in the Resolution), to pay to the Authority monthly the Gross Revenues 
derived from the operation of the Port Facilities after payment of operating and certain other 
expenses and maintaining a Liquidity Reserve Requirement therefor, and the Authority shall, 
subject to the prior payment of its operating expenses and maintaining a Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement therefor and payment of Senior Rent (collectively, the "Senior Obligations"), make 
monthly deposits to the credit of the Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds Debt 
Service Fund (the "Debt Service Fund") held by the Trustee. To secure the Bonds the Authority 
has pledged to the Trustee the Net Revenue (as defined in the Resolution) of the Authority, 
subject and subordinate to the prior payment therefrom of the Senior Obligations. The Bonds are 
also secured by the moneys and securities held by the Trustee in certain funds and accounts 
established under the Resolution. 

(vi) Reference is made to the Resolution for a more complete statement 
of the provisions thereof and of the rights and duties of the Authority, the Trustee, the Bond 
Registrar, and the bondholders. By the purchase and acceptance of this Bond, the Registered 
Owner hereof signifies assent to all of the provisions of the aforementioned Resolution. 

(vii) This Bond is issued and the Resolution adopted under and pursuant 
to the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, particularly in conformity with the 
provisions, restrictions and limitations of Chapter 10, Title 62.1, Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended (the "Act"). 

(viii) The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds in denominations 
of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof. At the designated corporate trust office of the Bond 
Registrar, in the manner and subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Resolution, 
Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same series 



22 

maturity, of any authorized denomination or denominations and bearing interest at the same rate. 
The transfer of this Bond is registrable by the Registered Owner hereof in person or by his attorney 
or legal representative at the designated office of the Bond Registrar, but only in the manner and 
subject to the limitations and conditions provided in the Resolution and upon surrender and 
cancellation of this Bond. Upon any such registration of transfer, the Authority shall execute and 
the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for this Bond a new Bond or Bonds, 
registered in the name of the transferee, of any authorized denomination or denominations, in an 
aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount of this Bond, of the same series and 
maturity and bearing interest at the same rate. No service charge shall be made for any 
registration of transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the Authority and the Bond Registrar may 
require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be 
imposed in connection with any registration of transfer or exchange of Bonds. Neither the 
Authority nor the Bond Registrar shall be required to make any exchange or registration of transfer 
of any Bond during the fifteen (15) days immediately preceding the date of the Authority's giving 
notice of redemption or after such Bond has been selected for redemption. 

(ix) The Bonds which are stated to mature after July 1, 20__ may be 
redeemed prior to their respective maturities, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that 
may be made available for such purpose, either in whole, on any date, or in part, on any interest 
payment date, not earlier than July 1, 20_ at the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, 
together with the interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, plus a premium of 
_______. 

(x) If less than all of the Bonds shall be called for redemption, the 
particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Authority by such 
method as the Authority deems appropriate. 

(xi) At least thirty (30) days before the redemption date of any Bonds, 
whether such redemption is in whole or in part, the Authority shall cause a notice of any such 
redemption signed by the Authority to be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, to all Registered 
Owners to be redeemed in whole or in part, but any defect in such notice or the failure so to mail 
any such notice to the Registered Owner of any Bond shall not affect the validity of the 
proceedings for the redemption of any other Bonds. On the date fixed for redemption, notice 
having been mailed in the manner provided in the Resolution, the Bonds or portions thereof called 
for redemption shall be due and payable at the redemption price provided therefore plus accrued 
interest to such date; provided that any optional redemption shall be, and such notice of 
redemption shall state that such redemption is, conditioned upon there being available under the 
terms of the Resolution moneys sufficient to pay such redemption price and accrued interest on 
such redemption date. If a portion of this Bond shall be called for redemption, a new Bond or 
Bonds in principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion hereof will be issued to the Registered 
Owner upon the surrender hereof. 

(xii) The owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions 
of the Resolution or to institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action with 
respect to any Event of Default under the Resolution, or to institute, appear in or defend any suit 
or other proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Resolution. 

(xiii) Modifications or alterations of the Resolution, or any resolution 
supplemental thereto, may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances permitted by the 
Resolution. 



23 

(xiv) This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia shall govern its construction. 

(xv) All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be 
performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have happened, exist and have been 
performed as so required. 

(xvi) This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose 
or be entitled to any benefit or security under the Resolution until it shall have been authenticated 
by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication endorsed hereon. 

[Form of Assignment] 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_____________ [Please Print or Typewrite Name and Address of Transferee] the within Bond, 
and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney to register the 
transfer of the within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution 
in the premises.; 

Dated:       

NOTICE: The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon 
the face of the within bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatever. 

Signature Guaranteed* by:       

* Signature must be guaranteed by an institution which is a participant in the Securities 
Transfer Agent Medallion Program (S.T.A.M.P.) or similar program. 

Section 203. Details of Bonds. The Current Interest Bonds shall be dated, shall bear 
interest until their payment, such interest to the maturity thereof being payable, unless otherwise 
provided in the Series Resolution providing for the issuance of a particular Series of Bonds, semi-
annually on January 1 and July 1 in each year, and shall be stated to mature (subject to the right 
of prior redemption), all as hereinafter provided. 

Each Current Interest Bond shall bear interest from the Interest Payment Date next 
preceding the date on which it is authenticated unless it is (i) authenticated on an Interest Payment 
Date in which event it shall bear interest from such Interest Payment Date or (ii) authenticated 
prior to the first Interest Payment Date in which event it shall bear interest from its date; provided, 
however, that if at the time of authentication of any Bond interest is in default, such Bond shall 
bear interest from the date to which interest has been paid. 

The Bonds shall be executed with the signature or facsimile signature of the Executive 
Director of the Authority and the official seal of the Authority shall be impressed, or a facsimile 
thereof imprinted, thereon and attested by the Secretary of the Authority by manual or, if then 
permitted by law, facsimile signature. 

In case any officer whose signature or a facsimile of whose signature shall appear on any 
Bonds shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of such Bonds, such signature or such 
facsimile shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if he had remained 



24 

in office until such delivery, and also any Bonds may bear the facsimile signatures of, or may be 
signed by, such persons as at the actual time of the execution of such Bonds shall be the proper 
officers to sign such Bonds although at the date of such Bonds such persons may not have been 
such officers. 

Both the principal of and the interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency 
of the United States of America which is legal tender on the respective dates of payment thereof 
for the payment of public and private debts. The principal of all Bonds shall be payable at the 
office of the Bond Registrar or other Paying Agent or Agents, designated by the applicable Series 
Resolution. Payment of the principal of all Bonds shall be made upon the presentation and 
surrender of such Bonds as the same shall become due and payable. 

Interest on any Bond which is payable, and is punctually paid or duly provided for, on any 
Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in whose name that Bond (or one or more 
predecessor bonds) is registered at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for such 
interest specified in the provisions of this Resolution. 

Any interest on any Bond which is payable, but is not punctually paid or duly provided for, 
on any Interest Payment Date (herein called "Defaulted Interest") shall forthwith cease to be 
payable to the Holder on the relevant Regular Record Date solely by virtue of such Holder having 
been such Holder; and such Defaulted Interest may be paid by the Authority, at its election in 
each case, as provided in subparagraph A or B below: 

(a) The Authority may elect to make payment of any Defaulted Interest on the 
Bonds to the persons in whose names such Bonds are registered at the close of business on a 
Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fixed in the 
following manner. The Authority shall notify the Bond Registrar and the Trustee in writing of the 
amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on each Bond and the date of the proposed 
payment (which date shall be such as will enable the Bond Registrar and the Trustee to comply 
with the next sentence hereof), and at the same time the Authority shall deposit or cause to be 
deposited with the Paying Agent an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed 
to be paid in respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the 
Paying Agent for such deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment with the Bond Registrar, 
such money when deposited to be held in trust for the benefit of the persons entitled to such 
Defaulted Interest as in this subparagraph provided. Thereupon the Trustee shall fix a Special 
Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest which shall be not more than fifteen (15) 
nor less than ten (10) days prior to the date of the proposed payment and not less than ten (10) 
days after the receipt by the Trustee of the notice of the proposed payment. The Trustee shall 
promptly notify the Authority of such Special Record Date and, in the name and at the expense 
of the Authority, shall cause notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the 
Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, first-class postage prepaid, to each Holder at his 
address as it appears in the registration books maintained under Section 206 of this Resolution 
not less than ten (10) days prior to such Special Record Date. Notice of the proposed payment of 
such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor having been mailed as aforesaid, 
such Defaulted Interest shall be paid to the persons in whose names the Bonds (or their respective 
predecessor Bonds) are registered on such Special Record Date and shall no longer be payable 
pursuant to the following subparagraph B. 

(b) The Authority may make payment of any Defaulted Interest on the Bonds 
in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on 
which such Bonds may be listed and upon such notice as may be required by such exchange, if, 



25 

after notice given by the Authority to the Trustee of the proposed payment pursuant to this 
subparagraph, such payment shall be deemed practicable by the Trustee. 

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Section, each Bond delivered under this 
Resolution upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry all the rights 
to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such predecessor Bond and 
each such Bond shall bear interest from such date, that neither gain nor loss in interest shall result 
from such transfer, exchange or substitution. 

Section 204. Authentication of Bonds. Only such Bonds as shall have endorsed 
thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form hereinabove set forth, duly 
executed by the Bond Registrar, shall be entitled to any benefit or security under this Resolution. 
No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless and until such certificate of 
authentication on the Bond shall have been duly executed by the Bond Registrar, and such 
certificate of the Bond Registrar upon any such Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond 
has been duly authenticated and delivered under this Resolution. The Bond Registrar's 
certificate of authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have been duly executed if signed 
by an authorized signatory of the Bond Registrar, but it shall not be necessary that the same 
signatory sign the certificate of authentication on all of the Bonds that may be issued hereunder 
at any one time. 

Section 205. Exchange of Bonds. Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the designated 
office of the Bond Registrar, together with an assignment duly executed by the Holder or his 
attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, may, 
at the option of the Holder thereof, be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of 
Bonds of the same Series and maturity, of any authorized denomination or denominations, 
bearing interest at the same rate, and in the same form as the registered Bonds surrendered for 
exchange. 

The Authority shall make provision for the exchange of the Bonds at the designated office 
of the Bond Registrar. 

Section 206. Registration of Transfer of Bonds. Unless provided to the contrary in a 
Series Resolution, and as permitted by law, the Bond Registrar shall keep books for the 
registration and registration of transfer of Bonds as provided in this Resolution. The Bond 
Registrar shall evidence acceptance of the duties, obligations and responsibilities of Bond 
Registrar by execution of the certificate of authentication on the Bonds. 

The transfer of any Bond may be registered only upon the books kept for the registration 
of transfer of Bonds upon surrender thereof to the Bond Registrar together with an assignment 
duly executed by the Holder or his attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be 
satisfactory to the Bond Registrar. Upon any such registration of transfer the Authority shall 
execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange for such Bond a new 
registered Bond or Bonds, registered in the name of the transferee, of any denomination or 
denominations authorized by the applicable Series Resolution, in the aggregate principal amount 
equal to the principal amount of such Bond surrendered or exchanged, of the same Series and 
maturity and bearing interest at the same rate. 

In all cases in which Bonds shall be exchanged or the transfer of Bonds shall be registered 
hereunder, the Authority shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver at 
the earliest practicable time Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. All Bonds 



26 

surrendered in any such exchange or registration of transfer shall forthwith be canceled by the 
Bond Registrar and disposed of in accordance with its record retention policy then in effect. No 
service charge shall be made for any registration of transfer or exchange of Bonds, but the 
Authority and the Bond Registrar may require payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or 
other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with any registration of transfer or 
exchange of Bonds. Neither the Authority nor the Bond Registrar shall be required (i) to issue, 
register the transfer of or exchange Bonds during a period beginning at the opening of business 
fifteen (15) days before the day of mailing of a notice of redemption of Bonds under Section 303 
of this Resolution and ending at the close of business on the day of such mailing or (ii) subject to 
the provisions of Article XII, to register the transfer of or exchange any Bond so selected for 
redemption in whole or in part. 

Section 207. Ownership of Bonds. The Authority, the Paying Agents, the Bond 
Registrar and any agent of the Authority, the Paying Agents and the Bond Registrar may treat the 
person in whose name any Bond is registered on the books of the Authority kept by the Bond 
Registrar pursuant to Section 206 hereof as the Holder of such Bond for the purpose of receiving 
payment of principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, such Bond, and for all other 
purposes whatsoever, whether or not such Bond be overdue, and, to the extent permitted by law, 
neither the Authority, any Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar nor any such agent shall be affected 
by any notice to the contrary. 

Section 208. Authorization and Issuance of Bonds. There shall be initially issued 
under and secured by this Resolution, in one or more series, revenue bonds of the Authority in 
the aggregate principal amount of up to Three Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($350,000,000.00), 
designated "Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2025" (the "2025 
Bonds"), for the purpose of providing funds, with other funds available therefor, (i) to ensure 
operational and investment control of the Virginia International Gateway Terminal by financing 
and refinancing the costs of the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) to fund debt service 
reserve accounts and (iii) to pay the cost of issuance of such port facilities revenue bonds. The 
proceeds of the 2025 Bonds may be used to finance the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment 
or to refinance a portion of the 2025 Notes that were used to provide interim financing for the First 
Amendment Upfront Rent Payment.  No proceeds of the 2025 Bonds shall be used to pay any 
costs associated with the (i) defeasing the Outstanding Bonds not defeased from unencumbered 
cash and investments on hand, (ii) terminating the Outstanding Equipment Leases and (iii) paying 
any costs directly related thereto.  Such 2025 Bonds shall be issued in such principal amount (not 
exceeding the maximum amount authorized hereby) as Serial Bonds or Term Bonds, or a 
combination thereof, as taxable or tax-exempt obligations, or a combination thereof, shall be 
dated and shall be stated to mature, subject to the right of prior optional and mandatory sinking 
fund redemption, if any, on the dates and in the principal amounts, shall have such other details, 
and shall be sold in such manner to such purchasers upon the payment of such purchase price, 
and the proceeds of such 2025 Bonds shall be applied for the purposes set forth above, all as 
may be provided by the applicable Series Resolution or Resolutions. 

Each of the 2025 Bonds shall be executed substantially in the form and manner 
hereinabove set forth and shall be deposited with the Trustee, but prior to or simultaneously with 
the delivery of said 2025 Bonds by the Trustee to or upon the order of the purchasers thereof, 
there shall be filed with the Trustee the following: 

(a) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the 
Authority, of this Resolution; 



27 

(b) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the 
Authority, of the Series Resolution or Resolutions adopted by the Board and, referred to above; 

(c) a copy of the fully executed 2025 Lease Amendment; 

(d) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the 2025 Bonds have been 
issued by the Authority and constitute valid obligations of the Authority; and 

(e) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) this Resolution 
has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance of the 2025 Bonds has been duly 
and validly authorized and all conditions precedent to the delivery of such 2025 Bonds have been 
fulfilled, and (ii) no provision of this Resolution or of such 2025 Bonds results in or constitutes a 
default under any agreement, indenture or other instrument of which such General Counsel has 
knowledge and to which the Authority is a party or by which the Authority is or may be bound. 

When (i) the documents mentioned in clauses (a) to (e), inclusive, of this Section shall 
have been filed with the Trustee and (ii) the 2025 Bonds shall have been executed and 
authenticated as required by this Resolution, the Authority shall deliver such 2025 Bonds to the 
Trustee and the Trustee shall deliver such 2025 Bonds at one time to or upon the order of the 
purchasers thereof, but only upon payment to the Trustee of the purchase price of such 2025 
Bonds so delivered. 

Simultaneously with the delivery of the 2025 Bonds and the deposit of said proceeds with 
the Trustee, the proceeds (including accrued interest, if any) of said 2025 Bonds shall be applied 
by the Trustee as provided in the applicable Series Resolution or Resolutions. 

Section 209. Additional Bonds. Additional Series of Bonds of the Authority (in this 
Section sometimes called "Additional Bonds"), in addition to the Series of Bonds issued under 
Sections 208 and 210 of this Article, may be issued from time to time under and secured by this 
Resolution, subject to the conditions hereinafter provided in this Section, for the purpose of 
providing funds, with any other available funds, for (i) completing payment of the cost of any 
Project for which Bonds shall have theretofore been issued pursuant to this Section 209 or (ii) 
paying all or any portion of the cost of additional Projects. Before any Series of Bonds shall be 
issued under this Section, the Board shall adopt a Series Resolution authorizing the issuance of 
such Series of Bonds, fixing the amount and the details thereof and the purpose thereof and, if 
for the purpose of paying the cost of any new Project, describing in brief and general terms the 
facilities to be acquired or constructed and approving the estimate of the cost thereof. Such Series 
of Bonds shall be appropriately designated, shall be dated, shall be stated to mature on such date 
or dates not exceeding the maximum term then permitted by law, in such principal amount or 
amounts, shall bear interest at a rate or rates not exceeding the maximum rate then permitted by 
law which shall be payable and may be made redeemable at such times and prices (subject to 
the provisions of Article III of this Resolution), all as may be provided in the Series Resolution. 
Except as to any differences in the rate or rates of interest, the maturities or the provisions for 
redemption and except for such differences, if any, respecting the use of moneys in the various 
subaccounts in the Reserve Account, such series of Additional Bonds shall be on a parity with 
and shall be entitled to the same benefit and security of this Resolution as all other Bonds 
theretofore or thereafter issued under this Resolution. 

Prior to or simultaneously with the delivery of such Bonds by the Trustee to or upon the 
order of the purchasers thereof, there shall be filed with the Trustee the following: 



28 

(a) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority 
of the Series Resolution adopted by the Board providing for the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds, approving the sale of such Bonds to the purchasers thereof and directing the delivery of 
such bonds to or upon the order of such purchasers upon payment of the purchase price therein 
set forth; 

(b) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) the Series 
Resolution referred to in clause (a) of this Section has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and 
the issuance of such Bonds has been duly and validly authorized and all conditions precedent to 
the delivery of such Bonds have been fulfilled, (ii) no provision of such Bonds or of the Series 
Resolution authorizing such Bonds results in or constitutes a default under any agreement, 
indenture or other instrument of which such General Counsel has knowledge and to which the 
Authority is a party or by which the Authority is or may be bound, and (iii) all permits, approvals, 
franchises, privileges and legal clearances under federal, Commonwealth or local laws and from 
federal, Commonwealth or local entities or officers necessary for the acquisition, construction, 
reconstruction and control of the Project, and then obtainable, have been obtained, and that the 
Authority has full and lawful authority to operate and maintain the Port Facilities, including the 
Projects, as provided in this Resolution; 

(c) an Officer's Certificate setting forth: 

(i) the sum of Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital 
Expenditures and the sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator 
Capital Expenditures, for the Fiscal Year next preceding the Fiscal Year in 
which such Bonds are delivered; 

(ii) the estimated maximum Aggregate Principal and Interest 
Requirements for any Fiscal Year following the Fiscal Year in which such 
Bonds are to be delivered, excluding from such computation the annual 
debt service on such Bonds then proposed to be delivered; and 

(iii) (A) the estimated Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements, 
including for the Additional Bonds to be issued, for the current Fiscal Year, 
and each Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the fifth complete Fiscal 
Year following the last estimated Completion Date for such Projects, 

(B) the estimated amount of the maximum Aggregate Principal and 
Interest Requirements for any Fiscal Year following the Fiscal Year in which 
such Bonds are to be delivered, including in all such computations the 
annual debt service on such Bonds then proposed to be delivered, and 

(C) the estimated amount of the average annual Aggregate Principal 
and Interest Requirements, including for the Additional Bonds to be issued, 
for the period beginning on the Closing of such Bonds proposed to be 
delivered and ending on the final stated maturity date of such Bonds 
proposed to be delivered; and 

 
(d) a report of the Management Consultant setting forth its estimate of the Net 

Revenue, Adjusted Net Revenue and Port Operator Capital Expenditures of the Authority (i) for 
the current Fiscal Year and each Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the fifth complete Fiscal 



29 

Year and (ii) for the sixth complete Fiscal Year, in both cases following the last estimated 
Completion Date for such Projects. For purposes of its report, the Management Consultant may 
rely upon a certificate of the Executive Director of the Authority as to his estimate of the amount 
of Current Expenses that will be paid from sources other than Gross Revenues, and the 
Management Consultant shall accept and apply such estimate in projecting the Net Revenue, 
Adjusted Net Revenue and Port Operator Capital Expenditures of the Authority in the applicable 
periods. 

For purposes of paragraphs (c)(iii)(A), (c)(iii)(B) and (c)(iii)(C) above, the officer of the 
Authority executing the Officer's Certificate shall estimate the amount Senior Obligations due in 
each future Fiscal Year by assuming that the Percentage Change for each future Lease Year (as 
defined in the Senior Lease) is equal to the five-year average of the Percentage Change for the 
most recently completed five Lease Years. 

When (i) the documents mentioned in clauses (a) to (d), inclusive, of this Section shall 
have been filed with the Trustee, and (ii) the Additional Bonds described in the Series Resolution 
mentioned in clause (a) of this Section shall have been executed and authenticated as required 
by this Resolution, the Authority shall deliver such Bonds to the Trustee and the Trustee shall 
deliver such Bonds at one time to or upon the order of the purchasers thereof but only upon 
payment to the Trustee of the purchase price of such Bonds. 

The Trustee shall not deliver any such Additional Bonds issued for a Project to or upon 
the order of the purchasers thereof unless the Authority certifies to the Trustee that either 

(I) for the Fiscal Year referred to in the certificate mentioned in clause (i) of paragraph 
(c) of this Section, the sum of Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and the 
sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures set forth therein shall 
be not less than one hundred ten percent (110%) and one hundred twenty-five percent (125%), 
respectively, of the amount set forth in the certificate mentioned in clause (iii)(B) of paragraph (c) 
of this Section; or 

(II) (A) the sum of Net Revenue the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and the 
sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures for the current Fiscal 
Year and each Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the fifth complete Fiscal Year following the 
last estimated Completion Date for such Projects (as shown in clause (i) of the report mentioned 
in paragraph (d) of this Section) shall be not less than one hundred ten percent (110%) and one 
hundred twenty-five percent (125%), respectively, of the respective amounts for the 
corresponding Fiscal Years set forth in clause (iii)(A) of the certificate mentioned in paragraph (c); 
and 

(B) the sum of Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and 
the sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures for 
the sixth complete Fiscal Year following the last estimated Completion Date for 
such Projects (as shown in the report of the Management Consultant and referred 
to in clause (ii) of paragraph (d) of this Section) shall be not less than one hundred 
ten percent (110%) and one hundred twenty-five percent (125%), respectively, of 
the amount set forth in clause (iii)(C) of the certificate mentioned in paragraph (c) 
of this Section. 



30 

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 209, in the case of the following 
described Additional Bonds the foregoing requirements and provisions respecting the issuance 
thereof shall be modified as hereinafter indicated: 

(A) Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness. If any of the Additional Bonds of the 
Series to be issued constitute Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness or Balloon Long-
Term Indebtedness and Variable Rate Indebtedness, then for purposes of the 
amounts to be shown in clauses (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (c) above, the Authority 
shall adjust such amounts as if the principal amount of such Bonds were to be 
amortized in substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest over 
a term equal to the lesser of (i) twenty-five (25) years or (ii) the weighted average 
estimated useful life of the facilities comprising the Project to be financed from the 
proceeds of such Bonds, as determined by the Engineer, the interest rate used for 
such computation being that rate at which it is assumed that the Authority could 
reasonably expect to borrow by issuing such Bonds with such term and level 
Principal and Interest Requirements for each Bond Year, such reasonable 
expectations being established by an Officer's Certificate and a letter of a banking 
or investment banking or financial advisory institution knowledgeable in financial 
matters relating to the Authority confirming the interest rate assumption as 
reasonable. 

(B) Optional Tender Indebtedness. If any of the Additional Bonds of the Series 
to be issued constitute Optional Tender Indebtedness, then (1) for purposes of the 
amounts to be shown in clauses (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (c) above, the options of 
the Holders of such Bonds to tender the same for payment prior to their stated 
maturity or maturities shall be ignored, (2) if such Bonds also constitute Variable 
Rate Indebtedness or Variable Rate Indebtedness and Balloon Long-Term 
Indebtedness, the Authority shall adjust such amounts shown in clauses (ii) and 
(iii) of paragraph (c) above as provided in paragraph (C) below, (3) such Bonds 
shall have been rated in one of the three highest rating categories (without 
reference to gradations of such categories such as "plus" or "minus") by either 
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. or S&P Global Ratings, and (4) any obligation the 
Authority may have, other than its obligation on such Bonds (which shall be uniform 
as to all Holders thereof), to reimburse any person for its having extended a credit 
or liquidity facility such as a Bond Insurance Policy, letter of credit, line of credit or 
similar arrangement shall be subordinated to the obligation of the Authority on the 
Bonds and be payable in accordance with the provisions of Section 504(a) or 
504(b). 

(C) Variable Rate Indebtedness. If any of the Additional Bonds of the Series to 
be issued constitute Variable Rate Indebtedness, then for purposes of the amounts 
shown in clauses (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (d) above, the interest rate used in such 
computation shall be the greatest of (1) the interest rate for the first period of 
calculation of interest on such Bonds, (2) the fixed interest rate established as 
provided in the case of paragraph (A) above for Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness, 
and (3) any stated cap on fluctuations in the interest rate on such Bonds. 

Simultaneously with the delivery of such Bonds and the deposit of said proceeds with the 
Trustee, the proceeds (excluding accrued interest) of such Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee 
as follows: 



31 

(1) if so provided by the Series Resolution mentioned in clause (a) of this 
Section, the amount specified in such resolution, which amount shall not be greater than that 
required, with the accrued interest, to pay all or a portion of the interest which will accrue on such 
Bonds from their date to the latest estimated Completion Date of any Project, and, if so provided 
by such resolution, for not exceeding one year after such estimated Completion Date shall be 
deposited to the credit of the Debt Service Account; 

(2) if and to the extent so provided by the Series Resolution mentioned in 
clause (a) of this Section, the amount specified in such resolution (which shall be not less than 
the minimum amount required to make the balance to the credit of the Debt Service Reserve 
Account equal to the amount of the Reserve Account Requirement on account of all Bonds 
Outstanding and such Additional Bonds) shall be deposited to the credit of the Debt Service 
Reserve Account or, in the case of any Series of Bonds as shall constitute Balloon Long-Term 
Indebtedness or Optional Tender Indebtedness in a segregated subaccount therein; and 

(3) the balance of the proceeds of such Bonds shall be deposited to the credit 
of a special account in the Construction Fund, to be created with a Depositary, appropriately 
designated and held in trust for the purpose of paying the cost of such Project. 

The amount received as accrued interest shall be deposited by the Trustee to the credit 
of the Debt Service Account. 

Section 210. Refunding Bonds. Additional Series of Bonds of the Authority (in this 
Section sometimes called "Refunding Bonds"), including Crossover Refunding Bonds, may be 
also issued from time to time under and secured by this Resolution, subject to the conditions 
hereinafter provided in this Section, for the purpose of providing funds for refunding all or, if then 
permitted by law, any Bonds of any one or more Series of Bonds or other Indebtedness then 
Outstanding, including the payment of any redemption premium thereon and interest which will 
accrue on such Bonds to the redemption date or stated maturity date or dates and any expenses 
in connection with such refunding. Before any such Series of Refunding Bonds shall be issued 
under the provisions of this Section, the Board shall adopt a Series Resolution authorizing the 
issuance of such Bonds, fixing the amount and the details thereof and describing the Bonds to be 
refunded. Such Refunding Bonds shall be appropriately designated, shall be dated, shall be 
stated to mature at such times and in such principal amount or amounts, shall bear interest at a 
rate or rates, not exceeding the maximum rate then permitted by law, and may be made 
redeemable at such times and prices (subject to the provisions of Article III of this Resolution), all 
as may be provided in the Series Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Series of Refunding 
Bonds. Except as to any differences in the maturities thereof or the rate or rates of interest or the 
provisions for redemption and except for such differences, if any, respecting the use of moneys 
in various subaccounts in the Reserve Account such Refunding Bonds shall be on a parity with 
and shall be entitled to the same benefit and security of this Resolution as all other Bonds 
theretofore issued under this Resolution. 

Prior to or simultaneously with the delivery of such Bonds by the Trustee to or upon the 
order of the purchasers thereof, there shall be filed with the Trustee the following: 

(a) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the 
Authority, of the Series Resolution adopted by the Board providing for the issuance of such 
Refunding Bonds, approving the sale of such Bonds, and directing the delivery of such Bonds to 
or upon payment of the purchase price therein set forth; and 



32 

(b) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (1) the Series 
Resolution authorizing such Refunding Bonds has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the 
issuance of such Refunding Bonds has been duly and validly authorized and all conditions 
precedent to the delivery of such Refunding Bonds have been fulfilled and (ii) no provision of such 
Refunding Bonds or the Series Resolution authorizing such Refunding Bonds results in or 
constitutes a default under any agreement, indenture or other instrument of which such General 
Counsel has knowledge and to which the Authority is a party or by which the Authority is or may 
be bound. 

When (i) the documents mentioned in clauses (a) and (b) of this Section shall have been 
filed with the Trustee, and (ii) the Refunding Bonds described in the Series Resolution mentioned 
in clause (a) of this section have been executed and authenticated as required by this Resolution, 
the Authority shall deliver such Bonds to the Trustee for delivery, at one time to or upon the order 
of the purchasers thereof, but only upon payment to the Trustee of the purchase price of such 
Bonds. The Trustee shall not deliver such unless in the determination of a firm that is a nationally 
recognized verification agent or an independent certified public accountant, the proceeds 
(excluding accrued interest) of such Refunding Bonds, together with the amount, if any, withdrawn 
from the Debt Service Account or the Reserve Account or any other money deposited with the 
Trustee for such purpose, and the interest that shall accrue upon any Government Obligations 
acquired pursuant to clause (2) below of this Section, shall be not less than an amount sufficient 
to pay the principal of and the redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds or other Indebtedness 
to be refunded and the interest which will accrue thereon to the respective redemption and 
maturity dates, and the expenses incident to such refunding (in the case of Crossover Refunding 
Bonds, the consultant shall address the sufficiency of the escrow to pay the principal and interest 
on the Crossover Refunding Bonds to and including the redemption date and thereafter the Bonds 
or other Indebtedness to be refunded), and 

(A) in the case of a refunding of Bonds, during the years in which any of the 
Bonds not so refunded are Outstanding, the maximum Principal and Interest 
Requirements for any Bond Year thereafter on account of all Bonds Outstanding, 
after the issuance of such Refunding Bonds and the redemption or provision for 
payment of the Bonds to be refunded, shall not exceed the maximum Principal and 
Interest Requirements for any Bond Year thereafter on account of all the Bonds 
Outstanding, including the Bonds to be refunded, immediately prior to the issuance 
of such Refunding Bonds. In applying the foregoing test, (i) if any of the Bonds 
Outstanding immediately prior to or after the issuance of the Refunding Bonds to 
be issued constitute Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness, Optional Tender 
Indebtedness or Variable Rate Indebtedness, the conventions employed in 
Section 209(A), (B) or (C), shall be applied in determining the Principal and Interest 
Requirements thereof and shall be utilized in determining the Principal and Interest 
Requirements of the Refunding Bonds to be issued, or 

(B) in any refunding of Indebtedness, the Authority shall demonstrate 
satisfaction of the tests for the issuance of Bonds under Section 209 (I) or (II) of 
this Resolution as applied mutatis mutandis to the Refunding Bonds. 

Simultaneously with the delivery of such Refunding Bonds, the Trustee may withdraw (a) 
from the Debt Service Account, such amount, if any, as may have been deposited to the credit of 
the Debt Service Account for the payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds to be 
redeemed or paid and (b) from the Reserve Account, such amount, if any, as will exceed the 
Reserve Account Requirement in respect of the Bonds Outstanding immediately following the 



33 

issuance of such Refunding Bonds and the redemption or provision for payment of the Bonds 
being refunded, and, as directed in writing by the Authority, the Trustee shall apply, after provision 
for payment of the costs incident to such refunding, the proceeds of such Refunding Bonds 
(including accrued interest) and any other money provided for such purpose, as follows: 

(1) the accrued interest received as part of the proceeds of such Refunding Bonds 
shall be deposited to the credit of the Debt Service Account; 

(2) an amount which, together with the interest that shall accrue on the Government 
Obligations acquired pursuant to this clause (2), shall be sufficient to pay the principal of and 
redemption premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds to be refunded hereunder shall be 
deposited by the Trustee to the credit of a special redemption fund, appropriately designated, to 
be held in trust by the Trustee or a Depositary for the sole and exclusive purpose of paying such 
principal, redemption premium and interest; and money held for the credit of such redemption 
fund shall, as nearly as may be practicable and reasonable, be invested and reinvested by the 
Trustee or such Depository, as the case may be, in Government Obligations which shall mature 
or be subject to redemption by the holder thereof at the option of such holder, as the Authority 
shall determine to be necessary or desirable to effectuate the purpose of such Refunding Bonds 
as stated in the Series Resolution mentioned in clause (a) of this Section; 

(3) such amount shall be deposited to the credit of any Fund or Account established 
under Section 505 of this Resolution, as shall be required by reason of the issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds then proposed to be delivered and the Series Resolution authorizing the 
issuance of the Refunding Bonds under this Section (which amount shall be not less than the 
minimum amount required to make the balance to the credit of the Debt Service Reserve Account 
equal to the amount of the Reserve Account Requirement on account of all Series of Bonds 
Outstanding immediately after the issuance of the Refunding Bonds); and 

(4) any balance of such proceeds shall be deposited to the credit of the Debt Service 
Account; 

provided that if any of the Refunding Bonds are Crossover Refunding Bonds, then no amounts 
derived from such Crossover Refunding Bonds shall be applied by the Trustee until the Crossover 
Refunding Date except as otherwise provided in the applicable Series Resolution. 

Section 211. Temporary Bonds. Until definitive Bonds are ready for delivery, there may 
be executed, and upon request of the Authority, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, 
in lieu of definitive Bonds and subject to the same limitations and conditions, typewritten printed, 
engraved or lithographed temporary Bonds, in the form of fully registered Bonds in the minimum 
denomination authorized for the definitive Bonds and whole multiple thereof, substantially of the 
tenor of the Bonds set forth in this Resolution and the Series Resolutions providing for the 
issuance of the definitive Bonds and with such appropriate omissions, insertions and variations 
as may be required. 

Until definitive Bonds are ready for delivery, any temporary Bond may, if so provided by 
the Authority by resolution, be exchanged at the designated office of the Bond Registrar, without 
charge to the Holder thereof, for an equal aggregate principal amount of temporary fully registered 
Bonds of authorized denominations, of like tenor, of the same Series and maturity and bearing 
interest at the same rate. 



34 

If temporary Bonds shall be issued, the Authority shall cause the definitive Bonds to be 
prepared and to be executed and delivered to the Bond Registrar, and the Bond Registrar, upon 
presentation to it at its designated office of any temporary Bond, shall cancel the same and 
authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor at the place designated by the Holder, without 
charge to the Holder thereof, a definitive Bond or Bonds of an equal aggregate principal amount, 
of the same Series and maturity and bearing interest at the same rate as the temporary Bond 
surrendered. Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall in all respects be entitled to the same 
benefit and security of this Resolution as the definitive Bonds to be issued and authenticated 
hereunder. 

Section 212. Mutilated Bonds. Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond 
secured hereby shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Authority shall cause 
to be executed, and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like date 
and tenor in exchange and substitution for and upon the cancellation of such mutilated Bond or 
in lieu of and in substitution for such Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, and the Holder shall pay the 
reasonable expenses and charges of the Authority and the Bond Registrar in connection therewith 
and, in case of a Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, the Holder shall file with the Bond Registrar 
evidence satisfactory to it and to the Authority that such Bond was destroyed, stolen or lost, and 
of his ownership thereof, and shall furnish the Authority and the Bond Registrar indemnity 
satisfactory to them. 

Every Bond issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section in exchange or substitution 
for any Bond which is mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost shall constitute an additional contractual 
obligation of the Authority, whether or not the destroyed, stolen or lost Bond shall be found at any 
time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits hereof equally and 
proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued under this Resolution. All Bonds shall be 
held and owned upon the express condition that the foregoing provisions are exclusive with 
respect to the replacement. or payment of mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost Bonds, and shall 
preclude any and all other rights or remedies, notwithstanding any law or statute existing or 
hereafter enacted to the contrary with respect to the replacement or payment of negotiable 
instruments or other securities without their surrender. 

ARTICLE III. 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 301. Redemption of Bonds by the Authority. The Bonds issued under the 
provisions of this Resolution may be made subject to mandatory, extraordinary mandatory and 
optional redemption by the Authority, either in whole or in part, and at such times and prices, as 
may be provided in the respective Series Resolutions respecting such Bonds. 

Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. The Bonds of each Series shall be 
redeemed only in, or in whole multiples of, the minimum denomination authorized by the Series 
Resolution. In selecting Bonds of a Series for redemption, the Authority shall treat each bond as 
representing that number of Bonds which is obtained by dividing the principal amount of such 
Bond by the minimum authorized denomination for such Series. If less than all of the Bonds of a 
Series shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed 
shall be selected by the Authority by such method as the Authority in its sole discretion deems 
fair and appropriate. 

Section 303. Redemption Notice. At least thirty (30) days before the redemption date 
of any Bonds, whether such redemption be in whole or in part, the Authority shall cause a notice 



35 

of any such redemption signed by the Authority to be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, to all 
Holders owning Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part, but any defect in such notice or the 
failure so to mail any such notice to any Holder owning any Bonds shall not affect the validity of 
the proceedings for the redemption of the Bonds. Each such notice shall set forth the Bonds or 
portions thereof to be redeemed, the date fixed for redemption, the Redemption Price to be paid, 
the Series and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed and, if less than all of the Bonds of any 
one maturity of a Series then Outstanding shall be called for redemption, the distinctive numbers 
and letters, if any of such Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in 
part only, the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. If any Bond is to be 
redeemed in part only, the notice of redemption shall state also that on or after the redemption 
date, upon surrender of such Bond, a new Bond in principal amount equal to the unredeemed 
portion of such Bond will be issued. 

Any notice of optional redemption given pursuant to this Section may state that it is 
conditional upon receipt by the Trustee of moneys sufficient to pay the redemption price of such 
Bonds or upon the satisfaction of any other condition, or that it may be rescinded upon the 
occurrence of any other event, and any conditional notice so given may be rescinded at any time 
before payment of such Redemption Price if any such condition so specified is not satisfied or if 
any such other event occurs. Notice of such rescission shall be given by the Trustee to affected 
owners of Bonds as promptly as practicable upon the failure of such condition or the occurrence 
of such other event. 

Section 304. Effect of Calling for Redemption. On the date fixed for redemption, notice 
having been mailed in the manner and under the conditions hereinabove provided, the Bonds or 
portions thereof called for redemption shall be due and payable at the Redemption Price provided 
therefore plus accrued interest to such date. If money or Government Obligations, or a 
combination of both, sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus 
accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, are held by the Bond Registrar in trust 
for the Holders of Bonds to be redeemed, interest on the Bonds called for redemption shall cease 
to accrue; such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any benefits or security under this Resolution 
or to be deemed Outstanding; and the Holders of such Bonds shall have no rights in respect 
thereof except to receive payment of the Redemption Price thereof, plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. Bonds and portions of Bonds for which irrevocable instructions to pay or to 
call for redemption on one or more specified dates have been given to the Bond Registrar in form 
satisfactory to it shall not thereafter be deemed to be Outstanding under this Resolution and shall 
cease to be entitled to the security of or any rights under this Resolution, other than rights to 
receive payment of the Redemption Price thereof and accrued interest thereon, to be given notice 
of redemption in the manner provided in Section 303, and, to the extent hereinafter provided, to 
receive Bonds for any unredeemed portions of predecessor Bonds if money or Government 
Obligations, or a combination of both, sufficient to pay the Redemption Price of such Bonds or 
portions thereof, together with accrued interest thereon to the date upon which such Bonds are 
to be paid or redeemed, are held in separate accounts by a Depositary, the Paying Agents or the 
Bond Registrar in trust for the holders of such Bonds. 

Section 305. Redemption Portion of Bonds. If a portion of an Outstanding Bond shall 
be selected for redemption, the Holder thereof or his attorney or legal representative shall present 
and surrender such Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the principal amount thereof so 
called for redemption and the redemption premium, if any, on such principal amount, and the 
Authority shall execute and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to or upon the order 
of such Holder or his legal representative, without charge therefor, for the unredeemed portion of 



36 

the principal amount of the predecessor Bond so surrendered, a Bond of the same maturity and 
bearing interest at the same rate. 

Section 306. Cancellation. Bonds so redeemed, presented and surrendered shall be 
destroyed and canceled by the Bond Registrar in accordance with its record retention policy then 
if effect. 

Section 307. Use of Government Obligations to Redeem Bonds. For purposes of all 
Sections in this Article, Government Obligations shall be deemed to be sufficient to pay or redeem 
Bonds on a specified date if the principal of and the interest on such Government Obligations, 
when due, will be sufficient to pay on such date the Redemption Price of, and the interest accruing 
on, such Bonds to such date. 

ARTICLE IV. 
CONSTRUCTION FUND 

Section 401. Construction Fund. A fund is hereby established and designated "Virginia 
Port Authority General Revenue Bonds Construction Fund", to be held by a Depositary to the 
credit of which such deposits shall be made as are required by the provisions of Series 
Resolutions. Any money received by the Authority from any other source, except appropriations 
from the Commonwealth (including proceeds of Commonwealth bonds and any interest earned 
thereon), for the payment of the cost of a Project shall be deposited to the credit of an appropriate 
account established within the Construction Fund. Different accounts for different Projects may 
be established with different Depositaries, in which case the provisions of this Resolution, 
including especially this Article IV, shall apply to each such account as though it were the entire 
Construction Fund. 

The money in the Construction Fund shall be held by the Depositary in trust and, subject 
to the provisions of Section 406 of this Resolution, shall be applied to the payment of the cost of 
the Project and, pending such application, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the 
Holders of the Bonds issued and Outstanding under this Resolution and for the further security of 
such Holders until paid out or transferred as herein provided. 

Section 402. Payments from Construction Fund. Payment of the cost of each Project 
shall be made from the appropriate account within the Construction Fund and, if received, from 
any appropriations from the Commonwealth (including proceeds of Commonwealth bonds and 
any interest earned thereon) lawfully available therefor. All payments from the Construction Fund 
shall be subject to the provisions and restrictions set forth in this Article, and the Authority 
covenants that it will not cause or permit to be paid from the Construction Fund any sums except 
in accordance with such provisions and restrictions. 

Section 403. Cost of Projects. For the purpose of this Resolution the cost of each 
Project shall embrace such costs as are eligible costs within the purview of the Act, and, without 
intending thereby to limit or restrict any proper definition of such cost, shall include the following: 

(a) obligations previously incurred or to be incurred by the Authority for labor, 
materials and services and to contractors, builders and others in connection with the providing of 
the Project, for machinery and equipment, for necessary water and sewer lines and connections, 
utilities and landscaping, for the restoration or relocation of any property damaged or destroyed 
in connection with such construction, for the removal or relocation of any structures and for the 
clearing of land; 



37 

(b) the cost of acquiring by purchase or eminent domain, if such acquisition 
shall be deemed expedient, such lands, property, rights, rights of way, easements, franchises and 
other interests as may be deemed necessary or convenient by the Authority for the providing of 
the Project (including the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment), the cost of wetlands 
mitigation, other environmental costs, the costs of acquiring options and partial payments thereon, 
the cost of demolishing or removing any buildings or structures on land so acquired, including the 
cost of acquiring any land to which such buildings or structures may be moved and the amount of 
any damages incident to or consequent upon the construction of the Project; 

(c) the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee, any Depositary, the 
Bond Registrar and the Paying Agents for the payment of principal of and redemption premium, 
if any, and interest on the Bonds related to a Project to be the subject of construction until the 
Completion Date and if deemed advisable by the Authority for up to one year thereafter if in the 
written opinion of Bond Counsel to the Authority such will not result in the interest on the Bonds, 
or any of them, becoming subject to federal income tax; 

(d) the cost of borings and other preliminary investigations to determine 
foundation or other conditions, expenses necessary incident to determining the feasibility or 
practicability of the providing of the Project, and fees and expenses of engineers, architects and 
consultants for making studies, surveys and estimates of costs and of revenues and other 
estimates, and fees and expenses of engineers and architects for preparing plans and 
specifications and supervising construction as well as for the performance of all other duties of 
engineers and architects set forth herein in relation to the providing of the Project and the issuance 
of bonds therefor; 

(e) legal expenses and fees, financing charges, costs of audits and of 
preparing and issuing the Bonds, and all other items of expense not elsewhere in this Section 
specified incident to the providing of the Project, the financing thereof, the acquisition of lands, 
property rights, rights of way, easements, franchises and interests in or relating to lands, including 
abstracts of title, opinions of title, title insurance, cost of surveys and other expenses in connection 
with such acquisition, and expenses of administration properly chargeable to the acquisition of 
property and the providing of the Project; and 

(f) reimbursement for any obligation or expense heretofore or hereafter 
incurred or paid by the Authority for any of the foregoing purposes, including the repayment of 
any loans or advances, heretofore or hereafter made to the Authority. 

Section 404. Requisitions on Construction Fund. Payments from the Construction 
Fund shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Except as provided below, 
before any such payment shall be made, the Authority shall file with the Depositary thereof: 

(a) a requisition, signed by any fiscal officer of the Authority who shall be 
designated by the Board for such purpose, stating: 

(i) the item number of each such payment, 

(ii) the name of the person, firm or corporation to whom each such 
payment is due, 

(iii) the respective amounts to be paid, 



38 

(iv) the purpose by general classification for which each obligation to 
be paid was incurred, 

(v) that obligations in the stated amounts have been incurred by the 
Authority and are presently due and payable and that each item thereof is a proper charge against 
the Construction Fund and has not been paid, 

(vi) that there has not been filed with or served upon the Authority notice 
of any lien, right to lien or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right of any such persons, firms 
or corporations to receive payment of, the respective amounts stated in such requisition which 
has not been released or will not be released simultaneously with the payment of such obligation, 
and 

(vii) that such requisition contains no item representing payment on 
account of any percentage which the Authority is at the date of such requisition entitled to retain 
and 

(b) as to obligations payable to contractors on account of construction costs or 
to vendors on account of land or interests in land, a certificate signed by the Engineer and 
attached to such requisition, certifying its approval thereof. 

(c) Upon receipt of each requisition and accompanying certificate, the 
Depositary shall pay each such obligation, or reimburse the Authority upon receipt of satisfactory 
evidence that the Authority shall have paid the same from other available moneys. In making such 
payments the Depositary may rely upon such requisitions and accompanying certificates. If for 
any reason the Authority should decide prior to the payment of any item in a requisition not to pay 
such item, it shall give written notice of such decision to the Depositary and thereupon the 
Depositary shall not make such payment but shall redeposit the amount of such item to the credit 
of the Construction Fund. Any requisition delivered to the Depositary pursuant to the provisions 
of this Section shall be retained by it for a period of not less than five (5) years, subject at all 
reasonable times to examination by the Authority and the Trustee. 

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no requisition shall be required for (i) the 
making of the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) the redemption of any interim financing 
that made the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment, or (iii) paying the costs of issuance for 
the 2025 Bonds. 

Section 405. Cost Control of Projects. The Authority covenants that the cost of each 
Project shall be carefully controlled to prevent overruns in such cost and to assure that the 
proceeds of Bonds issued therefor will be sufficient, with any other funds then or to be made 
available, to pay such cost. 

Section 406. Disposition of Construction Fund Balance. When each Project shall 
have been completed, which fact shall be evidenced to the Depositary and the Trustee by a 
certificate, stating the Completion Date, signed by the Executive Director of the Authority and 
approved by the Engineer, stating that requisitions have been made for the payment of all 
obligations which are payable in respect of the Project from the Construction Fund, and 
accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that there are no mechanics', laborers', 
contractors' or materialmen's liens on any property constituting a part of the Port Facilities or on 
file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be a perfected lien against any 
part of the Port Facilities and that the time within which such liens can be filed has expired, the 



39 

balance in the Construction Fund not reserved by the Authority, with the approval of the Engineer, 
for the payment of any remaining part of the cost of the Project shall be credited first, if permitted 
by the applicable Series Resolution and not prohibited by law, to the cost of any other Project 
which shall have been undertaken (but only upon receipt by the Authority of an approving opinion 
of Bond Counsel) and second, if there is no such other Project or if application to the cost thereof 
is not permitted or is prohibited, then to the Debt Service Account for the payment, purchase or 
redemption of Bonds. Moneys transferred to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Account 
shall be accompanied by an opinion of Bond Counsel to the Authority, and no investment or 
application of such moneys shall be made that would be contrary to the restrictions or limitations 
set forth in such opinion. 

ARTICLE V. 
REVENUES AND FUNDS 

Section 501. Rates and Charges. (a) The Authority covenants that it will fix, charge and 
collect, or cause to be fixed, charged and collected, by Port Operators, rates, fees and charges 
for the use of and for the services furnished or to be furnished by the Port Facilities that will be 
sufficient to produce in each Bond Year, (I) one hundred percent (100%) of Current Expenses, 
(II) the greater of (i) Aggregate Net Revenue of the Authority which shall be not less than one 
hundred ten percent (110%) and (ii) Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue of the Authority which shall 
be not less than one hundred twenty-five percent (125%), in each case, of the Aggregate Principal 
and Interest Requirements for such Bond Year, and (III) the sum of Net Revenue of the Authority 
and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures which shall not be less than one hundred percent 
(100%) of the sum of the Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements for such Bond Year plus 
the amount, if any, by which any Debt Service Reserve Account fails to contain its Reserve 
Account Requirement. 

(b) The Authority further covenants that if in any Bond Year the Aggregate Net 
Revenue, Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue or sum of Net Revenue of the Authority and Port 
Operator Capital Expenditures shall be less than the respective amounts required under 
paragraph (a) of this Section, it will, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the audit required by 
Section 713 of this Resolution, request the Management Consultant to make recommendations 
as to a revision of such rates, fees and charges or the methods of operation of the Port Facilities, 
which will result in producing the amounts so required as soon as practicable, and copies of such 
request and the recommendations of the Management Consultant shall be filed with the Trustee. 
The Authority covenants that promptly upon its receipt of such recommendations it shall review 
and consider such recommendations. 

(c) If the Authority shall comply with its covenant in paragraph (b) of this 
Section, any shortfall in the Aggregate Net Revenue, Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue or sum of 
Net Revenue of the Authority and Port Operator Capital Expenditures to meet the requirements 
of paragraph (a) of this Section will not constitute an Event of Default under this Resolution so 
long as no Event of Default under Section 801(a) or (b) shall occur. 

(d) The Authority further covenants that in order to comply with the provisions 
of this Section it shall take all action within its power to obtain approvals of any regulatory or 
supervisory authority in order to implement any rates, fees and charges required by the operation 
of this Section and that it will file timely requests or applications for any regulatory approvals, or 
other action necessary to the provisions of this Section and to comply with all applicable regulatory 
requirements. 



40 

Section 502. Annual Budget. The Authority covenants that it will cause an Annual 
Budget to be prepared for each Fiscal Year and to be approved and adopted in accordance with 
the then applicable law and procedures of the Commonwealth respecting the Authority. The 
Authority covenants that it will, on or before June 30 in each Fiscal Year, adopt an Annual Budget 
for the ensuing Fiscal Year of the Gross Revenues and Current Expenses of the Authority, which 
Annual Budget shall comply with the provisions of Section 501. Such Annual Budget shall also 
set forth the estimated amount to be deposited to the credit of the Senior Obligations Fund and 
the amount to be deposited to the Debt Service Fund and the Subordinate Obligations Fund in 
such ensuing Fiscal Year. In preparing the Annual Budget the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Authority shall use the average of the Percentage Change, as that term is defined in the Senior 
Lease, for the prior five years for determining the variable component of the Senior Obligations 
and the estimate of the amount to be deposited to the credit of the Senior Obligations Fund. The 
Annual Budget shall clearly set forth those items that are included in "Current Expenses" and 
"Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements" and are budgeted to be paid by the Authority 
from sources other than Gross Revenues. The Authority may at any time adopt an amended or 
supplemental budget for the remainder of the then current Fiscal Year. In preparing such budget 
or any amended or supplemental budget, consideration shall be given to any recommendations 
of the Management Consultant. Copies of each such budget and of any amended or supplemental 
budget shall be filed with the Trustee and mailed by the Authority to the Management Consultant. 

Section 503. Transfer of Revenues by Port Operators to Authority. (a) The Authority 
covenants that all Gross Revenues derived from the operation of its Port Facilities will be collected 
by the Port Operators or the Authority and will be held, deposited, invested and applied as 
provided in this Resolution. 

(b) The Authority will cause all Port Operators monthly, not later than the 20th 
day of such month, except in the event such day is not a Business Day, then on the next 
succeeding Business Day, to pay to the Authority the entire amount described in Section 718(b). 

Section 504. Operating Account; Transfers. (a) The Authority has established with a 
Depositary its "Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Operating Account" (herein called the 
"Operating Account") which is administered by the Authority. All Gross Revenues received by the 
Authority shall be promptly deposited to the credit of the Operating Account. The Authority 
covenants that Gross Revenues deposited into the Operating Account shall be applied 
immediately as received by the Authority, first to the payment, when due and payable, of all 
amounts owing by the Authority in respect of Current Expenses for the applicable Measurement 
Period and for the maintenance of the Liquidity Reserve Requirement. During any Fiscal Year, 
the balance in the Operating Account may be less than the Liquidity Reserve Requirement, 
provided that the amount of any Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfalls is restored in 
accordance with this Section 504(a). For any Measurement Period in which a Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement Shortfall occurs, no payment shall be made by the Authority from the Operating 
Account to the Senior Obligations Fund on the following Payment Date. A Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement Shortfall shall be restored on a monthly basis over a period of up to twelve months 
beginning on the next Payment Date (so long as no Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfall 
occurs for the Measurement Period applicable to such Payment Date). Such amount as 
determined by the Authority shall be no less than I/12th of the Liquidity Reserve Requirement 
Shortfall (each such monthly restoration amount, a "Liquidity Reserve Requirement Restoration 
Amount"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfall may be 
restored in full by the Authority at any time. Further, any Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfall 
may be recalculated and combined with any additional subsequent Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement Shortfall at any time by the Authority, provided that the recalculation of the Liquidity 



41 

Reserve Requirement Restoration Amount shall not extend the restoration of any Liquidity 
Reserve Requirement Shortfall beyond the original permitted twelve month period. If excess 
monies remain in the Operating Account on any Deposit Day after the Authority has observed the 
foregoing requirements, the Authority covenants that such excess shall be applied then monthly 
on each Deposit Day, for the following purposes, except to the extent that other funds are lawfully 
available therefor, and in the following order: 

(a) First, to the credit of the Senior Obligations Fund the next succeeding 
monthly payment of Senior Obligations; 

(b) Then, to the transfer by the Authority to the Trustee, for deposit to the credit 
of the Debt Service Fund of an amount sufficient, with such funds as shall then be held for the 
credit of the respective accounts therein, to enable the Trustee to make timely the deposits to the 
credit of the respective accounts in conformity with clauses (i) and (ii) of Section 506(a) of this 
Article; and 

(c) Then, in accordance with the provisions of Section 510(a). 

(d) The Authority shall transfer from the Operating Account for deposit to the 
Residual Fund the balance remaining after making the transfers authorized in Section 504(a)1 to 
3, inclusive. 

Section 505. Current Expenses. The Authority covenants that the Current Expenses 
incurred in any Fiscal Year will not exceed the reasonable and necessary amount thereof, and 
that it will not expend any amount or incur any obligation for maintenance, repair and operation 
of the Port Facilities in excess of the amounts provided for Current Expenses in the Annual 
Budget. Nothing contained in this Section shall limit the amount the Authority may expend for 
Current Expenses in any Fiscal Year provided any amounts expended therefor in excess of the 
amounts provided for Current Expenses in the Annual Budget shall be received by the Authority 
from some source other than Gross Revenues, and the Authority shall not make any 
reimbursement therefor from Gross Revenues. 

Section 506. Debt Service Fund. (a) A special fund is hereby created with the Trustee 
and designated "Virginia Port Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund" (herein called the 
"Debt Service Fund"). There are hereby created in the Debt Service Fund separate accounts 
designated "Debt Service Account" and "Debt Service Reserve Account". 

The money held by the Trustee in the Debt Service Account and the Debt Service Reserve 
Account shall be held in trust and applied as hereinafter provided and, pending such application, 
shall be subject to a prior lien and charge in favor of the Holders of the Bonds. 

Subject to the provisions of Section 506(d), the Authority shall transfer to the Trustee, 
monthly, on each Deposit Day, from Net Revenue, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
504(a)-2 of this Resolution, to the extent available, an amount sufficient to make the following 
deposits to the credit of the Debt Service Account and any Debt Service Reserve Account in the 
amounts and in the order, respectively, as follows: 

(i) to the credit of the Debt Service Account, an amount (or the entire sum if 
less than the required amount) that will make the amount then to the credit of such Debt 
Service Account equal to the result obtained: 



42 

(A) by dividing the number of monthly Deposit Days that have occurred since 
the previous Interest Payment Date by the total number of Deposit Days in the 
period between Interest Payment Dates and multiplying the result by the Interest 
Requirement for the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, 

(B) by dividing the number of monthly Deposit Days that have occurred since 
the previous Principal Payment Date by the total number of Deposit Days in the 
period between Principal Payment Dates and multiplying the result by the Principal 
Requirement for the next succeeding Principal Payment Date, and 

(C) by dividing the number of monthly Deposit Days that have occurred since 
the previous Principal Payment Date by the total number of Deposit Days in the 
period between Principal Payment Dates and multiplying the result by the 
Amortization Requirement for the next succeeding Principal Payment Date; 

provided, however, in making such deposits, the Trustee may take into account any amounts 
specified in an Officer's Certificate delivered to the Trustee prior to such Deposit Day of the month 
(I) as credited to a special account in the Construction Fund, dedicated to pay interest on Bonds 
and anticipated to be available to pay interest on Bonds on the next Interest Payment Date and 
(II) as excess moneys to the credit of a Debt Service Reserve Account that are anticipated to be 
available for transfer to the Debt Service Account in accordance with the provisions of Section 
508(a) on or before such ensuing Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date; and 

(ii) to the credit of each Debt Service Reserve Account, such amount, if any, 
as shall be necessary to make the amount on deposit therein equal to the applicable 
Reserve Account Requirement on account of the Series of Bonds then Outstanding for 
which such Debt Service Reserve Account was established; provided, however, that in 
the event that subaccounts shall have been established as contemplated by Section 209 
and Section 210 in the event that Bonds constituting Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness or 
Optional Tender Indebtedness have been issued and are Outstanding and deficiencies 
exist in two or more such subaccounts, such amount available for deposit shall be 
apportioned among such deficient subaccounts pro rata in accordance with the respective 
amounts of such deficiencies. 

(b) Bond proceeds deposited within the Debt Service Account or transferred 
from the Construction Fund prior to the last Deposit Day immediately preceding an Interest 
Payment Date or Interest and Principal Payment Date for the purpose of paying interest or interest 
and principal on the Bonds shall be held within the Debt Service Account and the Authority shall 
receive a credit against the transfer required to be made to the Debt Service Account for such 
month. 

(c) If, on any Interest or Interest and Principal Payment Date, the amount to 
the credit of the Debt Service Account shall be less than required to pay the interest or principal 
and interest on the Bonds then due, the following transfers shall be made of all or such lesser 
amount to the credit of such Fund or Account as required to cure the deficiency in the Debt Service 
Account in the following order, but only after observing the requirements of Section 511(b) with 
regard to transfers to the Senior Obligations Fund: 

(i) from the Residual Fund; 

(ii) from the Revenue Stabilization Fund, if in existence; and 



43 

(iii) from the Debt Service Reserve Account, if any was established for 
the applicable Bonds Outstanding, the interest or principal and interest on which is then due. 

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained in Section 504(a)-2, if the Trustee shall 
have received written notice from VIG in the form attached hereto as Schedule 506(d)(1) that an 
Event of Default or an Event of Non-Appropriation, as those terms are defined in the Senior 
Documents, has occurred, then from that date forward until the Trustee shall have received a 
subsequent written notice from VIG in the form attached hereto as Schedule 506(d)(2) that such 
Event of Default or Event of Non-Appropriation has been cured, the Trustee shall not accept any 
payment from the Authority from Net Revenue for deposit to the Debt Service Fund. 

Section 507. Application of Money in Debt Service Account. (a) Except as otherwise 
provided in this Resolution, moneys in the Debt Service Account shall be used solely for the 
payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds and the Trustee 
shall on each Interest Payment Date withdraw from such moneys and transfer to the Bond 
Registrar who shall remit by mail or wire transfer to each Holder the amounts required for paying 
the interest on such Bonds on such date, and on each Principal Payment Date the Trustee shall 
withdraw from such moneys and transfer to the Bond Registrar who shall set aside in trust the 
amounts required for paying the principal of the Bonds due on such date. In the case of a directed 
purchase of Bonds pursuant to this Resolution or otherwise, upon the deposit of cash or 
Government Obligations (the principal of and the interest on which will be payable at the times 
and in the amounts required for such purpose) in the Debt Service Account sufficient, together 
with other amounts available therefor in the Debt Service Account, to make the directed purchase 
of Bonds, the Trustee covenants and agrees to take and cause to be taken the necessary steps 
to redeem or purchase such principal amount of Bonds as specified by the Authority; provided, 
however, that money in the Debt Service Account may be used by the Authority, or the Trustee 
at the direction of the Authority, for the purchase of Bonds for cancellation only to the extent said 
moneys are in excess of the amount required for payment of the Bonds theretofore matured or 
called for redemption and the total amount of interest and principal scheduled to become due on 
the next succeeding Interest Payment Date or Principal Payment Date, respectively; and provided 
further that no such purchase shall be made within the period of forty-five (45) days immediately 
preceding any Interest Payment Date on which the Bonds are subject to call for redemption under 
the provisions of this Resolution except from moneys other than moneys set aside or deposited 
for the redemption of Bonds. 

(b) The Authority may at any time in any Bond Year, but in no event less than 
forty-five (45) days prior any Principal Payment Date on which an Amortization Requirement is to 
be satisfied by the mandatory redemption of Bonds, direct the Trustee in writing to credit the 
principal amount of any Term Bond delivered by the Authority to the Trustee for cancellation and 
of any Term Bond purchased by the Trustee in accordance with the provisions of subsection (a) 
of this Section 507 in satisfaction of the Amortization Requirement for the Term Bonds of the 
same Series for such Principal Payment Date. 

Section 508. Debt Service Reserve Account. (a) Any Series Resolution may provide 
for the establishment of a Debt Service Reserve Account for any Series of Bonds Outstanding. 
Each such Debt Service Reserve Account shall bear a numbered Series designation as may be 
necessary to distinguish such Debt Service Reserve Account and shall, subject to the other 
provisions of this Resolution, be maintained in an amount equal to the applicable Reserve 
Account Requirement, as determined pursuant to the applicable Series Resolution so long as the 
applicable Series of Bonds shall be Outstanding. Each such account is intended to insure the 
timely payment of the principal of and interest on the applicable Series of Bonds, and to provide 



44 

for the redemption of such Series of Bonds prior to their stated maturities. Money in each Debt 
Service Reserve Account shall be used for the following purposes, and for no other (provided, 
however, that if sufficient funds have been paid to defease the lien of this Resolution with respect 
to any Series of Bonds in accordance with Section 1201, or if by reason of authorized replacement 
or otherwise such Debt Service Reserve Account is no longer required under the terms of the 
applicable Series Resolution, and there exists no Event of Default with respect to any Series of 
Bonds, any funds remaining in the Debt Service Reserve Account with respect to such Series 
may be paid as directed by the Authority): 

(i) To prevent a default in the payment of the principal of or interest on 
the applicable Series of Bonds, by reason of the fact that money in the applicable Debt Service 
Account is insufficient for such purposes; 

(ii) To pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
applicable Series of Bonds in the event that all Outstanding Bonds of such Series be redeemed 
as a whole; or 

(iii) To effect partial redemption of the applicable Series of Bonds; 
provided that subsequent to said partial redemption, the market value of the cash and securities 
in such Debt Service Reserve Account shall be not less than the applicable Reserve Account 
Requirement. 

(b) Each Debt Service Reserve Account shall be kept in the complete custody 
and control of the Trustee and withdrawals from each Debt Service Reserve Account shall be 
made only by such Trustee, or to the Paying Agent, if the Trustee is not the Paying Agent, in 
which event the Paying Agent, who shall transmit to a Bondholder of the applicable Series, at 
such times as may be appropriate the sums required to pay the principal of; premium, if any, and 
interest on such Series of Bonds. 

(c) Money in each Debt Service Reserve Account shall be invested and 
reinvested by the Trustee at the direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority in Investment 
Obligations. Subject to the remaining provisions of this paragraph (c), the earnings from such 
investments shall be added to and become a part of the applicable Debt Service Reserve Account. 
Whenever, and as of any date of calculation, the value of the securities and money in a Debt 
Service Reserve Account shall exceed the applicable Reserve Account Requirement such excess 
shall either be used to effect partial redemption of the applicable Series of Bonds, or shall be 
removed from such Debt Service Reserve Account and transferred into the corresponding Debt 
Service Account, or shall be transferred to the Construction Fund so long as the Project or 
Projects financed with such Series of Bonds shall be continuing as directed in writing by the 
Authority. The payments required of the Authority by the provisions of Section 506 shall be 
reduced to the extent of any such transfer to the Debt Service Account. 

(d) For the purposes of this Resolution, the Authority may meet the Reserve 
Account Requirement with cash, whether derived from Bond proceeds or otherwise, a Reserve 
Account Credit Facility, Investment Obligations, or any combination thereof, and may make 
substitutions therefor; provided that in making any transfers pursuant to subsection (a) of this 
Section, the Trustee shall first exhaust all such cash and any Investment Obligations (including 
any proceeds derived from the sale or other disposition thereof) before drawing under any 
Reserve Account Credit Facility. Any Reserve Account Credit Facility deposited in a Debt Service 
Reserve Account in satisfaction or partial satisfaction of the Reserve Account Requirement shall 
be payable (upon the giving of notice as required thereunder) on or before any date that is an 



45 

Interest Payment Date or a Principal Payment Date or both (for the Series of Bonds for which it 
was deposited) on which a deficiency exists in a Debt Service Account and shall have a minimum 
term of not less than six (6) months. 

Section 509. Revenue Stabilization Fund.  A special fund is hereby created with the 
Trustee and designated the "Virginia Port Authority Series 2025 Bonds Revenue 
Stabilization Fund" (the "Revenue Stabilization Fund"). The Revenue Stabilization Fund shall 
be maintained in an amount not to exceed $40,000,000.00 (the "Revenue Stabilization Fund 
Cap") until the earlier to occur of (x) the date on which the Trustee shall have received an Officer's 
Certificate, certifying for the three most recent consecutive Fiscal Years, for which audited 
financial statements are available, of the Authority on or after the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 
2025, that Net Revenue has not been less than one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the 
Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements for each Fiscal Year, or (y) the date on which the 
2025 Bonds are no longer Outstanding, at which time all amounts in the Revenue Stabilization 
Fund shall be released into the Residual Fund. Deposits shall be made to the Revenue 
Stabilization Fund in an aggregate amount not to exceed the Revenue Stabilization Fund Cap 
from (i) the sources described in Section 3 of the Series Resolution related to the Series 2025 
Bonds and (ii) the Residual Fund pursuant to such other resolutions as may be adopted by the 
Board from time to time. Interest earnings on the Revenue Stabilization Fund shall not be 
considered as amounts in excess of the Revenue Stabilization Fund Cap and will be transferred 
no less than monthly by the Trustee in accordance with Section 512.  If the Trustee shall have 
received written notice from VIG in the form attached hereto as Schedule 506(d)(1) that an Event 
of Default or an Event of Non-Appropriation, as those terms are defined in the Senior Documents, 
has occurred, then from that date forward until the Trustee shall have received a subsequent 
written notice from VIG in the form attached hereto as Schedule 506(d)(2) that such Event of 
Default or Event of Non-Appropriation has been cured, the Trustee shall not accept any payment 
from the Authority from Net Revenue for deposit to the Revenue Stabilization Fund. 

Section 510. Subordinate Obligations Fund and Authorization for 2025 Note.  (a) A 
special fund is hereby created with one or more Depositaries and designated the "Virginia Port 
Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds Subordinate Obligations Fund" (herein called the 
"Subordinate Obligations Fund"). Pursuant to the provisions of Section 504(a)-3, the Authority 
shall transfer to the Depositary or Depositaries for the Subordinate Obligations Fund, in such 
manner as the Authority shall direct, for deposit to the credit of one or more special accounts in 
the Subordinate Obligations Fund, an amount that together with funds then held to the credit of 
the Subordinate Obligations Fund will make the total amount then to the credit thereof equal to 
any amounts required to be paid or accrued with respect to the Authority's obligations constituting 
Subordinate Obligations prior to the Deposit Day of the next succeeding month to or from the 
Subordinate Obligations Fund. 

(b) Moneys held for the credit of the Subordinate Obligations Fund shall be 
paid out or pledged by the Authority as necessary to enable the Authority to meet its obligations 
constituting Subordinate Obligations. Subordinate Obligations may be incurred or issued by the 
Authority for the purpose of paying Current Expenses and all or any part of the costs associated 
with any Projects or Port Facilities or for any other lawful purpose of the Authority. Subordinate 
Obligations may also be issued or incurred by the Authority for the purpose of providing funds, 
with any other available funds, for redeeming prior to their maturity or maturities or for paying at 
their maturity or maturities all or any part of the Outstanding Bonds of any Series or of any other 
Indebtedness or any Subordinate Obligations. 



46 

(c) The Authority shall have the right to covenant with the holders from time to 
time of any Subordinate Obligations issued or incurred by the Authority to add to the conditions, 
limitations and restrictions under which Additional Bonds and Refunding Bonds may be issued 
under the provisions of Sections 209 and 210, respectively, hereof. 

(d) There shall be initially issued under and secured by this Resolution, in one 
or more series as a Subordinate Obligation, a short-term revenue note of the Authority in the 
aggregate principal amount of up to Four Hundred Ninety-Five Million Dollars ($495,000,000.00), 
designated "Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Line of Credit Note, Series 2025" (the 
"2025 Note"), for the purpose of providing funds, with other funds available therefor, (i) to ensure 
operational and investment control of the Virginia International Gateway Terminal by financing 
and refinancing the costs of the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) defeasing the 
Outstanding Bonds not defeased from unencumbered cash and investments on hand, (iii) 
terminating the Outstanding Equipment Leases not retired or terminated from unencumbered 
cash and investments on hand; (iv) funding debt service reserve accounts, (v) paying all or any 
portion of the cost of additional Projects, and (vi) paying the cost of issuance of such port facilities 
revenue line of credit notes.  The 2025 Note shall be issued in such principal amount (not 
exceeding the maximum amount authorized hereby) as a single note, as a taxable obligation, 
shall be dated and shall be stated to mature, subject to the right of prior optional and mandatory 
redemption, if any, on the dates and in the principal amounts, shall have such other details, and 
shall be sold in such manner to such purchasers upon the payment of such purchase price, and 
the proceeds of such 2025 Note shall be applied for the purposes set forth above, all as may be 
provided by the applicable Series Resolution or Resolutions.   

The 2025 Note shall be executed substantially in the form and manner hereinabove set 
forth and shall be deposited with the purchaser thereof, but prior to or simultaneously with the 
delivery of the 2025 Note to or upon the order of the purchasers thereof, there shall be filed with 
the Trustee the following: 

(i) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the 
Authority, of this Resolution; 

(ii) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the 
Authority, of the Series Resolution or Resolutions adopted by the Board and, referred to 
above; 

(iii) a copy of the fully executed 2025 Lease Amendment; 

(iv) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the 2025 Note has been 
issued by the Authority and constitute valid obligations of the Authority; and 

(v) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) this Resolution 
has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance of the 2025 Note has been 
duly and validly authorized and all conditions precedent to the delivery of such 2025 Note 
have been fulfilled, and (ii) no provision of this Resolution or of such 2025 Note results in 
or constitutes a default under any agreement, indenture or other instrument of which such 
General Counsel has knowledge and to which the Authority is a party or by which the 
Authority is or may be bound. 

When (1) the documents mentioned in clauses (i) to (v), inclusive, of this Section shall 
have been filed with the Trustee and (2) the 2025 Note shall have been executed and 



47 

authenticated as required by this Resolution, the Authority shall deliver such 2025 Note to the 
Trustee and the Trustee shall deliver such 2025 Note at one time to or upon the order of the 
purchasers thereof, but only upon payment to the Trustee of the purchase price of such 2025 
Note so delivered. 

Simultaneously with the delivery of the 2025 Note and the deposit of said proceeds with 
the Trustee, the proceeds (including accrued interest, if any) of said 2025 Note shall be applied 
by the Trustee as provided in the applicable Series Resolution or Resolutions. 

(e) The Authority is permitted to issue additional Subordinate Obligations from 
time to time under and secured by this Resolution, subject to the conditions hereinafter provided 
in this subsection, for any purposes permitted under the Act.  Prior to or simultaneously with the 
delivery of such additional Subordinate Obligations, there shall be filed with the Trustee the 
following: 

(i) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the 
Authority, of the Series Resolution or Resolutions providing for the issuance or incurrence 
of such additional Subordinate Obligations and such other terms and conditions as may 
be set forth in that Series Resolution or Resolutions; 

(ii) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the additional Subordinate 
Obligations have been issued or incurred by the Authority and constitute valid obligations 
of the Authority; and 

(iii) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) the Series 
Resolution referred to in subpart (i) above has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and 
the issuance or incurrence of the additional Subordinate Obligation has been duly and 
validly authorized and all conditions precedent to the delivery of such additional 
Subordinate Obligation have been fulfilled, and (ii) no provision of this Resolution or of 
such additional Subordinate Obligation results in or constitutes a default under any 
agreement, indenture or other instrument of which such General Counsel has knowledge 
and to which the Authority is a party or by which the Authority is or may be bound. 

Section 511. Senior Obligations Fund. (a) A special fund is hereby created with one or 
more Depositaries and designated the "Virginia Port Authority Senior Obligations Fund" (herein 
called the "Senior Obligations Fund"). Pursuant to the provisions of Section 504(a)-1, the Authority 
shall transfer on each Deposit Day to the Depositary or Depositaries for the Senior Obligations 
Fund the amount required for the Authority to meet its next succeeding monthly payment of Senior 
Obligations. 

(b) If on any Deposit Day after making the transfer required by Section 504 the 
amount to the credit of the Senior Obligations Fund shall be less than required to pay the next 
succeeding monthly payment of Senior Obligations, then (i) the Authority shall send the Trustee 
a statement setting forth the amount required to be paid on the next succeeding month to pay the 
Senior Obligations, the amount on deposit in the Senior Obligations Fund, the amount available 
for transfer from the Residual Fund and the amount, if any, required to be transferred from the 
Revenue Stabilization Fund, if one is in existence, and (ii) the following transfers shall be made 
by the Authority and the Trustee, respectively, of all or such lesser amount to the credit of such 
Fund as required to cure the deficiency in the Senior Obligations Fund in the following order: 

(i) from the Residual Fund by the Authority; and 



48 

(ii) from the Revenue Stabilization Fund, if in existence, by the Trustee. 

Section 512. Residual Fund. A special fund is hereby created with one or more 
Depositaries and designated the "Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds Residual 
Fund" (herein called the "Residual Fund"). Pursuant to the provisions of Section 504(d), the 
Authority shall transfer to the Depositary or Depositaries for the Residual Fund, excess moneys 
remaining in the Operating Account on each Deposit Day in such manner as the Authority shall 
direct.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 509, the Trustee shall transfer to the Depositary or 
Depositaries for the Residual Fund, amounts in excess of the Revenue Stabilization Fund Cap 
(including interests earnings on the amounts on deposit in the Revenue Stabilization Fund) on 
each Deposit Day in such manner as the Authority shall direct. 

(1) The Authority may use, pledge or encumber moneys held to the credit of the 
Residual Fund, for any lawful purpose of the Authority or may, subject to any such pledge or 
encumbrance, from time to time transfer or deposit to the credit of any Fund or Account created 
under the provisions of this Resolution, any moneys held for the credit of the Residual Fund, as 
directed in a resolution duly adopted by the Board. 

(2) The Authority shall have the right to covenant with the holders from time to time 
of any obligations issued by the Authority for the payment of which the moneys in or from the 
Residual Fund are pledged to add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions under which any 
Additional Bonds may be issued and Parity Indebtedness incurred or refunded under the 
provisions of Sections 209 and 210, respectively, and Subordinate Obligations issued and 
incurred under the provisions of Section 510, hereof. 

Section 513. Derivative Indebtedness. For purposes of the calculation of Principal and 
Interest Requirements and generally for any other purposes of this Resolution, the following rules 
shall apply with respect to Derivative Indebtedness: For so long as (A) the long-term debt of the 
provider or guarantor ("Counterparty") of the Derivative Agreement is rated by Moody's or S&P in 
a rating category that is equal to or higher than the rating category in which the Derivative 
Indebtedness is rated or (B) if the Derivative Indebtedness is rated in the highest rating category 
by both Moody's and S&P and the Derivative Agreement with respect to such Derivative 
Indebtedness is with a Counterparty whose long-term debt is rated in one of the two highest rating 
categories maintained by Moody's or S&P, and the Counterparty has not defaulted under such 
Derivative Agreement, the interest on such Derivative Indebtedness during any Derivative Period 
shall be calculated by adding (1) the amount of interest payable by the Authority on such 
Derivative Indebtedness pursuant to its terms and (2) the amount of the Regularly Scheduled 
Payments payable by the Authority under the Derivative Agreement and subtracting therefrom 
the amount of the Regularly Scheduled Payments payable by the Counterparty at the rate 
specified in the Derivative Agreement; provided, however, that during any period when the 
conditions of clause (A) or (B) above, as the case may be, are not satisfied with respect to any 
Derivative Indebtedness, the amount of interest payable by the Authority with respect to Principal 
and Interest Requirements shall be calculated as if the related Derivative Agreement were not in 
force. The Regularly Scheduled Payments due to the Counterparty on a Derivative Agreement 
shall be on a parity with the Principal and Interest Requirements and shall be payable out of the 
Debt Service Account. Any amounts received by the Authority from such Counterparty shall not 
be deemed to be Gross Revenues, but all such receipts and the right to receive the same are 
hereby irrevocably pledged as security for all Bonds and shall, upon receipt, be deposited to the 
Debt Service Account. The Authority may enter into any Derivative Agreement whether or not the 
Authority, on the date such Derivative Agreement is entered into, meets the financial covenant 
required to issue Additional Bonds in such amount under Section 209 hereof. The Authority shall 



49 

not enter into any Derivative Agreement unless it shall have first obtained the opinion of Bond 
Counsel to the effect that such Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Authority. Any 
Non-Scheduled Payment payable by the Authority in connection with the termination of any 
Derivative Agreement shall be payable as a Subordinate Obligation. "Rating categories" for 
purposes of this Section means categories maintained by Moody's or S&P without regard to any 
refinement or gradation by numerical modifier or otherwise. 

Section 514. Money Held in Trust. All money set aside or deposited with the Bond 
Registrar or the Paying Agents for the purpose of paying any of the Bonds hereby secured, either 
at the maturity thereof or by purchase or call for redemption or for the purpose of paying interest 
thereon, shall be held in trust for the respective Holders of such Bonds. Any money which shall 
be so set aside or deposited and which shall remain unclaimed by the Holders of such Bonds for 
a period of three (3) years after the date on which such Bonds shall have become payable shall 
be paid to the Authority, or to such officer, board or body as may then be entitled by law to receive 
the same, and thereafter the Holders of such Bonds shall look only to the Authority, or to such 
officer, board or body, as the case may be, for payment and then only to the extent of the amounts 
so received, without any interest thereon, and the Trustee, the Bond Registrar and the Paying 
Agents shall have no responsibility with respect to such money. 

Section 515. Cancellation of Bonds. All Bonds paid, redeemed or purchased, either at 
or before maturity, shall be delivered to the Bond Registrar when such payment, redemption or 
purchase is made, together with all unmatured coupons, if any, appertaining thereto, and such 
Bond shall thereupon be canceled. The Bond Registrar shall certify to the Authority and the 
Trustee the details of all Bonds so canceled. All Bonds canceled under any of the provisions of 
this Resolution shall be destroyed by the Bond Registrar in accordance with its record retention 
policy then in effect. 

ARTICLE VI. 
DEPOSITARIES OF MONEY, SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS  

AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS 

Section 601. Security for Deposits. All money deposited with the Trustee or any 
Depositary hereunder in excess of the amount guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation or other federal agency shall be continuously secured by such Depositary, for the 
benefit of the Authority and holders of the Bonds, in the manner required and to the full extent 
permitted by the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (Chapter 44, Title 2.2, Code of Virginia 
of 1950, as amended), or any successor provision of law; provided, however, that it shall not be 
necessary for the Bond Registrar or any Paying Agent to give security for the deposit of any 
money with it for the payment of the principal of or redemption premium or the interest on any 
Bonds issued hereunder, or for any Depositary to give security for any money which shall be 
represented by Government Obligations or by Investment Obligations. 

Section 602. Investment of Money. Moneys held for the credit of all funds and accounts 
under this Resolution shall be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee or the 
Depositary thereof at the direction of the Authority as specified or confirmed by an Officer's 
Certificate. 

Moneys held for the credit of each special account in the Construction Fund shall, as 
nearly as may be practicable, be invested and reinvested in Investment Obligations, which shall 
mature, or which shall be subject to redemption at the option of the holder thereof, not later than 
the date, estimated by the Authority on the Closing Date, to be the Completion Date of the related 



50 

Project. Any moneys held for the credit of a special account in the Construction Fund at the 
Completion Date of the related Project or thereafter shall, as nearly as may be practicable, be 
invested and reinvested in Government Obligations which shall mature or which shall be subject 
to redemption at the option of the holder thereof, not later than one year after the date of such 
investment. 

Moneys held for the credit of the Debt Service Account shall, as nearly as may be 
practicable, be invested and reinvested in Investment Obligations, which obligations shall mature, 
or which shall be subject to redemption at the option of the holder thereof, not later than the 
respective dates when the moneys held for the credit of the Debt Service Account will be required 
for the purposes intended. 

Moneys held for the credit of each Debt Service Reserve Account shall, as nearly as may 
be practicable, be invested and reinvested in Investment Obligations, which obligations shall 
mature, or shall be subject to redemption at the option of the holder thereof, not later than the 
earlier of (i) the final maturity of the Series of Bonds Outstanding for which such Debt Service 
Reserve Account was established, or (ii) five years from the date of acquisition. 

Money held for the credit of the Operating Account and the Residual Fund shall, as nearly 
as may be practicable, be invested and reinvested in Investment Obligations which shall mature, 
or which shall be subject to redemption at the option of the holder thereof; not later than the 
respective dates when the money held for the credit of each of the Operating Account and the 
Residual Fund is anticipated to be required for the purposes intended. 

Investment Obligations so purchased shall be deemed at all times to be a part of the Fund 
or Account to which was credited the money with which they were purchased, and the interest 
accruing thereon and any profit realized or any loss resulting from the investment of money shall 
be credited to, or charged against, the respective Fund or Account. The Trustee and the 
Depositaries shall sell at the best price obtainable or present for redemption or for payment any 
such Investment Obligations whenever it shall be necessary so to do in order to provide money 
to make any payment or transfer of money from any such Fund or Account. The Trustee and the 
Depositaries shall not be liable or responsible for any loss resulting from any such investment. 

Whenever a payment or transfer of moneys between two or more of the Funds or Accounts 
established pursuant to Article V of this Resolution is permitted or required, such payment or 
transfer may be made in whole or in part by transfer of one or more Investment Obligations at a 
value determined in accordance with this Article, provided that the Investment Obligations are 
those in which moneys of the receiving Fund or Account could be invested at the date of such 
transfer. 

A forward contract of the Authority to invest in Investment Obligations on a "delivery versus 
payment" basis shall be considered an investment in the Investment Obligations that are the 
subject to such contract. 

Section 603. Valuation. For the purpose of determining the amount on deposit to the 
credit of any such Fund or Account, obligations in which money in such Fund or Account shall 
have been invested shall be valued (i) at original cost if the investment held in the Fund or Account 
is one year or less or (ii) at its fair market value if the investment held in the Fund or Account 
exceeds one year. 



51 

The Trustee and the Depositaries shall value the Investment Obligations in the Funds and 
Accounts established under this Resolution on the Deposit Day next preceding each Interest 
Payment Date, immediately prior to making the transfers contemplated by Sections 504 and 602. 
In addition, the Investment Obligations shall be valued by the Trustee and the Depositaries at any 
time requested by the Authority on reasonable notice (which period of notice may be waived or 
reduced by the Trustee or any Depositaries); provided, however, that the Trustee and the 
Depositaries shall not be required to value the Investment Obligations more than once in any 
calendar month. 

ARTICLE VII. 
PARTICULAR COVENANTS 

Section 701. Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium and Pledge of Revenues. 
The Authority covenants that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on every Bond 
issued under the provisions of this Resolution at the places, on the dates and in the manner 
provided herein and in said Bonds, and any premium required for the retirement of said Bonds by 
purchase or redemption, according to the true intent and meaning thereof. Such Bonds shall be 
secured by a lien on, security interest in and pledge of Net Revenue, subject and subordinate to 
the prior payment therefrom of Senior Obligations, and other money and the funds and accounts 
created under this Resolution, and the Authority hereby pledges such Net Revenue, subject and 
subordinate to the prior lien and security interest thereon created under the Senior Documents, 
and other moneys and funds and accounts to the equal and ratable security of all Bonds issued 
under this Resolution, without preference, priority or distinction, except as to any difference in 
maturity, interest rate or provisions for redemption and except for such differences, if any, 
respecting the use of moneys in each of the Debt Service Reserve Accounts, of any one Bond 
over any other Bond by reason of priority in their issue, sale or otherwise. 

The Authority further covenants that it will faithfully perform at all times all of its covenants, 
undertakings and agreements contained in this Resolution, or in any Bond executed, 
authenticated and delivered hereunder or in any proceedings of the Board pertaining thereto. The 
Authority represents and covenants that it is duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of 
the Commonwealth, particularly the Act, to issue the Bonds authorized hereby and to pledge such 
Net Revenue in the manner and to the extent herein set forth; that all action on its part for the 
issuance of the Bonds initially issued hereunder has been duly and effectively taken; and that 
such Bonds in the hands of the Holders thereof are and will be valid and enforceable limited 
obligations of the Authority according to their terms. 

The Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall not be deemed to constitute a debt of the 
Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof. Neither the Commonwealth nor the 
Authority shall be obligated to pay the Bonds, the Parity Indebtedness or the interest thereon 
except from Net Revenue, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the 
Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal 
of or the interest on such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness. The Authority has no taxing power. 
Payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness 
is subject to appropriation by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth. 

Section 702. Covenant to Complete Projects. The Authority covenants that it will 
forthwith proceed to complete the acquisition and installation of each Project substantially in 
accordance with the contracts, plans and specifications therefor, and otherwise in conformity with 
law and all requirements of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction and this Resolution, 
that it will use all reasonable efforts to insure that the acquisition and installation of each Project 



52 

is done in good and workmanlike manner, and that it will complete such construction with all 
expedition practicable. 

The Authority further covenants that 100% performance and payment bonds in connection 
with contracts for the provision of each Project shall be required by the Authority, and that it will 
require each contractor to carry such workman's compensation or employers' liability and property 
damage insurance, including provisions to indemnify and save the Authority harmless, and such 
builders' risk insurance, if any, as shall be recommended by the Engineer. The Authority further 
covenants that, in the event of any default under any such contract and the failure of the surety 
to complete the contract, the proceeds of such surety bonds will forthwith, upon receipt of such 
proceeds, be deposited to the credit of the appropriate account in the Construction Fund and will 
be applied toward the completion of the contract in connection with which such surety bonds shall 
have been furnished. 

Section 703. Covenant Against Encumbrances. With the exception of any lien or 
encumbrance existing as of the date hereof or to be created by VIG on VIGT, the Authority 
covenants that it will not voluntarily create or suffer to be created any lien or encumbrance upon 
the Port Facilities or any part thereof (with the exception of any lien or encumbrance on property 
financed with Nonrecourse Indebtedness, including purchase money security interests or liens 
granted with respect to personal property or operating equipment, and to the extent permitted by 
the Act, real property, to be acquired for use in connection with the Port Facilities, and any lien or 
encumbrance that does not materially impair the operation of the Port Facilities in the opinion of 
the Management Consultant and that is otherwise permitted by the Act) or upon Net Revenue, 
with the exception of the lien on Net Revenue created by the Senior Documents, and other money 
pledged under this Resolution superior to or on a parity with the pledge and lien for the security 
of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness. 

Section 704. Removal or Disposition of Property. Real or personal property 
constituting a part of the Port Facilities, other than VIGT, shall not be removed or disposed of by 
the Authority except in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Removal or disposition of 
real or personal property located at VIGT shall be governed solely by the Senior Documents and 
not by this Resolution. If the Authority in its sole discretion determines that any real property, 
structure, furnishings, machinery, equipment or other improvement constituting a part of the Port 
Facilities, other than VIGT, has become inadequate, obsolete, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable 
or unnecessary and that its demolition or removal will not impair the structural soundness, 
efficiency or the economic value of the Port Facilities, other than VIGT, the Authority may demolish 
or remove, or may cause the demolition or removal of such property from the Port Facilities, other 
than VIGT, and may, to the extent permitted by law, sell, trade in, exchange or otherwise dispose 
of the same or cause the same to be sold, traded in, exchanged or otherwise disposed of, in 
whole or in part; provided, however, that in the event the depreciated value of such property shall 
exceed Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) in any Fiscal Year: 

(a) the Authority shall, at its own cost and expense, contract, install, replace or 
substitute real property, structures, furnishings, machinery, equipment or other improvements 
having a usefulness to the operation of the Port Facilities, other than VIGT, (but not necessarily 
the same function), at least equal to the usefulness, prior to demolition, removal or disposal of the 
property demolished, removed or disposed of; or 

(b) the Authority shall deliver to the Trustee an Officer's Certificate as to the 
estimated fair market value of the real property, structure, furnishings, machinery, equipment or 
improvement to be demolished, removed or disposed of and either 



53 

(i) a copy of a report by a qualified engineer, employed by the 
Authority, determining that the property to be demolished, removed or disposed of has become 
obsolete, inadequate, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary or its disposal is in the 
best interests of the Authority's or Port Operator's operation of the Port Facilities, other than VIGT, 
and that its demolition, removal or disposal will not impair the structural soundness, efficiency or 
the economic value of the Port Facilities, other than VIGT, and shall promptly pay into the Debt 
Service Account an amount equal to the net proceeds, if any, received by the Authority as a result 
of such demolition, removal or disposal or 

(ii) a report of the Management Consultant setting forth his estimate of 
the Net Revenue and Adjusted Net Revenue of the Authority for the next two (2) complete Fiscal 
Years after the date of the report and an Officer's Certificate of the Authority showing that for each 
such Fiscal Year the estimated Aggregate Net Revenue for the most recent Fiscal Year, 
Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue for each such Fiscal Year and Net Revenue for each such 
Fiscal Year will be sufficient for the Authority to comply with its covenants contained in Section 
501(a). 

This Section is not meant to limit the demolition, disposition or removal of any real 
property, structure, furnishings, equipment or other improvement if such demolition, disposition 
or removal takes place in connection with the acquisition and construction of a Project. 

Section 705. Employment of Engineer. The Authority covenants that it will for the 
purpose of performing and carrying out the duties imposed on the Engineer by this Resolution, 
employ or cause to be employed during the acquisition, construction and installation of any Project 
an Engineer having a favorable repute for skill and experience in such work. The Engineer so 
employed need not be the same for each Project. 

Section 706. Employment or Management Consultant. The Authority covenants that 
it will, if and when required for the purpose of performing and carrying out the duties imposed by 
this Resolution, employ or cause to be employed a professional management consultant 
knowledgeable in the operation of marine terminal facilities and having a favorable national repute 
for skill and experience in such work (the "Management Consultant"). 

Section 707. Insurance Provisions. The Authority covenants that it or the Port 
Operators shall carry or cause to be carried dishonesty bonds (blanket protection) on all officers 
and employees of any Port Operator who collects or has custody of or access to any of the Gross 
Revenue or Net Revenue, such bonds or insurance to be in amounts commensurate with the 
amounts and risks involved but not in any event less than $25,000 for any officer or employee. 
Any amount recovered under such dishonesty bonds shall be applied in making up any deficiency 
or shortage in the Gross Revenue or Net Revenue required to be deposited to the credit of the 
particular Fund or Accounts adversely affected by the dishonesty respecting which such amount 
is recovered. 

The Authority further covenants that it will cause the Port Facilities, at all times to be 
insured against such risks as are customarily insured against in connection with the operation of 
marine terminal facilities of a type and size comparable to the Port Facilities and that the Authority 
will carry and maintain, or cause to be carried and maintained with financially responsible insurers, 
and pay or cause to be paid timely the premiums for, at least the following insurance with respect 
to the Port Facilities when and as such insurance is commercially available; provided that such 
appropriate co-insurance clause percentage and level of deductibles may be established as are 
obtainable, considering adequate coverage levels and premiums payable. 



54 

The Authority may establish certain maximum levels of insurance for which the Authority 
may self-insure. Such maximum levels of insurance shall be in amounts set by the Authority, 
taking into account any recommendations of an insurance consultant who is of favorable 
reputation and experience and is qualified to survey risks and to recommend insurance coverage 
for public entities engaged in operating facilities similar to the Port Facilities. 

Section 708. Insurance Companies and Policies. The Authority covenants that each 
insurance policy required by Section 707 hereof (i) shall be by such insurance company or 
companies as are financially responsible and of recognized standing, (ii) shall be in such form 
and with such provisions (including, without limitation, the loss payable clause, the waiver of 
subrogation clause, relieving the insurer of liability to the extent of minor claims and the 
designation of the named insureds) as are generally considered standard provisions for the type 
of insurance involved, (iii) shall name as insureds all Port Operators, the Authority and the 
Commonwealth as their respective interests may appear, and (iv) shall prohibit cancellation or 
substantial modification by the insurer without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 
Authority, each Port Operator and the Attorney General of the Commonwealth. All insurance 
policies shall be subject to rules and regulations promulgated under the insurance laws of the 
Commonwealth. 

In case of any default by the Authority in fulfilling its covenants with respect to causing to 
be maintained by its Port Operators or any other lessee or operator any of the above-mentioned 
insurance policies, the Authority shall obtain and cause to be placed in effect any such insurance 
in its name and any premiums required to obtain such insurance may be paid from money in the 
Operating Account. 

Section 709. Insurance Claims. All insurance policies referred to in this Article shall be 
open at all reasonable times to the inspection of the Trustee and the Treasurer of the 
Commonwealth and their agents and representatives and shall be retained for or by the Authority. 
The Authority in its own name may demand, collect, sue and receipt for any insurance money 
which may become due and payable under any policies of insurance required hereunder if any 
Port Operator shall have failed to do so within thirty (30) days after the receipt of written notice 
from the Authority or the Trustee. The Trustee shall not in any way be liable or responsible for the 
collection of insurance money in case of any loss or damage. 

Section 710. Covenant as to Damaged or Destroyed Property. Subject to the 
provisions of Section 704, if any part of the Port Facilities is destroyed or damaged by fire or other 
casualty, the Authority shall promptly replace, repair, rebuild or restore, or cause to be replaced, 
repaired, rebuilt or restored, the property damaged or destroyed to substantially its same condition 
as prior to such damage or destruction, with such alterations and additions as the Authority may 
determine as will not impair the capacity or character of the Port Facilities for the purpose for 
which it is being used or is intended to be used, applying so much as may be necessary of the 
net proceeds of insurance received by it on account of any such damage or destruction or of the 
Authority's other funds to payment of the cost of such replacement, repair, rebuilding or restoration 
to the extent practicable. 

Section 711. Recording and Filing. The Authority covenants that it will cause any 
financing statements to be kept, recorded and filed in such manner and in such places as may be 
required by law in order fully to preserve and protect the security of the holders and owners of the 
Bonds hereunder. 



55 

Section 712. Further Instruments and Actions. The Authority covenants that it will, 
from time to time, execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further actions as 
may be required to carry out the purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 713. Authority Audits. For the purpose of causing to be performed and carried 
out the duties imposed on the Accountant under this Resolution, the Authority covenants that it 
will employ or cause to be employed as the Accountant the Auditor of Public Accounts of the 
Commonwealth or, if then permitted by law, a firm of independent certified public accountants 
having a favorable repute for skill and experience in such work. 

The Authority further covenants that within one hundred twenty (120) days after the close 
of each Fiscal Year, it will cause an audit to be made by the Accountant of the books and accounts 
of the Authority relating to the Port Facilities for such Fiscal Year. Within one hundred eighty (180) 
days after the close of each Fiscal Year, reports of each such audit for such Fiscal Year shall be 
filed with the Trustee and copies of such audit report shall be mailed or caused to be mailed by 
the Authority to the Governor of the Commonwealth. Each such audit report shall state that the 
audit has been conducted in conformity with generally accepted auditing standards and shall set 
forth: 

(a) a statement of net positions of the Authority with respect to the Port 
Facilities; and 

(b) a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position of the 
Authority with respect to the Port Facilities. 

The Authority further covenants that it will cause any additional reports or audits relating 
to the status of each fund and account created under this Resolution and to the Port Facilities to 
be made as required by law and that upon request it will furnish to the Governor, the Treasurer of 
the Commonwealth and the Trustee such other information concerning the Port Facilities or any 
part thereof as any of them may reasonably request. 

Section 714. No-Default Certificate. The Authority covenants that it will deliver to the 
Trustee within one hundred eighty (180) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, a certificate 
signed by the Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director of the Authority stating that during 
such Fiscal Year, and as of the date of such certificate, no event or condition has happened or 
existed, or is happening or existing, which constitutes, or which, with notice or lapse of time or 
both, would constitute, an Event of Default, or if any such event or condition has happened or 
existed, or is happening or existing, specifying the nature and period of such event or condition 
and what action the Authority has taken, is taking or proposes to take with respect thereto. 

Section 715. Covenant as to Revenues. The Authority covenants that none of the 
Gross Revenue or Net Revenue or any other money pledged under this Resolution will be used 
for any purpose other than as provided in or permitted by this Resolution, and no contract or 
contracts will be entered into or any action taken which shall be inconsistent with the provisions 
of this Resolution. 

Section 716. Maintenance of Port Facilities. The Authority covenants that it shall, from 
Gross Revenues or other funds made available therefor, or shall cause the Port Operators, at all 
times during which Bonds are Outstanding under this Resolution, to keep and maintain the Port 
Facilities in a good state of repair and preservation, ordinary wear and tear, obsolescence in spite 
of repair, and acts of God excepted. The Authority covenants that it will not permit, commit or 



56 

suffer any waste of the whole or any part of the Port Facilities and shall not use or permit the use 
of the Port Facilities or any part thereof for any unlawful purpose or permit any nuisance to exist 
thereon. 

The Authority covenants that it shall provide at its own cost and expense from Gross 
Revenues, or other funds made available therefor, or cause to be provided, to the extent not 
included within the scope of a Project, all equipment, furnishings, supplies and other personal 
properties required or convenient for the proper operation, repair and maintenance of the Port 
Facilities in an economical and efficient manner, consistent with standards of operation and 
maintenance generally acceptable for marine terminal facilities comparable to Port Facilities. 

Section 717. Operation of Port Facilities. The Authority covenants that it shall use, 
maintain and operate, or cause to be used, maintained and operated, the Port Facilities at all 
times during which Bonds are Outstanding under this Resolution as marine terminal facilities or 
facilities functionally related and subordinate thereto. 

Section 718. Port Operators. Subject to the provisions of Section 719(c), the Authority 
covenants that it shall cause each Port Operator and its Subsidiaries: 

(a) annually, prior to or simultaneously with the adoption by the Authority of its 
Annual Budget referred to in Section 502, to adopt an Annual Budget, that has been previously 
approved by the Authority, not inconsistent with the provisions of the Authority's Annual Budget 
and, from time to time, to revise and amend such Port Operator's, or its Subsidiaries', Annual 
Budget so as not to be inconsistent with the Authority's Annual Budget as revised and amended 
from time to time in accordance with the provisions of Section 502; 

(b) to deposit the Gross Revenues of the Port Operator and its Subsidiaries 
with one or more Depositaries as soon as practicable after the receipt thereof and monthly, not 
later than the 20th day of such month provided such payment may be made on the next 
succeeding Business Day if the 20th day of any month is not a Business Day (each a "Port 
Operator Payment Date"), to pay to the Authority the entire amount of Gross Revenues of the 
Port Operator and its Subsidiaries for the prior month, less the sum of (i) an amount sufficient to 
pay the Current Expenses of the Port Operator and its Subsidiaries for such prior month (both 
Gross Revenues and Current Expenses to be computed on a cash basis), (ii) as a reserve for the 
Port Operator's and its Subsidiaries' Current Expenses, an amount, subject to the provisions of 
subsection (d) of this Section 718, that when added to amounts already held in reserve shalt make 
the balance equal to the sum of (i) one-twelfth (1/12th) of the Port Operator's and its Subsidiaries' 
then budgeted Current Expenses for such Fiscal Year, plus (ii) one twelfth (1/12th) of the Port 
Operator's and its Subsidiaries' then budgeted Port Operator Capital Expenditures for the Fiscal 
Year (each a "Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement"); provided, however, that any 
deficiency in any Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement (each a "Port Operator Liquidity 
Reserve Requirement Shortfall") shall be restored on a monthly basis over a period of up to thirty-
six (36) months beginning in the month after the Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement 
Shortfall occurs. Such amount as determined by the Port Operator or its Subsidiary, and approved 
by the Authority, shall be no less than one thirty-sixth (1/36th) of the Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement Shortfall (each such monthly restoration amount, a "Liquidity Reserve Requirement 
Restoration Amount"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Port Operator Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement Shortfall may be restored in full by the Port Operator or its Subsidiary at any time 
with the Authority's approval. Further, a Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfall 
may be recalculated and combined with any additional subsequent Port Operator Liquidity 
Reserve Requirement Shortfall by the Port Operator or its Subsidiary, if approved by the Authority 



57 

provided that the recalculation of the Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement Restoration 
Amount shall not extend the restoration of any Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement 
Shortfall beyond the original permitted thirty-six month period. On the adoption of each Annual 
Budget for the Port Operator and its Subsidiaries, if the new Port Operator Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement is greater than the prior year's Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement, the 
difference shall be considered a Port Operator Liquidity Requirement Reserve Shortfall for the 
first Measurement Period to which the Annual Budget applies and shall be restored within the first 
three months of the Fiscal Year to which the Annual Budget relates. If such Port Operator Liquidity 
Reserve Requirement Shortfall is not restored in full in such three-month period, then it shall be 
restored in accordance with the procedures for a Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Shortfall stated 
above. On the adoption of each Annual Budget for the Port Operator and its Subsidiaries, if the 
new Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement is less than the prior year's Port Operator 
Liquidity Reserve Requirement, the excess amount of funds will be considered Gross Revenue 
for the first Measurement Period in the Fiscal Year to which the new Annual Budget applies; 

(c) annually, within ninety (90) days after the close of the Port Operator's Fiscal 
Year to cause an audit to be made by a firm of independent public accountants of the books and 
accounts of the Port Operator, on a consolidated basis with all of its Subsidiaries, for such Fiscal 
Year and to file immediately after the receipt of such audit report copies with the Authority and 
the Trustee, such audit report to state that it has been prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards; 

(d) not to incur any Indebtedness; provided, however, that this prohibition shall 
not be construed to restrain any Port Operator or its Subsidiaries from substituting an "Eligible 
Credit Facility" for up to and including fifty percent (50%) of the Port Operator Liquidity Reserve 
Requirement and entering into a revolving loan agreement, reimbursement agreement or other 
credit agreement with the provider of the Eligible Credit Facility by the terms of which the Port 
Operator may be obligated to repay any draw(s) on the Eligible Credit Facility on the same terms 
as it would restore a Port Operator Liquidity Reserve Requirement Shortfall and to agree and 
arrange with the Authority for the payment of any fees or expenses associated with the obtaining 
or maintaining the Eligible Credit Facility and interest or other expenses due and payable by the 
Port Operator under such revolving credit agreement, reimbursement agreement or other credit 
agreement from funds available to the Authority in the Residual Fund. For purposes of this Section 
718(d), "Eligible Credit Facility" means a revolving loan facility, standby letter of credit or other 
credit facility issued in favor of the Port Operator by a United States bank or financial institution 
or foreign bank or financial institution with a United States branch having a long-term senior rating 
of no less than "A3" from Moody's and "A-" from S&P. If the provider of the Eligible Credit Facility 
for any reason does not maintain a long-term senior rating as required above, the Port Operator 
shall do one of the following: (i) cancel the ineligible credit facility and replenish the Port Operator 
Liquidity Reserve Requirement in cash in accordance with the requirements of this Resolution 
over such period of time as the Port Operator or its Subsidiary shall determine with the approval 
of the Authority but in no event longer than thirty-six months, (ii) replace the ineligible credit facility 
with an Eligible Credit Facility or (iii) draw on the ineligible credit facility and repay the amount so 
drawn to the issuing bank or financial institution over such period of time as the Port Operator or 
its Subsidiary shall determine with the approval of the Authority but in no event longer than thirty-
six months; 

(e) to observe the covenants of the Authority under this Resolution and to the 
extent delegated by the Authority the responsibilities of the Authority under this Resolution to carry 
out the covenants of the Authority correlative to such responsibilities; and 



58 

(f) not to take any action inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution or 
the covenants of the Authority or of the Authority on behalf of its Port Operators under this 
Resolution. 

The Authority shall not approve any Annual Budget of a Port Operator or its Subsidiaries 
unless the Authority shall determine that such Annual Budget is not inconsistent with the 
Authority's Annual Budget for such Fiscal Year and the terms of this Resolution and the Port 
Operator Agreements. 

Section 719. Additional Financial Covenants of the Authority. The Authority 
covenants that: 

(a) After the date of the original adoption of this Resolution, the Authority will 
not incur any further Indebtedness (with the exception of Subordinate Obligations), except 
pursuant to Sections 208, 209, 210 and 720. 

(b) The Authority shall adopt and maintain a five-year or longer capital 
improvement plan for land acquisition and capital construction, improvements, replacements, 
reconstruction and additions necessary, in the judgment of the Authority, to maintain and 
strengthen the competitive position of the Authority and its Port Facilities. Such plan shall identify 
proposed funding sources. Annually, the Authority shall develop and adopt a capital budget that 
shall contain all the proposed capital expenditures to be made by the Authority or Port Operators, 
as agent(s) for the Authority, for the benefit of the Port Facilities during the next succeeding Fiscal 
Year and the funding sources therefor. 

(c) The Authority reserves the right to terminate the Port Operator Agreements 
in accordance with their terms. The Authority covenants that if the Authority shall terminate the 
Port Operator Agreements in accordance therewith, the Authority shall either assume and perform 
to the extent permitted by law all operations of the Port Facilities or retain another person to 
assume such operations; provided, however, that in the event of any such termination and 
assumption, no such other person shall be so retained unless the Authority shall first provide the 
Trustee with an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such retention will not have an adverse 
effect on the tax status of the Bonds. 

Section 720. Parity Indebtedness. (a) The Authority may incur Parity Indebtedness for 
the purposes set forth in Section 209 of this Agreement and refund Bonds and Parity 
Indebtedness in the manner set forth in Section 210 of this Agreement, provided that the 
documents providing for such Parity Indebtedness shall specify the amounts and due dates of the 
Principal and Interest Requirements of such Parity Indebtedness, the Authority shall cause such 
documents to be filed with the Trustee and shall certify to the Trustee that all the requirements of 
Section 209 or Section 210, as appropriate, of this Resolution shall have been met the same as 
if such Parity Indebtedness to be incurred were an additional Series of Bonds to be issued under 
the provisions of Section 209 or 210, respectively. Parity Indebtedness shall be secured with 
Bonds issued under this Resolution, pari passu, by the pledge of Net Revenue under Section 701 
of this Resolution. Parity Indebtedness shall be treated by the Trustee equally with Bonds for the 
purposes of Article VIII of this Resolution. 

(b) The Authority covenants that it will faithfully fulfill all lawful requirements of 
all contracts or agreements creating such Parity Indebtedness and that it will require all other 
parties thereto to fulfill their lawful obligations thereunder. 



59 

Section 721. Covenants with Credit Providers. The Authority may make such 
covenants as it may in its sole discretion determine to be appropriate with any Credit Bank or 
Insurer that shall agree to insure or to provide a Credit Facility, Reserve Account Credit Facility 
or Bond Insurance for Bonds of any one or more Series that shall enhance the security of such 
Bonds or that is expressly authorized by the provisions of Section 508(d) of this Resolution. Such 
covenants may be set forth in or provided for by a Supplemental Resolution and shall be binding 
on the Authority, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar, the Paying Agents, the Depositaries and all the 
holders of Bonds the same as if such covenants were set forth in full in this Resolution. 

Section 722. Covenant Limiting Incurrence of Additional Senior Obligations. The 
Authority shall not incur any Indebtedness, other than the Senior Obligations, which are secured 
by any lien on Gross Revenues prior to or superior to the lien in favor of the Holders under this 
Resolution. The Authority shall not enter into any amendment of the Senior Documents that 
increases the amount of the Senior Obligations secured by and payable from Gross Revenues. 

ARTICLE VIII. 
REMEDIES 

Section 801. Events of Default. Each of the following events is hereby declared an 
"Event of Default", that is to say, if 

(a) payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds, or Parity 
Indebtedness, shall not be made when the same shall become due and payable; or 

(b) payment of the principal or of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the 
Bonds, or Parity Indebtedness, shall not be made when the same shall become due and payable, 
either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption, whether optional or pursuant to an 
Amortization Requirement, or otherwise; or 

(c) the Authority shall: (i) become insolvent or the subject of insolvency 
proceedings; or (ii) be unable, or admit in writing its inability, to pay its debts as they mature; or 
(iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or to an agent authorized to liquidate 
any substantial amount of its property; or (iv) file a petition or other pleading seeking 
reorganization, composition, readjustment or liquidation of assets or requesting similar relief; or 
(v) apply to a court for the appointment of a receiver for any of its assets; or (vi) have a receiver 
or liquidator appointed for any of its assets (with or without the consent of the Authority) and such 
receiver shall not be discharged within 90 consecutive days after his appointment; or (vii) become 
the subject of an `order for relief' within the meaning of the United States Bankruptcy Code; or 
(viii) file an answer to a creditor's petition admitting the material allegations thereof for liquidation, 
reorganization, readjustment or composition or to effect a plan or other arrangement with creditors 
or fail to have such petition dismissed within sixty (60) consecutive days after the same is filed 
against the Authority; or 

(d) the Authority shall default in the due and timely performance of any of the 
covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, Parity Indebtedness, 
or in this Resolution or any resolution supplemental hereto on the part of the Authority to be 
performed, and such default shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such 
default and requiring same to be remedied shall have been given to the Authority, by the Trustee 
or the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, and Parity 
Indebtedness, hereby secured and then Outstanding. 



60 

The foregoing provisions of subsection (d) of this Section are subject to the following 
limitations: if by reason of force majeure, the Authority is unable in whole or in part to carry out 
any of its agreements herein contained, the failure of the Authority to carry out any such 
agreements, other than the obligations on the part of the Authority contained in Section 502 and 
707 of this Resolution, shall not be deemed an Event of Default during the continuance of such 
inability, including a reasonable time for the removal of the effect thereof. 

The term "force majeure" shall mean any cause, circumstance or event that is not 
reasonably foreseeable and that is not within the control of the Authority, including, without 
limitation, the following: acts of God; strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances; acts of 
public enemies; orders or restraints of any kind of the government of the United States or of the 
Commonwealth or any of their departments, agencies, political subdivisions or officials, or any 
civil or military authority, including Governmental Restrictions; war; cyber-attacks; terrorist 
attacks; insurrections; civil disturbances; riots; pandemics; epidemics; landslides; lightning; 
earthquakes; fires; hurricanes; storms; droughts; floods; washouts; arrests; restraint of 
government and people; explosions, breakage, malfunction of or accident to facilities, machinery, 
transmission pipes or canals; partial or entire failure of utilities; or shortages of or inability to obtain 
labor, materials, supplies or transportation. 

The Authority agrees, however, to use commercially reasonable efforts to remedy with all 
reasonable dispatch any force majeure preventing it from carrying out its agreements; provided, 
that the settlement of strikes, lockouts and other industrial disturbances shall be entirely within 
the discretion of the Authority, and the Authority shall not be required to make settlement of 
strikes, lockouts and other industrial disturbances by acceding to the demands of the opposing 
party or parties when such course is in the judgment of the Authority unfavorable to the Authority. 

Section 802. Enforcement of Remedies. Upon the happening and continuance of any 
Event of Default, then and in every such case the Trustee may, and upon the written request of 
the Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness 
Outstanding shall, proceed to protect and enforce the rights of the Holders under the laws of the 
Commonwealth or under this Resolution by such suits, actions or special proceedings in equity 
or at law, or by proceedings in the office having jurisdiction, either for the specific performance of 
any covenant or agreement contained herein or in aid or execution of any power herein granted 
or for the enforcement of any proper legal or equitable remedy, as it, with the advice of counsel, 
shall deem most effectual to protect and enforce such rights. 

In the enforcement of any remedy under this Resolution, the Trustee shall be entitled to 
sue for, enforce payment of and receive any and all amounts then or during any default becoming, 
and at any time remaining, due from the Authority for principal, interest or otherwise under any of 
the provisions of this Resolution or of the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness and unpaid, with interest 
on overdue payments of principal at the rate or rates of interest specified in such Bonds or Parity 
Indebtedness, together with any and all costs and expenses of collection and of all proceedings 
hereunder and under such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, without prejudice to any other right or 
remedy of the Holders, and to recover and enforce any judgment or decree against the Authority, 
but solely as provided herein and in such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, for any portion of such 
amounts remaining unpaid and interest, costs and expenses as above provided, and to collect 
(but solely from money in the Debt Service Fund and from Net Revenue, subject to the prior lien 
on Net Revenue created by the Senior Documents, of the Port Facilities or other money lawfully 
available therefor) in any manner provided by law, the money adjudged or decreed to be payable. 



61 

All rights of action (including, but not limited to the right to file proof of claims) under this 
Resolution or under any of the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness may be enforced by the Trustee 
without possession of any of the Bonds or the Parity Indebtedness or the production thereof, in 
any trial or other proceeding relating thereto, and any such suit or proceeding instituted by the 
Trustee shall be brought in its name as the Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or 
defendants any Holders, and any recovery of judgment shall be for the equal and ratable benefit 
of the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds and Parity Indebtedness. 

Section 803. Pro Rata Application of Funds. Anything in this Resolution to the contrary 
notwithstanding, if at any time the money in the Debt Service Fund shall not be sufficient to pay 
the interest on or the principal of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness as the same shall become 
due and payable, such money, together with any money then available or thereafter becoming 
available for such purpose, whether through the exercise of the remedies provided for in this 
Article or otherwise, shall (subject to the provisions of Section 902) be applied as follows: 

(a) If the principal of all the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall not have 
become or shall not have been declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied: 

First: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of 
interest then due and payable in the order in which such installments became due 
and payable, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any 
particular installment, then to the payment, ratably, according to the amounts due 
on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or 
preference except as to any difference in the respective rates of interest specified 
in the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness; 

Second: to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of any of the 
Bonds or Parity Indebtedness which shall have become due and payable (other 
than Bonds or Parity Indebtedness called for redemption for the payment of which 
moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution), in the order of their 
due dates, with interest on the principal amount of such Bonds or Parity 
Indebtedness at the respective rates specified therein from the respective dates 
upon which such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness become due and payable, and, if 
the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full the principal of the Bonds 
and Parity Indebtedness due and payable on any particular date, together with 
such interest, then to the payment first of such interest, ratably, according to the 
amount of such interest due on such date, and then to the payment of such 
principal, ratably, according to the amount of such principal due on such date, to 
the persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or preference except as to 
any difference in the respective rates of interest specified in the Bonds or Parity 
Indebtedness; and 

Third: to the payment of the interest on and the principal of the Bonds and 
Parity Indebtedness, to the purchase and retirement of Bonds and Parity 
Indebtedness and to the redemption of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness, all in 
accordance with the provisions of Article V of this Resolution. 

(b) If the principal of all of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall have been 
declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied: 



62 

First: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of 
interest due and payable on or prior to maturity, if any, in the order in which such 
installments become due and payable and, if the amount available shall not be 
sufficient to pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment, ratably, 
according to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons entitled thereto, 
without any discrimination or preference except as to any difference in the 
respective rates of interest specified in the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, and then 
to the payment of any interest due and payable after maturity on the Bonds and 
Parity Indebtedness, ratably, to the persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference except as to any difference in the respective rates of 
interest specified in the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness; and 

Second: to the payment of the principal of the Bonds and Parity 
Indebtedness, ratably, to the persons entitled thereto, without preference or priority 
of any Holder. 

(c) If the principal of all the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall be due and 
payable, then the moneys then remaining in and thereafter accruing to the Debt Service Fund 
shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (a) of this Section. 

Whenever any money is to be applied by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of this 
Section, such money shall be applied by the Trustee at such times and from time to time, as the 
Trustee in its sole discretion shall determine, having due regard to the amount of such money 
available for application and the likelihood of additional money becoming available for such 
application in the future; the deposit of such money with the Bond Registrar or the Paying Agents, 
or otherwise setting aside such money, in trust for the proper purpose shall constitute proper 
application by the Trustee; and the Trustee shall incur no liability whatsoever to the Authority, to 
any Holder or to any other person for any delay in applying any such money, so long as the 
Trustee acts with reasonable diligence, having due regard to the circumstances, and ultimately 
applies the same in accordance with such provisions of this Resolution as may be applicable at 
the time of application of the Trustee. Whenever the Trustee shall exercise such discretion in 
applying such money, it shall fix the date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date unless the 
Trustee shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such application is to be made and 
upon such date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on such date shall cease to accrue. 
The Trustee shall give such notice as it shall deem appropriate of the fixing of any such date, and 
shall not be required to make payment to the Holder of any Bond or Parity Indebtedness until 
such Bond or Parity Indebtedness shall be surrendered to the Trustee for appropriate 
endorsement, or for cancellation if fully paid. 

Section 804. Effect of Discontinuance of Proceedings. In case any proceeding taken 
by the Holders on account of any default shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any 
reason, then and in every such case, the Authority, the Trustee and the Holders shall be restored 
to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all rights, remedies, powers and 
duties of the Trustee shall continue as though no proceeding had been taken. 

Section 805. Control of Proceedings by Bondholders. Anything in this Resolution to 
the contrary notwithstanding, the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
then Outstanding hereunder shall have the right by an instrument or concurrent instruments in 
writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the method and place of conducting all 
remedial proceedings to be taken hereunder, provided that such direction shall not be otherwise 
than in accordance with law and the provisions of this Resolution. 



63 

Section 806. Restrictions Upon Individual Bondholder Actions. No Holder shall have 
any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the execution of any trust 
hereunder, or for any other remedy hereunder, unless (i) such Holder previously shall have given 
to the Trustee written notice of the Event of Default on account of which such suit, action or 
proceeding is to be instituted, (ii) the Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the 
Bonds and Parity Indebtedness Outstanding shall have made written request to the Trustee after 
the right to exercise such powers or right of action, as the case may be, shall have accrued, (iii) 
the Trustee shall have been afforded a reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise the 
powers granted hereby or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its or their name, (iv) there 
shall have been offered to the Trustee reasonable security and indemnity against the costs, 
expenses, and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, (v) the Trustee shall have refused or 
neglected to comply with such request within a reasonable time and (vi) the Event of Default on 
account of which such suit, action or proceeding is to be instituted shall not have been remedied 
to the satisfaction of or waived by the Trustee. Such notification, request and offer of indemnity 
are hereby declared in every such case, at the option of the Trustee, to be conditions precedent 
to the execution of the powers and trusts hereof or for any other remedy hereunder and in equity 
or at law. It is understood and intended that not one or more Holders shall have any right in any 
manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the security hereof or to 
enforce any right hereunder except in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law 
or in equity shall be instituted and maintained for the benefit of all Holders. Notwithstanding any 
other provision hereof, the Holder of any Bond or Parity Indebtedness shall have the right which 
is absolute and unconditional to receive payment of the principal of (and premium, if any) and 
interest on such Bond or Parity Indebtedness on the stated maturity expressed in such Bond or 
Parity Indebtedness (or, in the case of redemption, on the redemption date) and to institute suit 
for the enforcement of any such payment, and such right shall not be impaired without the consent 
of such Holder. 

Section 807. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
the Trustee or the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies herein 
provided, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. 

Section 808. Delay Not a Waiver. No delay or omission of the Trustee or any Holder to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or 
power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein. Every 
power and remedy given by this Article VIII to the Trustee and the Holders, respectively, may be 
exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

The Trustee may, and upon written request of the Holders of not less than a majority in 
principal amount of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness Outstanding shall, waive any default which 
in its opinion shall have been remedied before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, 
action or proceeding instituted by it under the provisions hereof or before the completion of the 
enforcement of any other remedy hereunder; provided, however, that no such waiver shall extend 
to or affect any other existing or any subsequent default or defaults or impair any rights or 
remedies consequent thereon 

Section 809. Notice of Event of Default. The Trustee shall give notice of each Event of 
Default hereunder known to the Trustee to the Holders within thirty (30) days after knowledge of 
the occurrence thereof, unless such Event of Default shall have been remedied or cured before 
the giving of such notice; provided, however, that, except in the case of default in the payment of 
the principal of or interest on any of the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, the Trustee shall be 



64 

protected in withholding notice thereof to the Holders if and so long as the Trustee in good faith 
determines that the withholding of such notice is in the best interests of the Holders. Each such 
notice of Event of Default shall be given by the Trustee by mailing written notice thereof: (i) to all 
registered Holders, as the names and addresses of such Holders appear on the books for 
registration and transfer of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness as kept by the Trustee, and (ii) to such 
other persons as is required by law. 

ARTICLE IX. 
CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE, THE BOND REGISTRAR AND DEPOSITARIES 

Section 901. Acceptance of Duties. The Trustee and Bond Registrar undertake to 
perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Resolution, and no 
implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Resolution against the Trustee or the Bond 
Registrar. 

Prior to the occurrence of any Event of Default and after the curing of all such Events of 
Default that may have occurred, the Trustee shall perform such duties and only such duties of the 
Trustee as are specifically set forth in this Resolution. During the existence of any such Event of 
Default that has not been cured the Trustee shall exercise any of the rights and powers vested in 
it by this Resolution and shall use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as a prudent 
man would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs. 

No provision of this Resolution shall be construed to relieve the Trustee from liability for 
its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act, or its own willful misconduct, except that: 

(a) prior to any such Event of Default hereunder, and after the curing of any 
other Events of Default that may have occurred: 

(i) the duties and obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely 
by the express provisions of this Resolution and the Trustee shall not be liable except for the 
performance of such duties and obligations of the Trustee as are specifically set forth in this 
Resolution, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Resolution against the 
Trustee, and 

(ii) in the absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may conclusively 
rely, as to the accuracy of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, 
upon any certificate or opinion furnished to it conforming to the requirements of this Resolution 
but in the case of any such certificate or opinion by which any provision hereof is specifically 
required to be furnished to the Trustee, the Trustee shall be under a duty to examine the same to 
determine whether or not it conforms to the requirements of this Resolution: and 

(b) at all times, regardless of whether or not any such Event of Default shall 
exist: 

(i) the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in 
good faith by a responsible officer or officers of the Trustee unless it shall be proved that the 
Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, and 

(ii) the Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or 
omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less 
than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding 



65 

relating to the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to 
the Trustee, or exercising any power conferred upon the Trustee under this Resolution. 

None of the provisions contained in this Resolution shall require the Trustee to expend or 
risk its own funds, or otherwise incur individual financial liability in the performance of any of its 
duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers. 

Section 902. Indemnification of Trustee as Condition for Remedial Action. The 
Trustee shall be under no obligation to institute any suit or to take any remedial proceeding 
(including, but not limited to, the operation of the Authority or the appointment of a receiver) under 
this Resolution or to enter any appearance or in any way defend in any suit in which it may be 
made defendant, or to take any steps in the execution of any of the trusts hereby created or in 
the enforcement of any rights and powers hereunder, until it shall be indemnified by the Holders 
to its satisfaction against any and all costs and expenses, outlays and counsel fees and other 
reasonable disbursements, and against all liability. The Trustee nevertheless may begin suit, or 
appear in and defend suit, or do anything else in its judgment proper to be done by it as such 
Trustee, without indemnity, and in such case the Authority, at the request of the Trustee, shall 
reimburse the Trustee from the Gross Revenues of the Authority for all reasonable costs, 
expenses, outlays and counsel fees and other reasonable disbursements properly incurred in 
connection therewith. If the Authority shall fail to make such reimbursement, the Trustee may 
reimburse itself from any moneys in its possession under the provisions of this Resolution and 
shall be entitled to a preference therefor over any Bonds or Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding 
hereunder. 

Section 903. Limitations on Obligations and Responsibilities and of Trustee. The 
Trustee shall be under no obligation to effect or maintain insurance or to renew any policies of 
insurance or to inquire as to the sufficiency of any policies of insurance carried by the Authority, 
or to report, or make or file claims or proof of loss for, any loss or damage insured against or that 
may occur, or to keep itself informed or advised as to the payment of any taxes or assessments, 
or to require any such payment to be made. Except as to the acceptance of the trusts of this 
Resolution, the Trustee shall have no responsibility in respect of the validity, sufficiency, due 
acknowledgment of this Resolution, or in respect of the validity of Bonds, Parity Indebtedness or 
the due execution or issuance thereof. The Trustee shall be under no obligation to see that any 
duties herein imposed upon the Authority, the Accountant, the Bond Registrar, any other 
Depositary, or any party other than itself, or any covenants herein contained on the part of any 
party other than itself to be performed, shall be done or performed, and the Trustee shall be under 
no obligation for failure to see that any such duties or covenants are so done or performed. The 
Trustee shall not be responsible for the filing of any documents or the making of any payments to 
the Internal Revenue Service related to arbitrage or any other tax matters. 

The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any duties 
hereunder either directly or by or through custodians, agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall 
not be responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any custodian, agent or 
attorney appointed by the Trustee with due care. 

The permissive right of the Trustee to do things enumerated in this Resolution shall not 
be construed as a duty or obligation. 

Section 904. Trustee Not Liable for Failure of Authority to Act. The Trustee shall not 
be liable or responsible because of the failure of the Authority or of any of its employees or agents 
to make any collections or deposits or to perform any act herein required of the Authority or 



66 

because of the loss of any money arising through the insolvency or the act or default or omission 
of any other Depositary in which such money shall have been deposited under the provisions of 
this Resolution. The Trustee shall not be responsible for the application of any of the proceeds of 
Bonds or any other money deposited with it and paid out, withdrawn or transferred hereunder if 
such application, payment, withdrawal or transfer shall be made in accordance with the provisions 
of this Resolution. The immunities and exemptions from liability of the Trustee hereunder shall 
extend to its directors, officers, employees and agents. 

Section 905. Compensation and Indemnification of Trustee and Bond Registrar. 
Subject to the provisions of any contract between the Authority and the Trustee or the Bond 
Registrar relating to the compensation of the Trustee or the Bond Registrar, the Authority shall 
pay the Trustee or the Bond Registrar reasonable compensation for all services performed by it 
hereunder and also all its reasonable expenses, charges and other disbursements and those of 
its attorneys, agents and employees incurred in and about the administration and the performance 
of its powers and duties hereunder and shall indemnify and save the Trustee and the Bond 
Registrar harmless against any liabilities that they may incur in the proper exercise and 
performance of their powers and duties hereunder. If the Authority shall fail to cause any payment 
required by this Section to be made, the Trustee or the Bond Registrar may make such payment 
from any moneys in its possession under the provisions of this Resolution and shall be entitled to 
a preference therefor over any Bonds or Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding hereunder. The 
Authority covenants that it shall promptly deposit or cause to be deposited to the credit of the 
respective fund or account the amount withdrawn therefrom by the Trustee or the Bond Registrar 
to make any such payment. Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Resolution, the foregoing 
provisions shall survive the satisfaction and discharge of this Resolution or the appointment of a 
successor trustee. 

Section 906. Semi-Annual Statements  from Trustee. It shall be the duty of the 
Trustee, on or before the 31st day of January and July in each year, beginning with January 31, 
2017, to file with the Authority a statement setting forth in respect of the six month period (or 
portion thereof) ended on the next preceding Interest Payment Date (including the first Business 
Day after such date): 

(a) the amount withdrawn or transferred by it and the amount deposited with it 
on account of each fund or account held by it under the provisions of this Resolution, 

(b) the amount on deposit with it at the end of such semi-annual period in each 
such fund or account, 

(c) a brief description of all obligations held by it as an investment of money in 
each such fund or account, 

(d) the amount applied to the purchase or redemption of Bonds under the 
provisions of Articles III or V of this Resolution and a description of the Bonds or portions thereof 
so purchased or redeemed, and 

(e) any other information that the Authority may reasonably request. 

All records and files pertaining to Bonds in the custody of the Trustee shall be open at all 
reasonable times to the inspection of the Authority and its agents and representatives. 



67 

Section 907. Trustee May Rely on Certificates. If at any time it shall be necessary or 
desirable for the Trustee to make any investigation respecting any fact preparatory to taking or 
not taking any action or doing or not doing anything as such Trustee, and in any case in which 
this Resolution provides for permitting or taking any action, the Trustee may rely upon any 
certificate required or permitted to be filed with it under the provisions of this Resolution, and any 
such certificate shall be evidence of such fact or protect the Trustee in any action that it may or 
may not take or in respect of anything it may or may not do, in good faith, by reason of the 
supposed existence of such fact. Except as otherwise provided in this Resolution, any request, 
notice, certificate or other instrument from the Authority to the Trustee shall be deemed to have 
been signed by the proper party or parties if signed by any Authority representative who may 
deliver an Officer's Certificate, and the Trustee may accept and rely upon an Officer's Certificate 
as to any action taken by the Authority. 

Section 908. Notice of Default. Except upon the happening of any Event of Default 
specified in clauses (a) and (b) of Section 801 of this Resolution, the Trustee shall not be obliged 
to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any Event of Default under this Resolution, unless 
specifically notified in writing of such Event of Default by the Authority or the Holders of not less 
than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness 
then Outstanding. 

Section 909. Trustee Not Responsible for Recitals. The recitals, statements and 
representations contained herein and in the Bonds shall be taken and construed as made by and 
on the part of the Authority and not by the Trustee, and the Trustee assumes and shall be under 
no responsibility for the correctness of the same. 

Section 910. Trustee Protected in Relying on Certain Documents. The Trustee shall 
be protected and shall incur no liability in acting or proceeding, or in not acting or not proceeding, 
in good faith, reasonably and in accordance with the terms of this Resolution, upon any resolution, 
order, notice, request, consent, waiver, certificate, statement, affidavit, requisition, bond or other 
paper or document that it shall in good faith reasonably believe to be genuine and to have been 
adopted or signed by the proper board or person or to have been prepared and furnished pursuant 
to any of the provisions of this Resolution, or upon the written opinion of any attorney, engineer 
or accountant believed by the Trustee to be qualified in relation to the subject matter, and the 
Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or inquiry as to any statements contained 
or matters referred to in any such instrument. The Trustee shall not be under any obligation to 
see to the recording or filing of this Resolution or Uniform Commercial Code financing statements 
or otherwise to the giving to any person of notice of the provisions hereof. 

Section 911. Resignation and Removal of Trustee Subject to Appointment  
Successor. No resignation or removal of the Trustee and no appointment of a successor Trustee 
pursuant to this Article shall become effective until the acceptance of appointment by the 
successor Trustee under Section 914 of this Article. 

Section 912. Resignation of Trustee. The Trustee may resign and thereby become 
discharged from the trusts hereby created, by notice in writing given to the Authority, not less than 
sixty (60) days before such resignation is to take effect, but such resignation shall take effect 
immediately upon the appointment of a new Trustee hereunder if such new Trustee shall be 
appointed before the time limited by such notice and shall then accept the trusts hereof. 

Section 913. Removal of Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time by an 
instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, executed by the Holders of not less than a majority 



68 

in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding and filed with 
the Authority, not less than sixty (60) days before such removal is to take effect as stated in said 
instrument or instruments. A photographic copy of any instrument or instruments filed with the 
Authority under the provisions of this paragraph, duly certified by the Secretary or any Assistant 
Secretary of the Authority as having been received by the Authority, shall be delivered promptly 
by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority to the Trustee. 

So long as the Authority shall not be in default under this Resolution, the Trustee may also 
be removed, with or without cause, at any time by an instrument in writing authorized by the 
Authority and filed with the Trustee not less than sixty (60) days before such removal is to take 
effect as stated in said instrument. 

The Trustee may also be removed at any time for acting or proceeding in violation of, or 
for failing to act or proceed in accordance with, any provisions of this Resolution with respect to 
the duties and obligations of the Trustee by any court of competent jurisdiction upon the 
application of the Authority or the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding. 

Section 914. Appointment of Successor Trustee. If at any time hereafter the Trustee 
shall resign, be removed, be dissolved or otherwise become incapable of acting, or the bank or 
trust company acting as Trustee shall be taken over by any governmental official, agency, 
department or board, the position of Trustee shall thereupon become vacant. If the position of 
Trustee shall become vacant for any reason, the Authority shall appoint a Trustee to fill such 
vacancy. Any corporation or association into which the Trustee in its individual capacity may be 
merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated, or any corporation or association 
resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which the Trustee in its individual 
capacity may be sold or otherwise transferred, shall be the Trustee hereunder without further act, 
provided that such corporation or association is (a) a bank or trust company within or without the 
Commonwealth which is duly authorized to exercise corporate trust powers and subject to 
examination by federal or Commonwealth authority, of good standing and having a combined 
capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than $50,000,000 or (b) a subsidiary trust 
company under the Trust Subsidiary Act, 6.2, Chapter 10, Article 3, Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, whose parent bank or bank holding company has undertaken to be responsible for the 
acts of such subsidiary trust company pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.2-1056 of the Trust 
Subsidiary Act, or any successor provision of law, and whose combined capital, surplus and 
undivided profits, together with that of its parent bank or bank holding company, as the case may 
be, is not less than $50,000,000. The Authority shall mail notice of any such appointment, postage 
prepaid, to all Holders. 

At any time within one year after any such vacancy shall have occurred, the Holders of a 
majority in principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding, by an instrument 
or concurrent instruments in writing, executed by such Holders and filed with the Authority, may 
nominate a successor Trustee, which the Authority shall appoint and which shall supersede any 
Trustee theretofore appointed by the Authority. Photographic copies, duly certified by the 
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority as having been received by the Authority, 
of each such instrument shall be delivered promptly by the Authority to the predecessor Trustee 
and to the Trustee so appointed by the Holders. 

Except with respect to the appointment by the Authority of a successor Trustee after its 
removal of the existing Trustee pursuant to the penultimate paragraph of Section 913 of this 
Article, at any time within one year after any such vacancy shall have occurred, the Holders of a 



69 

majority in principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding, by an instrument 
or concurrent instruments in writing, executed by such Holders and filed with the Authority, may 
nominate a successor Trustee, which the Authority shall appoint and which shall supersede any 
Trustee theretofore appointed by the Authority. Photographic copies, duly certified by the 
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority as having been received by the Authority, 
of each such instrument shall be delivered promptly by the Authority to the predecessor Trustee 
and to the Trustee so appointed by the Holders. 

If no appointment of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to the foregoing 
provisions of this Section, any Holder hereunder or any retiring Trustee may apply to any court of 
competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor Trustee. Such court may thereupon, after such 
notice, if any, as such court may deem proper and prescribed appoint a successor Trustee. 

Any successor Trustee hereafter appointed shall be (a) a bank or trust company within the 
Commonwealth which is duly authorized to exercise corporate trust powers and subject to 
examination by federal or Commonwealth authority, of good standing, and having a combined 
capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than $50,000,000 or (b) a subsidiary trust 
company under the Trust Subsidiary Act, 6.2, Chapter 10, Article 3, Code of Virginia, 1950, as 
amended, whose parent bank or bank holding company has undertaken to be responsible for the 
acts of such subsidiary trust company pursuant to the provisions of Section 6.2-1056 of the Trust 
Subsidiary Act, or any successor provision of law, and whose combined capital, surplus and 
undivided profits, together with that of its parent bank or bank holding company, as the case may 
be, is not less than $50,000,000. 

Section 915. Vesting of Duties in Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee 
appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor, and also to the 
Authority, an instrument in writing accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon such 
successor Trustee, without any further act, shall become fully vested with all the rights, 
immunities, powers and trusts, and subject to all the duties and obligations, of its predecessor; 
but such predecessor shall nevertheless, on the written request of its successor or of the Authority 
and upon payment of the expenses, charges and other disbursements of such predecessor that 
are payable pursuant to the provisions of Section 905 of this Article, execute and deliver an 
instrument transferring to such successor Trustee all the rights, immunities, powers and trusts, of 
such predecessor hereunder; and every predecessor Trustee shall deliver all property and money 
held by it hereunder to its successor. Should any instrument in writing from the Authority be 
required by any successor Trustee for more fully and certainly vesting in such Trustee the rights, 
immunities, powers and trusts hereby vested or intended to be vested in the predecessor Trustee, 
any such instrument in writing shall and will, on request, be executed, acknowledged and 
delivered by the Authority. 

Section 916. Depositaries. The Authority shall designate and appoint, from time to time, 
one or more Depositaries to receive and hold the moneys to the credit of the Operating Account, 
the Construction Fund and any other Fund or Account created under this Resolution, and such 
Depositaries shall acknowledge, by a writing delivered to the Authority and the Trustee, their 
acceptance of such appointment and of the duties imposed by this Resolution. The Authority may 
replace any Depositary at any time, and any Depositary may resign at any time, in either of which 
case the Depositary shall transfer all moneys held by such Depositary in the applicable Fund or 
Account to the Trustee which shall act as Depositary thereof pending subsequent action by the 
Authority. 



70 

Section 917. Co-Trustee. At any time or times, in order to conform to any legal 
requirements, the Trustee and the Authority shall have power to appoint, and upon request of the 
Trustee, the Authority shall join with the Trustee in the execution and delivery of all instruments 
and the performance of all acts necessary or proper to appoint, another trust company or bank or 
one or more persons, approved by the Trustee, either to act as co-trustee or co-trustees of all or 
any part of the trust estate jointly with the Trustee, or to act as substitute trustee or trustees of 
any part of the same, and in any case with such or all of the powers, rights, duties, obligations 
and immunities hereby conferred or imposed on the Trustee as may be specified in the instrument 
of appointment, and for such term, if any limitation is placed thereon, as may be specified in the 
instrument of appointment, the same to be exercised jointly with the Trustee, except to the extent 
that under any law of any jurisdiction in which any particular act or acts to be performed, the 
Trustee shall be incompetent or unqualified to perform such act or acts, in which event such rights, 
powers, duties and obligations shall be exercised and performed by such co-trustee or co-trustees 
or substitute trustee or trustees; and if an Event of Default shall have happened and shall not 
have been remedied or if the Authority shall wrongly fail to join with the Trustee in any such 
appointment within five days after being requested by the Trustee so to do, the Trustee shall have 
power, without any action on the part of the Authority and without the necessity of the execution 
of any such instrument of appointment by the Authority, to appoint such co-trustee or co-trustees 
or substitute trustee or trustees as aforesaid, and to execute all instruments and perform all acts 
necessary or convenient and proper for such purpose. The Trustee shall have the right to 
discharge a co-trustee or co-trustees or substitute trustee or substitute trustees. The Trustee may 
receive an Opinion of Counsel as to the necessity or propriety of appointing any such co-trustee 
or substitute trustee and as to the form and effect of any such instrument to be executed or any 
act to be taken to effect such appointment and as to any other matter arising under this Section 
and such opinion shall be full protection to the Trustee for any action taken or omitted to be taken 
by it pursuant thereto. 

ARTICLE X. 
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY HOLDERS AND  

PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF BONDS 

Section 1001. Execution of Instruments by Holders. Any request, direction, consent or 
other instrument in writing required or permitted by this Resolution to be signed or executed by 
Holders may be in any number of concurrent instruments of similar tenor and may be signed or 
executed by such Holders or their attorneys or legal representatives. Proofs of the execution of 
any such instrument, and of the ownership of Bonds shall be sufficient for any purpose of this 
Resolution and shall be conclusive in favor of the Authority or the Trustee with regard to any 
action taken by it under such instrument if made in the following manner: 

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument 
may be proved by the verification of any officer in any jurisdiction who, by the laws thereof, has 
power to take affidavits within such jurisdiction, to the effect that such instrument was subscribed 
and sworn to before him, or by an affidavit of a witness to such execution. Where such execution 
is on behalf of a person other than an individual, such verification or affidavit shall also constitute 
sufficient proof of the authority of the signer thereof, and 

(b) The ownership of Bonds shall be proved by the registration books kept 
under the provisions of Section 206 of this Resolution. 

Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as limiting the Authority or the Trustee to such 
proof, it being intended that the Authority and the Trustee may accept any other evidence of the 



71 

matters herein stated which it may deem sufficient. Any request or consent of the Holder of any 
Bond shall bind every future Holder of the same Bond in respect of anything done by the Authority 
or the Trustee in pursuance of such request or consent. 

 

 

ARTICLE XI. 
AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE RESOLUTIONS; AMENDMENTS 

AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE PORT OPERATOR AGREEMENTS 

Section 1101. Adoption of Supplemental Resolutions by Board. The Board may, from 
time to time and at any time, adopt such resolutions supplemental hereto as shall not be 
inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Resolution, for any one or more of the following 
purposes: 

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Resolution or in 
any Supplemental Resolution, or 

(b) to grant to or confer upon the Holders any additional rights, remedies, 
powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Holders, or 

(c) to modify, amend or supplement this Resolution or any Supplemental 
Resolution in such manner as to permit the qualification hereof and thereof under any Federal 
statute now or hereafter in effect or under any state blue sky law, and, in connection therewith, if 
the Board so determines, to add to this Resolution or any Supplemental Resolution such other 
terms, conditions and provisions as may be permitted or required by such Federal statute or Blue 
Sky law, provided that any such Supplemental Resolution referred to in this subsection (c) shall 
not, in the opinion of counsel, be to the prejudice of the Holders of the Bonds, or 

(d) to add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the issuance of 
Bonds under the provisions of this Resolution other conditions, limitations and restrictions 
thereafter to be observed, or 

(e) to provide by Series Resolutions for the issuance of the 2025 Bonds 
authorized by Section 208 and of Additional Bonds and Refunding Bonds pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 209 and 210, respectively, of this Resolution and, as contemplated by 
Section 720, provide for the incurring of, and make the corresponding modifications to this 
Resolution required by, Parity Indebtedness, or 

(f) to provide for the issuance of Bonds (i) in coupon form or (ii) in 
uncertificated form and, in each case, for the exchange, redemption and payment thereof, or 

(g) to carry out the intention of this Resolution in the event that the Fiscal Year 
of the Commonwealth, the Authority or a Port Operator or its Subsidiary shall be other than July 
1 of one year until June 30 of the next succeeding year, or 

(h) to modify or amend the covenants and agreements of the Authority in this 
Resolution in any manner that shall not, in the opinion of the Trustee and the Authority, in reliance 
upon opinions and certificates furnished to them, be adverse to the interests of the Holders, or 



72 

(i) if not otherwise authorized by one of clauses (a) to (h), to comply with any 
valid Governmental Restriction. 

Before the delivery of the 2025 Bonds, each of the Executive Director or the Chief 
Financial Officer, is authorized to revise this Resolution to the extent the revision does not conflict 
with the intent of this Resolution or any future resolution by the Board, as shall be necessary to 
accurately reflect the terms, conditions, and requirements related to the 2025 Bonds.  Certification 
of this Resolution by the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer shall be conclusive evidence 
of the final form of this Resolution.   

Section 1102. Modification of Resolution with Holder Consent. Subject to the terms 
and provisions contained in this Section, and not otherwise, the Holders of not less than a majority 
in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding shall have 
the right, from time to time, anything contained in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, 
to consent to and approve the adoption by the Board of such resolution or resolutions 
supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the Board for the purpose of 
modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or 
provisions contained in this Resolution or in any Supplemental Resolution; provided, however, 
that nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed as permitting (a) an extension of the 
maturity of the principal of or the interest on any Bond issued hereunder or (b) a reduction in the 
principal amount of any Bond or the redemption premium or the rate of interest thereon, or (c) 
with the exception of the Senior Documents, the creation of a lien upon or a pledge of Net 
Revenue superior to or on a parity with the lien and pledge of Net Revenue other than the lien 
and pledge created by this Resolution, or (d) a preference or priority of any Bonds or Parity 
Indebtedness over any other Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, or (e) a reduction in the aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness required for consent to such Supplemental 
Resolution. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be construed as making necessary the 
approval by Holders of the adoption of any Supplemental Resolution as authorized in Section 
1101 of this Article. 

The Trustee shall cause notice of the proposed adoption of any Supplemental Resolution 
pursuant to the provisions of this Section to be mailed, postage prepaid, to all Holders at their 
addresses as they appear on the registration books. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature 
of the proposed Supplemental Resolution and shall state that copies thereof are on file at the 
office of the Trustee for inspection by all Holders. The Trustee shall not, however, be subject to 
any liability to any Holder by reason of his failure to mail the notice required by this Section, and 
any such failure shall not affect the validity of such Supplemental Resolution when consented to 
and approved as provided in this Section. 

Whenever, at any time within one year after the date of the first publication of such notice, 
there shall be filed with the Trustee an instrument or instruments in writing purporting to be 
executed by the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the 
proposed Supplemental Resolution described in such notice and shall specifically consent to and 
approve the adoption thereof in substantially the form thereof referred to in such notice, 
thereupon, but not otherwise, the Board may adopt such Supplemental Resolution substantially 
in such form, without liability or responsibility to any Holder, whether or not such Holder shall have 
consented thereto. 

If the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and 
Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding at the time of the adoption of such Supplemental 



73 

Resolution shall have consented to and approved the adoption thereof as herein provided, no 
Holder shall have any right to object to the adoption of such Supplemental Resolution, or to object 
to any of the terms and provisions contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to 
question the propriety of the adoption thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Board from adopting the 
same or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

Section 1103. Supplemental Resolutions a Part of this Resolution. Any Supplemental 
Resolution adopted in accordance with the provisions of this Article shall thereafter form a part of 
this Resolution, and all of the terms and conditions contained in any such Supplemental 
Resolution as to any provision authorized to be contained therein shall be and shall be deemed 
to be part of the terms and conditions of this Resolution for any and all purposes. In case of the 
adoption of any Supplemental Resolution, express reference may be made thereto in the text of 
any Bonds issued thereafter, if deemed necessary or desirable by the Board. 

In connection with the adoption by the Authority of any Supplemental Resolution permitted 
by this Article XI or in the modification of trusts created under this Resolution, the Trustee shall 
be entitled to receive, and shall be fully protected in relying upon, an Opinion of Counsel stating 
that the adoption of such Supplemental Resolution is authorized or permitted by this Resolution. 
The Authority shall not adopt any such Supplemental Resolution that affects the Trustee's rights, 
duties or immunities under this Resolution, without the prior written consent of the Trustee. 

Section 1104. Supplements and Amendments to Port Operator Agreements. 
Without: Bondholder Consent. Without limiting the right of the Authority to terminate any Port 
Operator Agreement pursuant to Section 719(c) of this Resolution, the Authority and the Port 
Operators may, from time to time and at any time, enter into such supplements or amendments 
to the Port Operator Agreements as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this 
Resolution, 

(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission or to correct any 
inconsistent provisions in the Port Operator Agreements, or in any supplement or amendment to 
such agreement, or 

(b) to make any other change in, or waive any provision of, the Port Operator 
Agreements, provided only that, in the judgment of the Executive Director of the Authority, 
expressed in writing to the Trustee, the ability of the Authority to comply with the provisions of 
Section 501(a) of this Resolution shall not be materially impaired. 

Section 1105. Supplements and Amendments to Port Operator Agreements Without 
Bondholder Consent. Except for supplements or amendments provided for in Section 1104 of 
this Article, the Authority shall not agree to any supplement or amendment to the Port Operator 
Agreements, unless notice of the proposed execution of such supplement or amendment shall 
have been given and the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding shall have consented to and approved the 
execution thereof, all as provided for in Section 1102 of this Resolution in the case of a 
supplement or amendment to this Resolution. 

ARTICLE XII. 
DEFEASANCE 

Section 1201. Cessation of Interest of Bondholders. (a) If the Authority shall pay or 
cause to be paid the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all Bonds and Parity 



74 

Indebtedness then Outstanding hereunder, together with all other sums payable hereunder by 
the Authority, then and in that case the rights, title and interest of the Trustee in and to the estate 
pledged to it under this Resolution shall cease, terminate and become void, and such Bonds and 
Parity Indebtedness shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under this Resolution. 
In such event, the Trustee shall turn over to the Authority any surplus in the Debt Service Fund. 

(b) If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid to the Holders of less than all 
of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding, the principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, or such portions thereof, such Bonds and Parity 
Indebtedness, or such portions thereof, shall cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security 
under this Resolution. 

(c) Outstanding Bonds and Parity Indebtedness (or any portion thereof) shall 
be deemed to have been paid for the purposes of subsection (a) or (b) of this Section when (i) 
there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either moneys in an amount, which, or 
Government Obligations (which shall not contain provisions permitting the redemption thereof at 
the option of the issuer) the principal of and the interest on which when due, and without any 
reinvestment thereof, will provide moneys in an amount, which, together with the moneys, if any, 
deposited with or held by the Trustee or any Paying Agent available therefor, shall be sufficient 
as confirmed in the report of a nationally recognized verification agent or independent certified 
public accountant to pay when due the principal of and premium, if any, and interest due and to 
become due on said Bonds or Parity Indebtedness (or portions thereof) on or prior to the 
redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, (ii) in case said Bonds or Parity 
Indebtedness (or portions thereof) have been selected for redemption in accordance with the 
provisions hereof prior to their maturity, the Authority shall have given to the Trustee irrevocable 
instructions to give in accordance with the provisions of Section 303 hereof notice of redemption 
of such Bonds, or portions thereof, (together with any required notice required by Parity 
Indebtedness, if any), (iii) in the event said Bonds or Parity Indebtedness are not to mature or be 
redeemed within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the Authority shall have given the Trustee 
irrevocable instructions to give, as soon as practicable in the same manner as a notice of 
redemption is given pursuant to Section 303 hereof, notice to the Holders of said Bonds, or 
portions thereof, (together with any required notice required by Parity Indebtedness, if any) stating 
that moneys or Government Obligations have been deposited with the Trustee as provided in this 
Article XII and that said Bonds, or portions thereof, and Parity Indebtedness, if any, are deemed 
to have been paid in accordance with this Article and stating the maturity or redemption date upon 
which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on said Bonds, or portions thereof, and Parity Indebtedness, if any, and (iv) provisions 
satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the payment of the Bond Registrar and the 
Trustee's fees and expenses, and any Paying Agent's fees and all fees and expenses payable by 
the Authority in connection with the defeasance of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness, if any. 

(d) The moneys and Government Obligations deposited with the Trustee 
pursuant to this Section and all payments of principal or interest on any such Government 
Obligations shall not be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust 
for, the payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on said Bonds, or portions 
thereof, and Parity Indebtedness, if any, deemed to have been paid in accordance with this 
Section. 

(e) If Bonds, or portions thereof, and Parity Indebtedness, if any, are deemed 
to have been paid in accordance with the provisions of this Article by reason of the deposit with 
the Trustee of moneys or Government Obligations, no amendment to the provisions of this 



75 

Section which would adversely affect the Holders shall be made without the consent of each 
Holder affected thereby. 

(f) The Authority may provide in the Series Resolution authorizing the 
issuance of such Bonds for the defeasance of Bonds constituting Variable Rate Indebtedness or 
Optional Tender Indebtedness. 

(g) All money and Government Obligations held by the Treasurer of the 
Commonwealth, the Bond Registrar or the Paying Agents pursuant to this Article shall be held in 
trust and applied to the payment, when due, of the Bonds, or portions thereof, and Parity 
Indebtedness, if any, payable therefrom. 

(h) In connection with the defeasance of the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness 
pursuant to this Article XII, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive an Opinion of Counsel to the 
effect that all conditions precedent in this Resolution relating to defeasance of the Bonds and 
Parity Indebtedness have been complied with. 

ARTICLE XIII. 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 1301. Successorship of Bond Registrar and Paying Agents. The Authority 
may at any time remove the Bond Registrar or any Paying Agent, and any Paying Agent and the 
Bond Registrar may at any time resign. If the position of the Bond Registrar or any Paying Agent 
shall become vacant for any reason, the Authority shall appoint, within thirty (30) days thereafter, 
a person meeting the applicable requirements of this Resolution to fill such vacancy. Any bank or 
trust company with or into which the Bond Registrar or any Paying Agent may be merged or 
consolidated, or to which the assets and business of the Bond Registrar or such Paying Agent 
may be sold, shall be deemed the successor of the Bond Registrar or such Paying Agent for the 
purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 1302. Dealing in Bonds. Any person acting as the Trustee, a Depositary, the 
Bond Registrar or a Paying Agent under this Resolution and its directors, officers, employees or 
agents, and any officer, employee or agent of the Authority may in good faith buy, sell, own, hold 
and deal in any of the Bonds issued under the provisions of this Resolution and may join in any 
action which any Holder may be entitled to take with like effect as if such person were not the 
Trustee, a Depositary, the Bond Registrar or a Paying Agent under this Resolution or as if such 
officer, employee or agent of the Authority did not serve in such capacity. 

Section 1303. Manner of Giving Notice. Any notice, demand, direction, request or other 
instrument authorized or required by this Resolution to be given to or filed with the Authority or 
the Treasurer of the Commonwealth, shall be deemed to have been sufficiently given or filed for 
all purposes of this Resolution, if made, given, furnished or filed in writing to or with the Authority, 
the Treasurer of the Commonwealth or the Trustee if sent by United States registered mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows: 

to the Authority, if addressed to the Executive Director, Virginia Port Authority, 600 
World Trade Center, Norfolk, Virginia 23510; and 

to the Trustee, if addressed to __________. 



76 

Upon written notice to the respective parties mentioned above, any of the above or subsequent 
addresses may be changed. 

Except as provided in Section 404 of this Resolution, all documents received by the 
Trustee or a Depositary under the provisions of this Resolution, or photographic copies thereof, 
shall be retained in his possession until the lien of this Resolution shall be defeased under the 
provisions of Section 1201 of this Resolution, subject to all reasonable times to the inspection of 
the Authority, the Trustee and the agents and representatives thereof. 

Section 1304. Authority, Trustee and Holders Alone Have Rights Under Resolution. 
Except as herein otherwise expressly provided nothing in this Resolution, express or implied, is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation, other than the 
Authority, the Trustee and the Holders, any right, remedy or claim, legal or equitable, under or by 
reason of this Resolution or any provision hereof, this Resolution and all its provisions being 
intended to be and being for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority, the Trustee and the 
Holders. 

Section 1305. Effect of Partial Invalidity. In case any one or more of the provisions of 
this Resolution shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid such illegality or invalidity shall 
not affect other provisions of this Resolution, but this Resolution shall be construed and enforced 
as if such illegal or invalid provisions had not been contained therein. 

Section 1306. Effect of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and 
agreements of the Authority contained in this Resolution shall be deemed to be covenants, 
stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Authority to the full extent permitted by the 
Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement 
contained herein shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement of any 
present or future officer, agent or employee of the Authority in his individual capacity, and no 
officer of the Board executing the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness shall be liable personally on the 
Bonds or Parity Indebtedness or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of 
the issuance thereof. No officer, agent or employee of the Authority shall incur any personal 
liability in acting or proceeding or in not acting or not proceeding, in good faith, reasonably and in 
accordance with the terms of this Resolution. This Resolution is adopted with the intent that the 
laws of the Commonwealth shall govern its construction. 

Section 1307. Expenses Payable. Under Resolution. All expenses incurred in carrying 
out this Resolution shall be payable solely from funds provided under the authority of this 
Resolution, and no liability or obligation shall be incurred by the Authority beyond the extent to 
which money shall have been provided under this Resolution. 

Section 1308. Resolution Effective. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 



 

 

Passed and adopted by the Board of Commissioners on April 29, 2025. 

By:        
Name: Aubrey Layne 
Title: Chairman 
 
 

By:       
Name: Lisa Nelson 
Title: Secretary to the Board 
 



 

1 
 

Schedule 506(d)(1) 
Notice of an Event of Default or an Event of Non-Appropriation 

 
VIRGINIA INTERNATIONAL GATEWAY, INC.  
1000 Virginia International Gateway Boulevard 

Portsmouth, Virginia 23703 
 
 

________________, 20__ 
 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND REGISTERED MAIL 
 
[Reserved for Trustee address] 
 

NOTICE OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT OR AN EVENT OF NON-APPROPRIATION 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Reference is hereby made to that certain Second Amended and Restated Deed of 
Facilities Lease Agreement, by and between Virginia International Gateway, Inc., a Virginia 
corporation ("VIG"), and Virginia Port Authority, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia (the "Authority"), dated __________ _____, 2025 (the "Lease"), and Resolution No. 25-
_____ of the Authority adopted on __________ _____, 2025 (the "Bond Resolution"), under which 
__________, has been appointed Trustee (the "Trustee"). All terms used but not defined herein 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease. 

Pursuant to Section 20(c) of the Lease, VIG hereby notifies the Trustee that an [Event of 
Default] [Event of Non-Appropriation] under the Lease has occurred due to ______________. 

As a result of the [Event of Default] [Event of Non-Appropriation] described above, from 
the date hereof until the Trustee has received a subsequent notice from VIG that the [Event of 
Default] [Event of Non-Appropriation] has been cured, the Trustee shall not accept any payment 
from the Authority from Net Revenue for deposit to the Debt Service Fund (as defined in the Bond 
Resolution), pursuant to Section 506(d) of the Bond Resolution, or the Revenue Stabilization Fund 
(as defined in the Bond Resolution), if in existence, pursuant to Section 509 of the Bond 
Resolution. 

VIG hereby expressly reserves its right to purse all remedies available as provided in 
Section 20 of the Lease. 

By copy of this letter to each of the parties identified at the end of this letter, VIG hereby 
notifies each of such parties that an [Event of Default] [Event of Non-Appropriation] has occurred 
under the Lease. 

[Signature Page Follows] 



 

2 

 

Sincerely, 
 
VIRGINIA INTERNATIONAL GATEWAY, LLC 
 
 
By:        
 
 

cc: Virginia Port Authority 
600 World Trade Center 
Norfolk, Virginia 23510 
Attn: Stephen Edwards, Executive Director 
 
With a copy to  
 
Sarah McCoy, General Counsel 
At the same address 
 
Virginia International Terminals, LLC 
600 World Trade Center 
Norfolk, Virginia 23510 
Attn: Joe Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer 
 
McGuireWoods LLP 
800 East Canal Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
Attention: T.W. Bruno 
 
 



 

1 
 

Schedule 506(d)(2) 
 

Notice, of Cure of an Event of Default or an Event of Non-Appropriation 
 

VIRGINIA INTERNATIONAL GATEWAY, INC.  
1000 Virginia International Gateway Boulevard  

Portsmouth, Virginia 23703 
 

_________________, 20__ 
 

 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL AND REGISTERED MAIL; 

[Trustee Address] 
 
NOTICE OF CURE OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT OR AN EVENT OF NON-APPROPRIATION 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Reference is hereby made to that certain Second Amended and Restated Deed of 
Facilities Lease Agreement, by and between Virginia International Gateway, Inc., a Virginia 
corporation ("VIG"), and Virginia Port Authority, a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia (the "Authority"), dated __________ _____, 2025 (the "Lease"), and Resolution No. 25-
_____ of the Authority adopted on __________ _____, 2025 (the "Bond Resolution"), under which 
__________ has been appointed Trustee (the "Trustee"). All terms used but not defined herein 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease. 

Pursuant to Section 20(c) of the Lease, VIG hereby notifies the Trustee that the [Event of 
Default] [Event of Non-Appropriation] described in the Notice of an Event of Default or an Event 
of on-Appropriation, dated _______, 20_____ (the "Default Notice"), heretofore delivered to the 
Trustee, has been cured as follows. _____________________________ 

Pursuant to the delivery of this notice, the Trustee is no longer prohibited from accepting 
payment from the Authority from Net Revenue for deposit to the Debt Service Fund (as defined 
in the Bond Resolution), pursuant to Section 506(d) of the Bond Resolution, or the Revenue 
Stabilization Fund (as defined in the Bond Resolution), if in existence, pursuant to Section 509 of 
the Bond Resolution. 

By copy of this letter to each of the parties identified at the end of this letter, VIG hereby 
notifies each of such parties that the [Event of Default] [Event of Non-Appropriation] identified in 
the Default Notice has been cured. 

[Signature Page Follows] 
  



2 
 

Sincerely, 
 
VIRGINIA INTERNATIONAL GATEWAY, LLC 
 
 
By:        
 
 

cc: Virginia Port Authority 
600 World Trade Center 
Norfolk, Virginia 23510 
Attn: Stephen Edwards, Executive Director 
 
With a copy to  
 
Sarah McCoy, General Counsel 
At the same address 
 
Virginia International Terminals, LLC 
600 World Trade Center 
Norfolk, Virginia 23510 
Attn: Joe Ruddy, Chief Operations Officer 
 
McGuireWoods LLP 
800 East Canal Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
Attention: T.W. Bruno 

 



202372809_2.docx 

VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 25-09 

 
RESOLUTION SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION NO. 25-08 OF THE VIRGINIA PORT 
AUTHORITY AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF UP TO $495,000,000 PORT 
FACILITIES REVENUE LINE OF CREDIT NOTE, SERIES 2025, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
FINANCING AND REFINANCING PROJECTS OF THE AUTHORITY; ESTABLISHING 
GUIDLELINES AND STANDARDS AND DELEGATING TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE AUTHORITY RESPONSIBILITY FOR FIXING THE 
PRINICPAL AMOUNT, THE MATURITY DATES, THE INTEREST RATES, THE REDEMPTION 
PROVISIONS AND OTHER DETAILS OF SUCH NOTES; PROVIDING FOR THE 
APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS THEREOF; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY 
OF THE NOTE AND A CREDIT AGREEMENT FOR THE NOTE; AND DIRECTING THE 
AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF THE NOTE. 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority") acting by its Board of 
Commissioners (the "Board") has heretofore adopted Resolution No. 25-08 (the "Bond 
Resolution"), which in Section 510(d) authorizes the issuance of the Series 2025 Line of Credit 
Note (as hereinafter defined) as a Subordinate Obligation (as defined in the Bond Resolution); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to enter into a credit facility that will be 
evidenced by a Credit Agreement dated as of July 1, 2025 (or such other date related to the date 
of execution and delivery of the agreement, the "Credit Agreement"), between the Authority and 
Bank of America, N.A. (the "Lender") and the Authority's up to $495,000,000 Port Facilities 
Revenue Line of Credit Note, Series 2025 (the "Series 2025 Line of Credit Note" and together 
with the Credit Agreement, the "Line of Credit Documents"), the proceeds of which will be 
available to the Authority for its general purposes, including the refinancing of existing obligations 
and the financing of Authority projects; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly reviewed and considered the forms of the Line of Credit 
Documents and has determined that each is in acceptable form; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found and determined that the issuance and sale of the Series 
2025 Line of Credit Note on the terms contemplated hereby and in the Line of Credit Document 
are in conformity with the purposes of the Authority set forth in the Act and are in the public interest 
and otherwise beneficial to the Commonwealth of Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, Section 510(d) of the Bond Resolution contemplates that the Board will fix or 
provide for in this Series Resolution the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2025 Line of 
Credit Note, the maturity dates, the interest rates, the redemption provisions and other details 
thereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to delegate to the Executive 
Director or the Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, the authority to approve the sale 
of the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note and the details of the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note that 
cannot be determined except under actual market conditions as they exist at the time of the 
issuance of the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note, but subject to the parameters established hereby. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority, as follows: 



 -2- 

Section 1. Authorization of Line of Credit. (a) (i) Pursuant to Section 510(d) of the 
Bond Resolution, the Authority is hereby authorized to issue the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note 
in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $495,000,000 for the Authority's general 
purposes, including the refinancing of existing obligations and the financing of Authority projects. 
The Series 2025 Line of Credit Note shall mature no later than December 31, 2025, subject to 
extension and term out provisions in accordance with the Credit Agreement.   

 (ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if upon delivery of the Series 2025 Line of 
Credit Note and the Credit Agreement, Resolution 16-9 adopted September 21, 2016 (the "2016 
Resolution") and the bonds and subordinate obligations issued thereunder have not been 
defeased, retired, or terminated, then the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note shall be issued as a 
subordinate obligation under Section 510 of the 2016 Resolution, until such time as the 2016 
Resolution has been terminated in accordance with Section 1201(a) thereof. 

(b) The Series 2025 Line of Credit Note will be issued in fully registered form, in the 
name of the Lender (or its designee). Payments of the principal of and interest on the Series 2025 
Line of Credit Note will be made in accordance with the Credit Agreement on the applicable 
payment dates. 

The Series 2025 Line of Credit Note will be issued substantially in the form set forth in the 
Credit Agreement, with appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as may be permitted or 
required by the Bond Resolution and this Series Resolution. There may be endorsed on the Series 
2025 Line of Credit Note such legend or text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to 
any applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement 
of law. 

(c) The Series 2025 Line of Credit Note shall be issued in a principal amount not 
exceeding the amount specified in Section 1(a) hereof; shall be dated a date that is on or before 
the date of delivery; shall mature not later than the dates specified in Section 1(a) hereof, subject 
to redemption; and shall bear interest as provided in the Credit Agreement. 

Section 2. Approval of Line of Credit Documents. The Board approves the form of the 
Line of Credit Documents.  

Section 3. Execution of the Line of Credit Documents. The Executive Director or the 
Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the 
Line of Credit Documents, such Documents to be in substantially the form presented to this 
meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by the executing 
officer, and his execution of such Documents to be conclusive evidence of such approval.  In 
addition, the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note shall have the seal of the Authority shall be 
impressed, or a facsimile of the seal of the Authority shall be imprinted, on the Series 2025 Line 
of Credit Note.   

Section 4. Application or Proceeds. (a) The Authority shall not use the proceeds of 
draws on the Line of Credit Documents made before July 31, 2025, for any purposes except as 
follows: 

(i) an amount sufficient to defease, retire and terminate all bonds and 
subordinate debt outstanding under the 2016 Resolution and to cause the termination and 
release of the 2016 Resolution; 



 -3- 

(ii) an amount sufficient to fund the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment 
required under the First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities 
Lease Agreement to be dated as of its execution between Virginia International Gateway, 
Inc. and the Authority; and 

(iii) an amount sufficient to pay the cost of issuance of the Series 2025 Line of 
Credit Note. 

(b) The Authority shall use the proceeds of draws on the Line of Credit Documents 
made after July 31, 2025, for its general purposes. 

Section 5. Ratification; Further Action. The actions previously taken by the officers 
and staff of the Authority are hereby ratified and confirmed. The officers and staff of the Authority 
are hereby authorized to take such actions, and deliver such additional documents and 
certificates, as they may in their discretion deem necessary or proper in connection with the 
issuance of the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note. 

Section 6. Other Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings given to them in the Bond Resolution. 

Section 7. Effective Date. This Series Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 

[END OF RESOLUTION] 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this _____ Day of __________, 2025. 

 

By:        
Name: Aubrey L. Layne 
Title: Chairman 
 

Attest: 
 
 
By:       
Name: Lisa Nelson 
Title: Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 



 
VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 

Resolution No. 25-10 
 

RESOLUTION SUPPLEMENTING RESOLUTION NO. 25-08 OF THE VIRGINIA PORT 
AUTHORITY AND AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF UP TO $350,000,000 PORT 
FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025, FOR THE PURPOSE OF ENSURING 
OPERATIONAL AND INVESTMENT CONTROL OF THE VIRGINIA INTERNATIONAL 
GATEWAY TERMINAL AND SECURING A FIXED PRICE OPTION FOR THE PURCHASE 
THEREOF; ESTABLISHING GUIDLELINES AND STANDARDS AND DELEGATING TO THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE AUTHORITY RESPONSIBILITY FOR FIXING THE 
PRINICPAL AMOUNT, THE MATURITY DATES, THE INTEREST RATES, THE REDEMPTION 
PROVISIONS AND OTHER DETAILS OF SUCH REVENUE BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS THEREOF AND FOR THE AWARD OF SAID REVENUE 
BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF BOND PURCHASE 
AGREEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO SAID REVENUE BONDS; DIRECTING THE 
AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF SAID REVENUE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT; 
AUTHORIZING THE DISTRIBUTION OF A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
RELATING TO SAID REVENUE BONDS, AND APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
RELATING THERETO. 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority") acting by its Board of 
Commissioners (the "Board") has heretofore adopted Resolution No. 25-_____ (the "Bond 
Resolution"), which in Section 208 authorizes the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds (as 
hereinafter defined); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is necessary and desirable to enter into 
a First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities Lease Agreement to be dated 
as of its date of execution (the "First Amendment"), with Virginia International Gateway, Inc. 
("VIG"), which First Amendment amends the Amended and Restated Deed of Facilities Lease 
Agreement dated September 21, 2016 (the "Amended and Restated Lease" and the Amended 
and Restated Lease as amended by the First Amendment, the "Lease"), between the Authority 
and VIG; and 

WHEREAS, as a condition of the effectiveness of the First Amendment, the Authority must 
pay to VIG a First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment (as defined in the First Amendment), and 
the Authority has determined to finance or refinance, as applicable, the cost of the First 
Amendment Upfront Rent Payment by issuing under Section 208 of the Bond Resolution in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 in one more series to be designated the 
"Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 (Non-AMT)" (the "Series 2025 
Bonds"), and any others to be designated as the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, 
either of whom may act, shall so determine in a Series Certificate delivered at closing of the 
issuance and sale of the Series 2025 Bonds (the "Closing Date") (collectively, the "Series 2025 
Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, there has also been presented to the Board the following: (i) a proposed 
Preliminary Official Statement describing the Series 2025 Bonds, the security therefor, and the 
Authority and its operations (the "Preliminary Official Statement"), (ii) the form of the hereinafter-
defined Bond Purchase Agreement, (iii) the form of a Continuing Disclosure Agreement as set 



forth in an Appendix to the Preliminary Official Statement (collectively, the "Financing 
Documents"); and 

WHEREAS, BofA Securities, Inc. and Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (collectively, 
the "Co-Senior Managing Underwriters") have caused to be presented to the Board the form of a 
proposed Bond Purchase Agreement between the Co-Senior Managing Underwriters and the 
Authority, by which the Co-Senior Managing Underwriters anticipate making a proposal for the 
sale by the Authority, and the purchase by the Co-Senior Managing Underwriters, of all or a 
portion of the Series 2025 Bonds (the "Bond Purchase Agreement"); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has duly reviewed and considered the forms of the Financing 
Documents and has determined that each is in acceptable form; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has found and determined that the issuance and sale of the Series 
2025 Bonds on the terms contemplated hereby are in conformity with the purposes of the Authority 
set forth in the Act and are in the public interest and otherwise beneficial to the Commonwealth 
of Virginia; and 

WHEREAS, Section 208 of the Bond Resolution contemplates that the Board will fix or 
provide for in this Series Resolution the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds, 
the maturity dates, the interest rates, the redemption provisions and other details thereof and 
provide for the application of the proceeds thereof;  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to delegate to the Executive 
Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, the authority to approve the sale of 
the Series 2025 Bonds and the details of the Series 2025 Bonds that cannot be determined except 
under actual market conditions as they exist at the time of the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds, 
but subject to the parameters established hereby; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority may use other available funds of the Authority, including cash, 
to make some or all of the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment before the issuance of the 
Series 2025 Bonds and may reimburse itself for that payment from the proceeds of the Series 
2025 Bonds, and bond counsel has advised the Authority that Treas. Regs. § 1.150-2 requires 
the Board to adopt a resolution to preserve the Authority's ability to use portions of the proceeds 
of the Series 2025 Bonds to reimburse itself for that payment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority, as follows: 

Section 1. Authorization of Bonds. (a) Pursuant to Section 208 of the Bond Resolution, 
the Authority is hereby authorized to issue the Series 2025 Bonds in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $350,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds, with other funds available 
therefor, (i) to finance or refinance, as applicable), the cost of some or all of the First Amendment 
Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) to make certain deposits to the credit of the Series 2025 Debt Service 
Reserve Account (as herein defined) and any other Debt Service Reserve Accounts established 
for any additional Series 2025 Bonds, if necessary as determined by the Executive Director or 
Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, in a Series Certificate executed and delivered on 
the Closing Date, and (iii) to pay the costs incident to the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds. The 
Series 2025 Bonds shall mature no later than July 1, 2064.  For the avoidance of doubt, the 
proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds may be used by the Authority to long-term finance any interim 
financing or other funds of the Authority that may be used to make the First Amendment Upfront 



Rent Payment and the use of the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds for such purpose is 
expressly authorized. 

(b) Except as provided in paragraph 6, the Series 2025 Bonds will be issued in fully 
registered form, in the name of Cede & Co., a nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New 
York, New York ("DTC"), and immobilized in the custody of DTC or otherwise as may be permitted 
by DTC's rules. Series 2025 Bond will be issued for the original principal amount of each maturity 
of each series respectively. Beneficial owners will not receive physical delivery of the Series 2025 
Bonds. Individual purchases of Series 2025 Bonds may be made in book-entry form only in 
original principal amounts of $5,000 and integral multiples of $5,000. Payments of the principal of 
and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2025 Bonds will be made to DTC or its nominee 
as registered owner of the Series 2025 Bonds on the applicable payment date. 

So long as Cede & Co., or its successor, as nominee, is the registered owner of the Series 
2025 Bonds, references in the Bond Resolution or this Series Resolution to the Holders of the 
Series 2025 Bonds mean Cede & Co. and do not mean the beneficial owners of the Series 2025 
Bonds. 

Replacement Series 2025 Bonds (the "Replacement Bonds") will be issued directly to 
beneficial owners of Series 2025 Bonds rather than to DTC, or its nominee, but only in the event 
that: 

(1) DTC determines not to continue to act as securities depository for the 
Series 2025 Bonds; 

(2) the Authority has advised DTC of its determination that DTC is incapable 
of discharging its duties; or 

(3) the Authority has determined that it is in the best interests of the beneficial 
owners of the Series 2025 Bonds not to continue the book-entry system of transfer. 

Upon occurrence of the events described in clause (1) or (2), the Authority will attempt to 
locate another qualified securities depository. If DTC makes the determination described in clause 
(1) and the Authority fails to locate another qualified securities depository to replace DTC, the 
Authority will execute, and the Bond Registrar will authenticate and deliver to the Participants (as 
defined in DTC's rules), the Replacement Bonds to which such Participants are entitled. In the 
event the Authority makes the determination described in clause (2) or (3) (the Bond Registrar 
has no obligation to make any investigation to determine the occurrence of any events that would 
permit the Authority to make any such determination), and if the determination under clause (2) 
has also been made, and the Authority has failed to locate another qualified securities depository 
and has made provisions to notify the beneficial owners of the Series 2025 Bonds by mailing an 
appropriate notice to DTC, the Authority will execute, and the Bond Registrar will authenticate 
and deliver to the Participants, the appropriate Replacement Bonds to which Participants are 
entitled. The Bond Registrar is entitled to rely on the records provided by DTC as to the 
Participants entitled to receive Replacement Bonds. 

The Series 2025 Bonds will be issued substantially in the form set forth in Section 202 of 
the Bond Resolution, with appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as may be permitted 
or required by the Bond Resolution and this Series Resolution. There may be endorsed on the 
Series 2025 Bonds such legend or text as may be necessary or appropriate to conform to any 



applicable rules and regulations of any governmental authority or any usage or requirement of 
law. 

(c) The Series 2025 Bonds shall be issued in such principal amount; shall be dated a 
date that is on or before the date of their delivery; shall be Current Interest and/or Capital 
Appreciation Serial Bonds and/or Term Bonds; shall mature not later than the dates specified in 
Section 1(a) hereof, subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption with such Amortization 
Requirements and to the right of prior redemption; and shall have a true interest cost that does 
not exceed six and a quarter percent (6.25%) per annum, all as may be determined by a Series 
Certificate of the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, executed 
and delivered on the Closing Date. 

(d) Pursuant to the Bond Resolution, the Authority hereby makes or confirms the 
following appointments: 

(i) as Trustee under the Bond Resolution, U.S. Bank Trust Company, National 
Association; 

(ii) as Paying Agent and Bond Registrar for the Series 2025 Bonds, U.S. Bank 
Trust Company, National Association; 

(iii) as Depositary for amounts deposited to the Operating Account referred to 
in Section 504(a) of the Bond Resolution, Bank of America, N.A.; 

(iv) as Depositary for amounts deposited to the Senior Obligations Fund 
referred to in Section 511 of the Bond Resolution, Bank of America, N.A.; and 

(v) as Depositaries for amounts deposited to the Residual Fund referred to in 
Section 512 of the Bond Resolution, Bank of America, N.A. and Principal Bank. 

Section 2. Debt Service Reserve Account. (a) Pursuant to Section 508 of the Bond 
Resolution, there is hereby created with the Trustee a Debt Service Reserve Account for each of 
the Series 2025 Bonds designated, "Series 2025 Debt Service Reserve Account". So long as the 
Series 2025 Bonds are outstanding, the Series 2025 Debt Service Reserve Account shall be 
maintained in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the maximum Principal and Interest 
Requirements for the applicable Bond Year for the Series 2025 Bonds (the "Series 2025 Reserve 
Account Requirement"), or such other requirement amount that shall be determined by the 
Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, in the Series Certificate for 
the Series 2025 Bonds. 

(b) On the Closing Date, any money held in any Debt Service Reserve Account (as 
such term is defined in the 2016 Resolution) previously funded from the proceeds of the 
Outstanding Bonds shall either be transferred by the trustee under the 2016 Resolution (the "2016 
Trustee") to the credit of the Series 2025 Debt Service Reserve Account up to the amount of the 
Series 2025 Reserve Account Requirement, which may be held in cash, used to acquire a 
Reserve Account Credit Facility, used to acquire Investment Obligations or any combination 
thereof. Any excess money in any Debt Service Reserve Account previously funded from the 
proceeds of the Outstanding Bonds remaining after the aforesaid transfer shall be applied as 
directed by the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, in a Series 
Certificate executed and delivered on the Closing Date. In lieu of the foregoing transfers, a lesser 
amount may be used to acquire any instrument permitted by the Bond Resolution to satisfy such 



Series 2025 Reserve Account Requirement, and the excess amount shall be deposited in 
accordance with the directions contained in the Series Certificate executed and delivered on the 
Closing Date. 

(c) If additional Series of 2025 Bonds have been designated by the Executive Director 
or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, in a Series Certificate executed and delivered 
on the Closing Date, then additional Debt Service Reserve Accounts may be established therefor 
in accordance with the terms of the Bond Resolution and funded in accordance with the directions 
contained in the Series Certificate executed and delivered on the Closing Date. 

Section 3. Revenue Stabilization Fund. (a) Pursuant to Section 509 of the Bond 
Resolution, a special fund has been created with the Trustee and designated the "Virginia Port 
Authority Series 2025 Bonds Revenue Stabilization Fund" (the "Revenue Stabilization Fund"). On 
the Closing Date, the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is 
hereby authorized and directed to provide written instructions to cause the Revenue Stabilization 
Fund to be funded in an amount determined by the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, 
either of whom may act, in the Series Certificate executed and delivered on the Closing Date. 

Section 4. Optional Redemption. The Series 2025 Bonds may be subject to optional 
redemption as market conditions shall dictate at the time of sale upon the payment of such 
redemption premiums, if any, as such market conditions shall dictate; provided that the Executive 
Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, has approved any such optional 
redemption as evidenced in the Series Certificate executed and delivered on the Closing Date. 

Section 5. Terms of Purchase. The Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, 
either of whom may act, is hereby authorized, if the Authority's Financial Advisor shall so 
recommend, to accept an offer of the Underwriters in the form of the Bond Purchase Agreement, 
to purchase all, or a portion of, the Series 2025 Bonds at a price representing a discount from the 
initial public offering prices of the Series 2025 Bonds equal to the sum of: 

(i) the amount of net original issue discount and original issue premium, if any, 
and 

(ii) the amount of the underwriters' discount, not to exceed one-half of one 
percent (0.50%) of the par amount of the Series 2025 Bonds, plus accrued interest, if any, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

Section 6. Approval of Bond Purchase Agreement. The form of the Bond Purchase 
Agreement presented at this meeting relating to the offering and sale of the Series 2025 Bonds 
to the Underwriters and the execution and delivery thereof by the Authority are hereby authorized, 
and if the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, shall accept the 
offer of the Underwriters, the Bond Purchase Agreement shall be executed in the manner therein 
set forth to evidence the acceptance by the Authority of such offer, with such changes, insertions 
and omissions as may be approved by the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of 
whom may act,, the execution of the Bond Purchase Agreement by the Executive Director or 
Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, to be conclusive evidence of the Authority's 
approval of any such changes, insertions and omissions. 

The Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is hereby further 
authorized to execute any other bond purchase agreements or bond modification agreements 
deemed necessary by him, on the advice of the Authority's Financial Advisor and the Authority's 



Bond Counsel, in order to effectuate the private placement of all, or any portion of, the Series 
2025 Bonds. In the event that a private placement of all or any portion of the Series 2025 Bonds 
shall occur, the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act,, acting on 
the advice of the Authority's Bond Counsel, is hereby authorized in a Series Certificate executed 
and delivered on the Closing Date to provide for any amendment to the registration provisions of 
this Resolution set forth in Section 1(b). 

Section 7. Approval of Official Statement. The Preliminary Official Statement in the 
form presented to this Board is approved, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may 
be determined by the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act,. The 
use and distribution by the Underwriters of the Preliminary Official Statement in connection with 
the offering of the Series 2025 Bonds, prior to the availability of the Official Statement, are hereby 
authorized. The Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is hereby 
authorized to deem the Preliminary Official Statement final for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the distribution of such Preliminary Official Statement shall 
be conclusive evidence that the Authority has deemed such Preliminary Official Statement final. 
The Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director or Chief Financial 
Officer, either of whom may act, of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to execute 
and deliver to the Underwriters for their use and distribution in making a public offering of the 
Series 2025 Bonds (but only upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement) a final Official Statement, together with any amendment or supplement to 
such final Official Statement as may be necessary to comply with the Bond Purchase Agreement, 
which in the case of such final Official Statement shall be substantially in the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement approved by the Board, with such changes, insertions and 
omissions as the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director or Chief 
Financial Officer, either of whom may act, of the Authority may approve, and which in the case of 
any such amendment or supplement shall be in such form as the Chairman or Vice Chairman of 
the Board and the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, of the 
Authority may approve. The execution and delivery by the Chairman or Vice Chairman and the 
Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, of the final Official 
Statement or any such amendment or supplement thereto shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Authority has approved any such changes, insertions and omissions, amendment or supplement, 
as the case may be. 

Section 8. Approval of Other Financing Documents. The Board approves the form of 
the other Financing Documents. The Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom 
may act, is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the other Financing Documents, such 
Documents to be in substantially the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions 
and omissions as may be approved by the Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of 
whom may act, and his execution of such Documents to be conclusive evidence of such approval. 

Section 9. Execution of the Bonds. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be executed with the 
original or facsimile signature of the Executive Director and the original signature of the Secretary 
of the Authority, and the seal of the Authority shall be impressed, or a facsimile of the seal of the 
Authority shall be imprinted, on the Series 2025 Bonds. The Series 2025 Bonds shall be 
authenticated by the Bond Registrar and shall be delivered by the Trustee to or for the account of 
the Underwriters upon receipt of the purchase price set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement 
accepted by the Authority. 

Section 10. Tax Covenant. The Authority covenants that it will comply with the 
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, so that interest on the Series 2025 



Bonds will remain exempt from existing Federal income taxes to which it is subject on the date of 
the issuance of such Series 2025 Bonds. 

Section 11. Bond Insurance. The Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either 
of whom may act, is hereby authorized to negotiate and accept a commitment and to pay the 
premium for a municipal bond insurance policy (which may cover one or more maturities of the 
Series 2025 Bonds) from a municipal bond insurer and to negotiate and agree to such terms and 
conditions with such insurer as he deems necessary or proper after consultation with Authority's 
Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel. 

Section 12. Reimbursement Provisions.  This Resolution represents a declaration of 
"official intent" under Treas. Regs. § 1.150-2.  Before the issuance of any Series 2025 Bonds, the 
Authority may pay some or all of the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment from its available 
funds.  On the date that payment is made, it will be a capital expenditure (or would be with a 
proper election) under general federal income tax principles or will otherwise comply with the 
requirements of Treas. Regs. § 1.150-2(d)(3).  The Authority reasonably expects to reimburse 
itself for that payment from the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds and the adoption of this 
Resolution is consistent with the budgetary and financial circumstances of the Authority. 

Section 13. Ratification; Further Action. The actions previously taken by the officers 
and staff of the Authority are hereby ratified and confirmed. The officers and staff of the Authority 
are hereby authorized to take such actions, and deliver such additional documents and 
certificates, as they may in their discretion deem necessary or proper in connection with the 
issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds. 

Section 14. Other Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings given to them in the Bond Resolution. 

Section 15. Effective Date. This Series Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption. 

[END OF RESOLUTION] 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th Day of April, 2025. 

 

By:        
Name: Aubrey L. Layne 
Title: Chairman 
 

Attest: 
 
 
By:       
Name: Lisa Nelson 
Title: Secretary to the Board 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY  
RESOLUTION 25-11 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AID TO LOCAL PORTS FUNDING (FY26) TOTALING 
AN ESTIMATED $936,250 TO THE CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, TOWN OF SAXIS, 
AND COUNTY OF NORTHAMPTON.  
 
 WHEREAS, in September 1986, the Virginia General Assembly established the 
Commonwealth Port Fund in order to support port capital needs of all ocean, river or 
tributary ports within the Commonwealth; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Port Authority found it 
necessary and in the public interest, pursuant to its statutory responsibility, to establish a 
policy governing disbursement of a portion of the Commonwealth Port Fund to local 
governmental entities in order to foster and stimulate the flow of commerce through the 
ports of Virginia, such policy (“Aid to Local Ports Policy”) being adopted on July 28, 1987, 
and last amended on November 18, 2014; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Aid to Local Ports Policy, the following entities 
have applied for grants for the purposes indicated:   
 
City of Newport News, up to $850,000 for restoration of the outer harbor pier and 
mooring dolphins at the Newport News Seafood Industrial Park;  
 
Town of Saxis, up to $48,750 for electrical upgrades at the town marina; and  
 
County of Northampton, up to $37,500 for new bulkhead construction and repairs to 
existing bulkhead at Oyster Marina. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Virginia Port Authority that: 
 

1. Grants will be made up to the individual amounts and for the purposes indicated 
above. 
 

2. Funds will be made available following the approval of certified requisitions which 
are accompanied by supporting documentation provided to the Virginia Port 
Authority as provided for in the Aid to Local Ports Policy. 
 

3. The grantees are required to return any unused funds from these grants to the 
Virginia Port Authority.   
 

4. If, by June 30, 2026, the grants authorized herein have not been fully drawn upon, 
or the contracts covering the improvements for which the grants were made have 
not been entered into, the grants will lapse and will not be carried over to the next 
fiscal year. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that: 



 
The City of Newport News may carryover until June 30, 2026, its previous balance 
estimated to be $342,353. 
 
The Town of Saxis may carryover until June 30, 2026, its previous balance estimated to 
be $119,962.47. 
 
The County of Northampton may carryover until June 30, 2026, its previous balance 
estimated to be $274,680. 
 
The County of Accomack may carryover until June 30, 2026, its previous balance 
estimated to be $320,250. 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April, 2025. 
 
 
 
               
      Aubrey L. Layne, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
     ___ 
Lisa Nelson, Secretary to the Board 

 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY  
RESOLUTION 25-12 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING WATERWAY MAINTENANCE GRANT FUNDING 
(FY25) TOTALING AN ESTIMATED $1,419,500 to the Accomack-Northampton 

PDC, Northern Neck PDC, and Town of Wachapreague 
 
 WHEREAS, in May 2018, the Virginia General Assembly established the Virginia 
Waterway Maintenance Grant Program, to be administered by the Virginia Port Authority, 
in order to support shallow draft dredging projects throughout the Commonwealth; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia Port Authority adopted a 
Policy on Grants to Local Governments for Financial Assistance for Dredging Activities 
(Virginia Waterway Maintenance Grant Program) on July 24, 2018; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Virginia Waterway Maintenance Grant Policy, 
the following entities have applied for grants for the purposes indicated:   
 
Accomack-Northampton Planning District Commission, up to $1,100,000 to finalize 
permits and advance the dredging needs of Nassawadox Creek.  
 
Northern Neck Planning District Commission, up to $240,000 to complete the final 
design and bid documents for dredging Little Wicomico River channel.   
 
Town of Wachapreague, up to $106,000 to advance the dredging of the Town’s Marina 
and excavation to the approved dredge spoil site. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Virginia Port Authority that: 
 

1. Grants will be made in the individual amounts and for the purposes indicated 
above. 
 

2. Funds will be made available following the approval of certified requisitions which 
are accompanied by supporting documentation provided to the Virginia Port 
Authority as provided for in the Waterway Maintenance Fund Grant Policy. 

 
3. The grantees are required to return any unused funds from these grants to the 

Virginia Port Authority.   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that:  
 
The County of Northampton will transfer up to $993,144.77, which was previously 
awarded in Fiscal Year 2022 for Kings Creek, to the County of Northampton for 
dredging activities associated with Nassawadox Creek.  
 
 



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April, 2025. 
 
 
 
               
      Aubrey L. Layne, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
     ____ 
Lisa Nelson, Secretary to the Board 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 25-13 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR THE ACQUISITION OF ENGINEERING SERVICES 

FOR EPA GRANT FUNDED PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and a 
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, has been established pursuant to 
Chapter 10, Title 62.1 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is empowered to rent, lease, buy, 
own, acquire, construct, reconstruct, and dispose of harbors, seaports, port facilities and 
such property, whether real or personal, as it may find necessary or convenient and issue 
revenue bonds therefore without pledging the faith and credit of the Commonwealth; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, it is the duty of the Authority to foster and 
stimulate the commerce of the ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities by serving 
as the United States Eastern Seaboard gateway for the global import and export of freight 
throughout the world, to promote the shipment of freight through the maritime and inland 
ports, to seek to secure necessary improvements of navigable tidal waters within the 
Commonwealth, and in general to perform any act or function that may be useful in 
developing, improving, or increasing the commerce, both foreign and domestic, of all 
maritime and inland ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities; 
 
 WHEREAS, in furtherance of this duty, the Authority has made significant capital 
improvements to the container terminals. These improvements include upgrading 
container handling equipment and system support services at Norfolk International 
Terminals (“NIT”) and Richmond Marine Terminal (“RMT”) in furtherance of the Authority’s 
electrification project (hereafter “Go Zero Now Clean Ports Project”);  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its Procurement Manual, the Authority originally issued a 
request for proposals for engineering services where three proposals were received. 
Thereafter the Authority issued a services contract to Jacobs Engineering Group, INC., 
and now seeks to formally amend the contract scope of work specifically for engineering 
services in furtherance of the Authority’s Go Zero Now Clean Ports Project at NIT and 
RMT (hereinafter “the Jacobs Amendment”). The Jacobs Amendment for the engineering 
services shall not exceed Three Million, Dollars ($3,000,000.00) (hereinafter the 
“Purchase Price”);  

 
WHEREAS, the Purchase Price will be funded by a federal grant funding award 

from the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA) and terminal revenue; and  
 



 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to 
delegate to the Executive Director the authority to approve the final terms, and execute 
and deliver the Jacobs Amendment consistent with the foregoing Recitals.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Virginia Port Authority, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Approval of Jacobs Amendment.  The execution and delivery of the 
Jacobs Amendment by the Authority, consistent with the foregoing recitals is hereby 
authorized.  The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to approve the form and 
content of, and to execute and deliver, the Jacobs Amendment on behalf of the Authority.  
The execution of the Jacobs Amendment by the Executive Director shall be conclusive 
evidence of the Authority’s approval of the Jacobs Amendment.  The Board hereby 
authorizes the Executive Director to execute and deliver all ancillary documents which he 
deems necessary to further the intent of this Resolution.  
 
 Section 2.  Ratification; Further Action.  All actions previously taken by the 
Commissioners, officers, and staff of the Authority in furtherance of the Jacobs 
Amendment are hereby ratified and confirmed.  The officers and employees of the 
Authority are hereby authorized to take such actions, and deliver such additional 
documents and certificates, as they may in their discretion deem necessary or proper in 
furtherance of the Jacobs Amendment and the transactions described herein and therein.  
 
 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. The Secretary of the Authority shall file this Resolution with the books and 
records of the Authority maintained according to Section 3.11 of the Authority’s Bylaws.  
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April, 2025. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Aubrey L. Layne, Chairman  
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Lisa Nelson, Secretary to the Board 
 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 25-14 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACQUISITION OF BOMBCARTS 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and a 
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, has been established pursuant to 
Chapter 10, Title 62.1 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is empowered to rent, lease, buy, 
own, acquire, construct, reconstruct, and dispose of harbors, seaports, port facilities and 
such property, whether real or personal, as it may find necessary or convenient and issue 
revenue bonds therefore without pledging the faith and credit of the Commonwealth; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, it is the duty of the Authority to foster and 
stimulate the commerce of the ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities by serving 
as the United States Eastern Seaboard gateway for the global import and export of freight 
throughout the world, to promote the shipment of freight through the maritime and inland 
ports, to seek to secure necessary improvements of navigable tidal waters within the 
Commonwealth, and in general to perform any act or function that may be useful in 
developing, improving, or increasing the commerce, both foreign and domestic, of all 
maritime and inland ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities; 
 
 WHEREAS, in furtherance of this duty, the Authority is making significant capital 
improvements to the container yards and terminals.  These improvements include the 
purchase of equipment, namely Bombcarts, to support operations at Norfolk International 
Terminals (“NIT”) and Virginia International Gateway (“VIG”);  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its Procurement Manual, the Authority issued a Request 
for Proposals #2025-21-VPA, and as a result of this procurement process, identified 
Magnum Trailer as the vendor for the purchase of ninety (90) Bombcarts with a defined 
option pricing for up to four (400) hundred additional bombcarts. The purchase price of 
the Bombcarts in total shall not exceed Four Million, Three Hundred and Forty Thousand, 
and Seven Hundred Dollars ($4,340,700.00) (hereinafter the “Purchase Price”); and   

 
WHEREAS, the Purchase Price will be funded by terminal revenue approved by 

the Authority’s Board of Commissioners in Resolution 24-5; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to 
delegate to the Executive Director the authority to approve the final terms, and execute 
and deliver the Magnum Trailer contract (hereinafter the “Magnum Trailer Contract”) 
consistent with the foregoing Recitals; and  
 



 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Virginia Port Authority, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Approval of Magnum Trailer Contract.  The execution and delivery 
of the Magnum Trailer Contract by the Authority, consistent with the foregoing Recitals is 
hereby authorized.  The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to approve the 
form and content of, and to execute and deliver, the Magnum Trailer Contract on behalf 
of the Authority.  The execution of the Magnum Trailer Contract by the Executive Director 
shall be conclusive evidence of the Authority’s approval of the Magnum Trailer Contract.  
The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute and deliver all ancillary 
documents which he deems necessary to further the intent of this Resolution.  
 
 Section 2.  Ratification; Further Action.  All actions previously taken by the 
Commissioners, officers, and staff of the Authority in furtherance of the Magnum Trailer 
Contract are hereby ratified and confirmed.  The officers and employees of the Authority 
are hereby authorized to take such actions, and deliver such additional documents and 
certificates, as they may in their discretion deem necessary or proper in furtherance of 
the Magnum Trailer Contract and the transactions described herein and therein.  
 
 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption.  The Secretary of the Authority shall file this Resolution with the books and 
records of the Authority maintained according to Section 3.11 of the Authority’s Bylaws.  
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April, 2025. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Aubrey L. Layne 
      Chairman  
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Lisa Nelson, Secretary to the Board 
 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 25-15 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO 

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS FOR THE ACQUISITION OF CRANE DEMOLITION 
SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority (the “Authority”), a body corporate and a 
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia, has been established pursuant to 
Chapter 10, Title 62.1 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the “Act”); 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is empowered to rent, lease, buy, 
own, acquire, construct, reconstruct, and dispose of harbors, seaports, port facilities and 
such property, whether real or personal, as it may find necessary or convenient and issue 
revenue bonds therefore without pledging the faith and credit of the Commonwealth; 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, it is the duty of the Authority to foster and 
stimulate the commerce of the ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities by serving 
as the United States Eastern Seaboard gateway for the global import and export of freight 
throughout the world, to promote the shipment of freight through the maritime and inland 
ports, to seek to secure necessary improvements of navigable tidal waters within the 
Commonwealth, and in general to perform any act or function that may be useful in 
developing, improving, or increasing the commerce, both foreign and domestic, of all 
maritime and inland ports of the Commonwealth and related facilities; 
 
 WHEREAS, in furtherance of this duty, the Authority is making significant capital 
improvements to the container terminals.  These improvements include demolition and 
disposal of ship-to-shore cranes to facilitate and make room for replacement ship-to-
shore cranes to support operations at Norfolk International Terminals (“NIT”);  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to its Procurement Manual, the Authority issued a Request 
for Proposals #2025-37-VPA, and as a result of this procurement process, identified  
McLean Contracting Company as the vendor for the procurement of demolition and 
disposal services of four (4) ship-to-shore cranes located at NIT. The contract for the 
procurement of the demolition and disposal services shall not exceed Three Million, Four 
Hundred and Ninety-Five Thousand Dollars ($3,495,000.00) (hereinafter the “Contract 
Price”); and   

 
WHEREAS, the Contract Price will be funded by terminal revenue approved by the 

Authority’s Board of Commissioners in Resolution 24-5; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary and appropriate to 
delegate to the Executive Director the authority to approve the final terms, and execute 
and deliver the contract with McLean Contracting Company (hereinafter the “McLean 
Contract”) consistent with the foregoing Recitals.  



 
 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Virginia Port Authority, as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Approval of McLean Contract.  The execution and delivery of the 
McLean Contract by the Authority, consistent with the foregoing Recitals is hereby 
authorized.  The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to approve the form and 
content of, and to execute and deliver, the McLean Contract on behalf of the Authority.  
The execution of the McLean Contract by the Executive Director shall be conclusive 
evidence of the Authority’s approval of the McLean Contract.  The Board hereby 
authorizes the Executive Director to execute and deliver all ancillary documents which he 
deems necessary to further the intent of this Resolution.  
 
 Section 2.  Ratification; Further Action.  All actions previously taken by the 
Commissioners, officers, and staff of the Authority in furtherance of the McLean Contract 
are hereby ratified and confirmed.  The officers and employees of the Authority are hereby 
authorized to take such actions, and deliver such additional documents and certificates, 
as they may in their discretion deem necessary or proper in furtherance of the McLean 
Contract and the transactions described herein and therein.  
 
 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. The Secretary of the Authority shall file this Resolution with the books and 
records of the Authority maintained according to Section 3.11 of the Authority’s Bylaws.  
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April, 2025. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Aubrey L. Layne 
      Chairman  
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Lisa Nelson, Secretary to the Board 
 



VIRGINIA PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION 25-16 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORZING APPROVAL OF THE MIDDLE PENINSULA 
CHESAPEAKE BAY PUBLIC ACCESS AUTHORITY MUNICIPAL DREDGING 

OPERATING PROGRAM AND MUNICIPAL DREDGING OPERATING AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, in the 2024 Special Session I, the Virginia General Assembly appropriated 
$7,500,000 in fiscal year 2024 to fund a pilot municipal dredge program to be operated 
by the Middle Peninsula Chesapeake Bay Public Access Authority for the dredging of 
shovel-ready, shallow-draft projects in localities identified in Chapter 66 of the Code of 
Virginia; and  

WHEREAS, the Virginia Port Authority is responsible for distributing the funding upon 
approval of a Municipal Dredging Operating Program and a Municipal Dredging 
Operating Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Virginia 
Port Authority adopts the resolution approving the Middle Peninsula Chesapeake Bay 
Public Access Authority’s Municipal Dredging Operating Program and Municipal 
Dredging Operating Agreement in accordance with Item 451 D. of Chapter 2 of 2024 
Special Session I. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 29th day of April 2025. 

____________________________ 
Aubrey L. Layne 
Chairman 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Lisa Nelson, Secretary to the Board 


	04.29.2025 Public Session Board Agenda v1.pdf
	1. Call to Order
	4. Introductions and Opportunity for Public Comment
	5. Special Presentation from the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission – Dennis Morris, NSVRC
	B. Finance and Audit Committee – James C. Burnett, Committee Chair
	C. Operations and Infrastructure Committee – John W. Kirk, III, Committee Chair
	7. Report of CEO/Executive Director – Stephen A. Edwards
	8. Virginia Inland Port Project Update/Tour - Emily Dodson, Manager Virginia Inland Port

	04.29.2025 Public Session Board Agenda v2.pdf
	1. Call to Order
	4. Introductions and Opportunity for Public Comment
	5. Special Presentation from the Northern Shenandoah Valley Regional Commission – Dennis Morris, NSVRC
	B. Finance and Audit Committee – James C. Burnett, Committee Chair
	C. Operations and Infrastructure Committee – John W. Kirk, III, Committee Chair
	7. Report of CEO/Executive Director – Stephen A. Edwards
	8. Virginia Inland Port Project Update/Tour - Emily Dodson, Manager Virginia Inland Port

	04.29.2025 VPA Board Regular Public Presentation DRAFT NEW 042525.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	�Special Presentation by �Northern Shenandoah Valley �Regional Commission
	�Executive Committee Report
	�Finance and Audit Committee �Report
	�Quarterly Financial Results
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	�Operations and Infrastructure �Committee Report
	�Safety Update�
	Slide Number 22
	�Operations Update�
	Slide Number 24
	�Infrastructure and Projects Update�
	Slide Number 26
	�Growth Committee Report
	�Sales and Volume Report�
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	�CEO/Executive Director Report�
	�Virginia Inland Port�Project Update/Tour
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	�Other Business
	Slide Number 39

	Resolution Package 25-06 thru 25-16  April 2025 with deed removed.pdf
	Resolution 25-07 VPA - Resolution (Defeasance)(202365255.5).pdf
	Section 1. Authorization of Plan of Defeasance. (a) The Plan of Defeasance is hereby authorized and approved. All Outstanding Bonds and Outstanding Equipment Leases shall be defeased, retired, or terminated (as applicable) in accordance with the Defea...
	Section 2. Release and Transfer of Trustee-Held Funds. As provided in Section 1201(a) of the 2016 Resolution upon the defeasance, retirement or termination (as applicable) of the Outstanding Bonds and the Outstanding Equipment Leases, the rights of th...
	Section 4. Defeasance. The investment of available funds of the Authority in Government Obligations in accordance with the provisions of the Escrow Deposit Agreement to provide for the defeasance of the Outstanding Bonds issued under the 2016 Resoluti...
	Section 7. Other Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the 2016 Resolution.

	Resolution 25-08 VPA - Resolution (25-_____)(202268459.6).pdf
	1. is vested with the powers of a body corporate, including the power to sue and to be sued and to make contracts;
	2. is authorized to acquire, construct, maintain, equip and operate marine terminals, port facilities, wharves, docks, ships, piers, quays, elevators, compressors, refrigeration storage plants, warehouses and other structures, necessary for the conven...
	3. is authorized to undertake or make arrangements for the dredging of approaches to each facility and the construction of shipping and transportation facilities incident thereto;
	4. is authorized to issue revenue bonds and refunding bonds for the aforesaid purposes;
	5. is authorized to rent, lease, buy, own, acquire, construct, reconstruct, and dispose of Port Facilities, herein defined, and such property, real or personal, as the Authority finds necessary or convenient and to issue revenue bonds therefor without...
	6. is authorized to fix and revise charges for the use of the Port Facilities under its control and the different parts or sections thereof, and to contract with any person, partnership, association or corporation desiring the use of any part thereof,...
	7. shall have such other powers as may be granted by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth from time to time, whether or not under the Act; and
	Article I.  Definitions
	Section 101. Meaning of Words and Terms. In addition to words and terms elsewhere defined in this Resolution, the following words and terms as used in this Resolution shall have the following meanings, unless some other meaning is plainly intended:
	(a) payments of principal and interest with respect to money borrowed for an original term, or renewable at the option of the borrower for a period from the date originally incurred, longer than one year;
	(b) payments under leases which are capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles having an original term, or renewable at the option of the lessee for a period from the date originally incurred, longer than one year; and
	(c) payments under installment purchase contracts having an original term in excess of one year.
	i Bonds paid or redeemed or delivered to or acquired by the Trustee or the Bond Registrar for cancellation;
	ii Bonds deemed to have been paid in accordance with Article XII of this Resolution; and
	iii Bonds in exchange for or in lieu of which other Bonds have been authenticated and delivered under this Resolution;
	(i) on the preceding Principal Payment Date, if any, that occurs one year or less before each Applicable Principal Payment Date, or
	(ii) one year prior to each Applicable Principal Payment Date if there is no prior Principal Payment Date or if the preceding Principal Payment Date is more than one year prior to the Applicable Principal Payment Dates;
	(iii) which amount shall equal the sums that would be deemed to accrue on such Bonds and Parity Indebtedness during such Fiscal Year if
	(iv) the principal of the Current Interest Bonds of such Series and Parity Indebtedness scheduled to mature or be subject to an Amortization Requirement on or prior to the Applicable Principal Payment Date, and
	(v) the Accreted Amount of the Capital Appreciation Bonds of such Series scheduled to become due or be subject to an Amortization Requirement on or prior to the Applicable Principal Payment Date,
	Section 102. Miscellaneous Definition.



	(b) Where the character or amount of any asset, liability or item of income or expense is required to be determined or any consolidation, combination or other accounting computation is required to be made for the purpose hereof or executed and deliver...
	(c) Headings of articles in sections herein and the table of contents hereof are solely for convenience of reference, do not constitute a part hereof and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect hereof.
	(d) Provisions calling for the redemption of Indebtedness or the calling of Indebtedness for redemption do not mean or include the payment of Indebtedness at its stated maturity.


	Article II.  Authorization, Form, Issuance, Delivery and  Registration of Bonds
	Section 201. Limitation on Issuance of Bonds. No Bonds or other Indebtedness may be issued under the provisions of this Resolution except in accordance with the provisions of this Article, but the aggregate principal amount thereof that may be issued ...
	Section 202. Form of Bonds. The definitive Bonds are issuable in fully registered form in such minimum denomination as may be specified by the applicable Series Resolution and any whole multiple thereof. The definitive Bonds issued under the provision...
	(i) Virginia Port Authority (the "Authority"), a body corporate of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the "Commonwealth") duly created by the Act (hereinafter mentioned), for value received, promises to pay, but solely from the sources and in the manner he...
	(ii) This Bond is one of a duly authorized series of revenue bonds of the Authority, designated "Port Facilities Revenue [Refunding] Bonds, Series ______", issued under Resolution No. 25-_____ adopted by the Authority on __________ _____, 2025 (said r...
	(iii) The Resolution authorizes the issuance, from time to time, under the conditions, limitations and restrictions therein set forth, of additional series of Bonds (such Bonds and the Bonds of the series of which this is one being herein collectively...
	(iv) The Bonds are payable from the "Net Revenue" of the Authority derived from its "Port Facilities", after reservation by the Authority of sufficient funds therefrom for payment by the Authority of the Rent (the "Senior Rent") due and payable under ...
	(v) The Authority is the sole member of, and has retained or will retain Virginia International Terminals, LLC ("VIT"), a Virginia limited liability company, to operate, its public water terminals located on the Harbor of Hampton Roads, including the ...
	(vi) Reference is made to the Resolution for a more complete statement of the provisions thereof and of the rights and duties of the Authority, the Trustee, the Bond Registrar, and the bondholders. By the purchase and acceptance of this Bond, the Regi...
	(vii) This Bond is issued and the Resolution adopted under and pursuant to the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, particularly in conformity with the provisions, restrictions and limitations of Chapter 10, Title 62.1, Code of Virgi...
	(viii) The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds in denominations of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof. At the designated corporate trust office of the Bond Registrar, in the manner and subject to the limitations and conditions provided in t...
	(ix) The Bonds which are stated to mature after July 1, 20__ may be redeemed prior to their respective maturities, at the option of the Authority, from any moneys that may be made available for such purpose, either in whole, on any date, or in part, o...
	(x) If less than all of the Bonds shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Authority by such method as the Authority deems appropriate.
	(xi) At least thirty (30) days before the redemption date of any Bonds, whether such redemption is in whole or in part, the Authority shall cause a notice of any such redemption signed by the Authority to be mailed, first class, postage prepaid, to al...
	(xii) The owner of this Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the Resolution or to institute action to enforce the covenants therein, or to take any action with respect to any Event of Default under the Resolution, or to institute, app...
	(xiii) Modifications or alterations of the Resolution, or any resolution supplemental thereto, may be made only to the extent and in the circumstances permitted by the Resolution.
	(xiv) This Bond is issued with the intent that the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia shall govern its construction.
	(xv) All acts, conditions and things required to happen, exist and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have happened, exist and have been performed as so required.
	(xvi) This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit or security under the Resolution until it shall have been authenticated by the execution by the Bond Registrar of the certificate of authentication e...

	Section 203. Details of Bonds. The Current Interest Bonds shall be dated, shall bear interest until their payment, such interest to the maturity thereof being payable, unless otherwise provided in the Series Resolution providing for the issuance of a ...
	(a) The Authority may elect to make payment of any Defaulted Interest on the Bonds to the persons in whose names such Bonds are registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fix...
	(b) The Authority may make payment of any Defaulted Interest on the Bonds in any other lawful manner not inconsistent with the requirements of any securities exchange on which such Bonds may be listed and upon such notice as may be required by such ex...

	Section 204. Authentication of Bonds. Only such Bonds as shall have endorsed thereon a certificate of authentication substantially in the form hereinabove set forth, duly executed by the Bond Registrar, shall be entitled to any benefit or security und...
	Section 205. Exchange of Bonds. Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the designated office of the Bond Registrar, together with an assignment duly executed by the Holder or his attorney or legal representative in such form as shall be satisfactory to the ...
	Section 206. Registration of Transfer of Bonds. Unless provided to the contrary in a Series Resolution, and as permitted by law, the Bond Registrar shall keep books for the registration and registration of transfer of Bonds as provided in this Resolut...
	Section 207. Ownership of Bonds. The Authority, the Paying Agents, the Bond Registrar and any agent of the Authority, the Paying Agents and the Bond Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered on the books of the Authority kept...
	Section 208. Authorization and Issuance of Bonds. There shall be initially issued under and secured by this Resolution, in one or more series, revenue bonds of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount of up to Three Hundred Fifty Million Dollar...
	(a) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, of this Resolution;
	(b) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, of the Series Resolution or Resolutions adopted by the Board and, referred to above;
	(c) a copy of the fully executed 2025 Lease Amendment;
	(d) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the 2025 Bonds have been issued by the Authority and constitute valid obligations of the Authority; and
	(e) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) this Resolution has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance of the 2025 Bonds has been duly and validly authorized and all conditions precedent to the delivery of such 2025...

	Section 209. Additional Bonds. Additional Series of Bonds of the Authority (in this Section sometimes called "Additional Bonds"), in addition to the Series of Bonds issued under Sections 208 and 210 of this Article, may be issued from time to time und...
	(a) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority of the Series Resolution adopted by the Board providing for the issuance of such Additional Bonds, approving the sale of such Bonds to the purchasers thereof and direct...
	(b) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) the Series Resolution referred to in clause (a) of this Section has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance of such Bonds has been duly and validly authorized and all condi...
	(c) an Officer's Certificate setting forth:
	(i) the sum of Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and the sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures, for the Fiscal Year next preceding the Fiscal Year in which such Bonds are delivered;
	(ii) the estimated maximum Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements for any Fiscal Year following the Fiscal Year in which such Bonds are to be delivered, excluding from such computation the annual debt service on such Bonds then proposed to be d...
	(iii) (A) the estimated Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements, including for the Additional Bonds to be issued, for the current Fiscal Year, and each Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the fifth complete Fiscal Year following the last est...
	(B) the estimated amount of the maximum Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements for any Fiscal Year following the Fiscal Year in which such Bonds are to be delivered, including in all such computations the annual debt service on such Bonds then ...
	(C) the estimated amount of the average annual Aggregate Principal and Interest Requirements, including for the Additional Bonds to be issued, for the period beginning on the Closing of such Bonds proposed to be delivered and ending on the final state...

	(d) a report of the Management Consultant setting forth its estimate of the Net Revenue, Adjusted Net Revenue and Port Operator Capital Expenditures of the Authority (i) for the current Fiscal Year and each Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the ...
	(I) for the Fiscal Year referred to in the certificate mentioned in clause (i) of paragraph (c) of this Section, the sum of Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and the sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expend...
	(II) (A) the sum of Net Revenue the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and the sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures for the current Fiscal Year and each Fiscal Year thereafter to and including the fifth complete Fisca...
	(B) the sum of Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures and the sum of Adjusted Net Revenue and the Port Operator Capital Expenditures for the sixth complete Fiscal Year following the last estimated Completion Date for such Projects (as ...
	(A) Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness. If any of the Additional Bonds of the Series to be issued constitute Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness or Balloon Long-Term Indebtedness and Variable Rate Indebtedness, then for purposes of the amounts to be shown in c...
	(B) Optional Tender Indebtedness. If any of the Additional Bonds of the Series to be issued constitute Optional Tender Indebtedness, then (1) for purposes of the amounts to be shown in clauses (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (c) above, the options of the ...
	(C) Variable Rate Indebtedness. If any of the Additional Bonds of the Series to be issued constitute Variable Rate Indebtedness, then for purposes of the amounts shown in clauses (ii) and (iii) of paragraph (d) above, the interest rate used in such co...
	(1) if so provided by the Series Resolution mentioned in clause (a) of this Section, the amount specified in such resolution, which amount shall not be greater than that required, with the accrued interest, to pay all or a portion of the interest whic...
	(2) if and to the extent so provided by the Series Resolution mentioned in clause (a) of this Section, the amount specified in such resolution (which shall be not less than the minimum amount required to make the balance to the credit of the Debt Serv...
	(3) the balance of the proceeds of such Bonds shall be deposited to the credit of a special account in the Construction Fund, to be created with a Depositary, appropriately designated and held in trust for the purpose of paying the cost of such Project.



	Section 210. Refunding Bonds. Additional Series of Bonds of the Authority (in this Section sometimes called "Refunding Bonds"), including Crossover Refunding Bonds, may be also issued from time to time under and secured by this Resolution, subject to ...
	(a) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, of the Series Resolution adopted by the Board providing for the issuance of such Refunding Bonds, approving the sale of such Bonds, and directing the delivery of such ...
	(b) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (1) the Series Resolution authorizing such Refunding Bonds has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance of such Refunding Bonds has been duly and validly authorized and all cond...
	(A) in the case of a refunding of Bonds, during the years in which any of the Bonds not so refunded are Outstanding, the maximum Principal and Interest Requirements for any Bond Year thereafter on account of all Bonds Outstanding, after the issuance o...
	(B) in any refunding of Indebtedness, the Authority shall demonstrate satisfaction of the tests for the issuance of Bonds under Section 209 (I) or (II) of this Resolution as applied mutatis mutandis to the Refunding Bonds.
	(1) the accrued interest received as part of the proceeds of such Refunding Bonds shall be deposited to the credit of the Debt Service Account;
	(2) an amount which, together with the interest that shall accrue on the Government Obligations acquired pursuant to this clause (2), shall be sufficient to pay the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and the interest on the Bonds to be refun...
	(3) such amount shall be deposited to the credit of any Fund or Account established under Section 505 of this Resolution, as shall be required by reason of the issuance of the Refunding Bonds then proposed to be delivered and the Series Resolution aut...
	(4) any balance of such proceeds shall be deposited to the credit of the Debt Service Account;



	Section 211. Temporary Bonds. Until definitive Bonds are ready for delivery, there may be executed, and upon request of the Authority, the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in lieu of definitive Bonds and subject to the same limitations a...
	Section 212. Mutilated Bonds. Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond secured hereby shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Authority shall cause to be executed, and the Bond Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, a n...

	Article III.  Redemption of Bonds
	Section 301. Redemption of Bonds by the Authority. The Bonds issued under the provisions of this Resolution may be made subject to mandatory, extraordinary mandatory and optional redemption by the Authority, either in whole or in part, and at such tim...
	Section 302. Selection of Bonds to be Redeemed. The Bonds of each Series shall be redeemed only in, or in whole multiples of, the minimum denomination authorized by the Series Resolution. In selecting Bonds of a Series for redemption, the Authority sh...
	Section 303. Redemption Notice. At least thirty (30) days before the redemption date of any Bonds, whether such redemption be in whole or in part, the Authority shall cause a notice of any such redemption signed by the Authority to be mailed, first cl...
	Section 304. Effect of Calling for Redemption. On the date fixed for redemption, notice having been mailed in the manner and under the conditions hereinabove provided, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall be due and payable at the...
	Section 305. Redemption Portion of Bonds. If a portion of an Outstanding Bond shall be selected for redemption, the Holder thereof or his attorney or legal representative shall present and surrender such Bond to the Bond Registrar for payment of the p...
	Section 306. Cancellation. Bonds so redeemed, presented and surrendered shall be destroyed and canceled by the Bond Registrar in accordance with its record retention policy then if effect.
	Section 307. Use of Government Obligations to Redeem Bonds. For purposes of all Sections in this Article, Government Obligations shall be deemed to be sufficient to pay or redeem Bonds on a specified date if the principal of and the interest on such G...

	Article IV.  CONSTRUCTION FUND
	Section 401. Construction Fund. A fund is hereby established and designated "Virginia Port Authority General Revenue Bonds Construction Fund", to be held by a Depositary to the credit of which such deposits shall be made as are required by the provisi...
	Section 402. Payments from Construction Fund. Payment of the cost of each Project shall be made from the appropriate account within the Construction Fund and, if received, from any appropriations from the Commonwealth (including proceeds of Commonweal...
	Section 403. Cost of Projects. For the purpose of this Resolution the cost of each Project shall embrace such costs as are eligible costs within the purview of the Act, and, without intending thereby to limit or restrict any proper definition of such ...
	(a) obligations previously incurred or to be incurred by the Authority for labor, materials and services and to contractors, builders and others in connection with the providing of the Project, for machinery and equipment, for necessary water and sewe...
	(b) the cost of acquiring by purchase or eminent domain, if such acquisition shall be deemed expedient, such lands, property, rights, rights of way, easements, franchises and other interests as may be deemed necessary or convenient by the Authority fo...
	(c) the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee, any Depositary, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agents for the payment of principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds related to a Project to be the subject of construct...
	(d) the cost of borings and other preliminary investigations to determine foundation or other conditions, expenses necessary incident to determining the feasibility or practicability of the providing of the Project, and fees and expenses of engineers,...
	(e) legal expenses and fees, financing charges, costs of audits and of preparing and issuing the Bonds, and all other items of expense not elsewhere in this Section specified incident to the providing of the Project, the financing thereof, the acquisi...
	(f) reimbursement for any obligation or expense heretofore or hereafter incurred or paid by the Authority for any of the foregoing purposes, including the repayment of any loans or advances, heretofore or hereafter made to the Authority.

	Section 404. Requisitions on Construction Fund. Payments from the Construction Fund shall be made in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Except as provided below, before any such payment shall be made, the Authority shall file with the Dep...
	(a) a requisition, signed by any fiscal officer of the Authority who shall be designated by the Board for such purpose, stating:
	(i) the item number of each such payment,
	(ii) the name of the person, firm or corporation to whom each such payment is due,
	(iii) the respective amounts to be paid,
	(iv) the purpose by general classification for which each obligation to be paid was incurred,
	(v) that obligations in the stated amounts have been incurred by the Authority and are presently due and payable and that each item thereof is a proper charge against the Construction Fund and has not been paid,
	(vi) that there has not been filed with or served upon the Authority notice of any lien, right to lien or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right of any such persons, firms or corporations to receive payment of, the respective amounts stated in ...
	(vii) that such requisition contains no item representing payment on account of any percentage which the Authority is at the date of such requisition entitled to retain and

	(b) as to obligations payable to contractors on account of construction costs or to vendors on account of land or interests in land, a certificate signed by the Engineer and attached to such requisition, certifying its approval thereof.
	(c) Upon receipt of each requisition and accompanying certificate, the Depositary shall pay each such obligation, or reimburse the Authority upon receipt of satisfactory evidence that the Authority shall have paid the same from other available moneys....
	(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, no requisition shall be required for (i) the making of the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment, (ii) the redemption of any interim financing that made the First Amendment Upfront Rent Payment, or (iii) paying the co...

	Section 405. Cost Control of Projects. The Authority covenants that the cost of each Project shall be carefully controlled to prevent overruns in such cost and to assure that the proceeds of Bonds issued therefor will be sufficient, with any other fun...
	Section 406. Disposition of Construction Fund Balance. When each Project shall have been completed, which fact shall be evidenced to the Depositary and the Trustee by a certificate, stating the Completion Date, signed by the Executive Director of the ...

	Article V.  REVENUES AND FUNDS
	Section 501. Rates and Charges.
	(b) The Authority further covenants that if in any Bond Year the Aggregate Net Revenue, Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue or sum of Net Revenue of the Authority and Port Operator Capital Expenditures shall be less than the respective amounts required und...
	(c) If the Authority shall comply with its covenant in paragraph (b) of this Section, any shortfall in the Aggregate Net Revenue, Aggregate Adjusted Net Revenue or sum of Net Revenue of the Authority and Port Operator Capital Expenditures to meet the ...
	(d) The Authority further covenants that in order to comply with the provisions of this Section it shall take all action within its power to obtain approvals of any regulatory or supervisory authority in order to implement any rates, fees and charges ...
	Section 502. Annual Budget. The Authority covenants that it will cause an Annual Budget to be prepared for each Fiscal Year and to be approved and adopted in accordance with the then applicable law and procedures of the Commonwealth respecting the Aut...
	Section 503. Transfer of Revenues by Port Operators to Authority.
	(b) The Authority will cause all Port Operators monthly, not later than the 20th day of such month, except in the event such day is not a Business Day, then on the next succeeding Business Day, to pay to the Authority the entire amount described in Se...
	Section 504. Operating Account; Transfers.

	(a) First, to the credit of the Senior Obligations Fund the next succeeding monthly payment of Senior Obligations;
	(b) Then, to the transfer by the Authority to the Trustee, for deposit to the credit of the Debt Service Fund of an amount sufficient, with such funds as shall then be held for the credit of the respective accounts therein, to enable the Trustee to ma...
	(c) Then, in accordance with the provisions of Section 510(a).
	(d) The Authority shall transfer from the Operating Account for deposit to the Residual Fund the balance remaining after making the transfers authorized in Section 504(a)1 to 3, inclusive.

	Section 505. Current Expenses. The Authority covenants that the Current Expenses incurred in any Fiscal Year will not exceed the reasonable and necessary amount thereof, and that it will not expend any amount or incur any obligation for maintenance, r...
	Section 506. Debt Service Fund.
	(i) to the credit of the Debt Service Account, an amount (or the entire sum if less than the required amount) that will make the amount then to the credit of such Debt Service Account equal to the result obtained:
	(A) by dividing the number of monthly Deposit Days that have occurred since the previous Interest Payment Date by the total number of Deposit Days in the period between Interest Payment Dates and multiplying the result by the Interest Requirement for ...
	(B) by dividing the number of monthly Deposit Days that have occurred since the previous Principal Payment Date by the total number of Deposit Days in the period between Principal Payment Dates and multiplying the result by the Principal Requirement f...
	(C) by dividing the number of monthly Deposit Days that have occurred since the previous Principal Payment Date by the total number of Deposit Days in the period between Principal Payment Dates and multiplying the result by the Amortization Requiremen...

	(ii) to the credit of each Debt Service Reserve Account, such amount, if any, as shall be necessary to make the amount on deposit therein equal to the applicable Reserve Account Requirement on account of the Series of Bonds then Outstanding for which ...
	(b) Bond proceeds deposited within the Debt Service Account or transferred from the Construction Fund prior to the last Deposit Day immediately preceding an Interest Payment Date or Interest and Principal Payment Date for the purpose of paying interes...
	(c) If, on any Interest or Interest and Principal Payment Date, the amount to the credit of the Debt Service Account shall be less than required to pay the interest or principal and interest on the Bonds then due, the following transfers shall be made...
	(i) from the Residual Fund;
	(ii) from the Revenue Stabilization Fund, if in existence; and
	(iii) from the Debt Service Reserve Account, if any was established for the applicable Bonds Outstanding, the interest or principal and interest on which is then due.

	(d) Notwithstanding anything contained in Section 504(a)-2, if the Trustee shall have received written notice from VIG in the form attached hereto as Schedule 506(d)(1) that an Event of Default or an Event of Non-Appropriation, as those terms are defi...
	Section 507. Application of Money in Debt Service Account.

	(b) The Authority may at any time in any Bond Year, but in no event less than forty-five (45) days prior any Principal Payment Date on which an Amortization Requirement is to be satisfied by the mandatory redemption of Bonds, direct the Trustee in wri...
	Section 508. Debt Service Reserve Account.
	(i) To prevent a default in the payment of the principal of or interest on the applicable Series of Bonds, by reason of the fact that money in the applicable Debt Service Account is insufficient for such purposes;
	(ii) To pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the applicable Series of Bonds in the event that all Outstanding Bonds of such Series be redeemed as a whole; or
	(iii) To effect partial redemption of the applicable Series of Bonds; provided that subsequent to said partial redemption, the market value of the cash and securities in such Debt Service Reserve Account shall be not less than the applicable Reserve A...

	(b) Each Debt Service Reserve Account shall be kept in the complete custody and control of the Trustee and withdrawals from each Debt Service Reserve Account shall be made only by such Trustee, or to the Paying Agent, if the Trustee is not the Paying ...
	(c) Money in each Debt Service Reserve Account shall be invested and reinvested by the Trustee at the direction of an Authorized Officer of the Authority in Investment Obligations. Subject to the remaining provisions of this paragraph (c), the earning...
	(d) For the purposes of this Resolution, the Authority may meet the Reserve Account Requirement with cash, whether derived from Bond proceeds or otherwise, a Reserve Account Credit Facility, Investment Obligations, or any combination thereof, and may ...

	Section 509. Revenue Stabilization Fund.  A special fund is hereby created with the Trustee and designated the "Virginia Port Authority Series 2025 Bonds Revenue Stabilization Fund" (the "Revenue Stabilization Fund"). The Revenue Stabilization Fund sh...
	Section 510. Subordinate Obligations Fund and Authorization for 2025 Note.
	(b) Moneys held for the credit of the Subordinate Obligations Fund shall be paid out or pledged by the Authority as necessary to enable the Authority to meet its obligations constituting Subordinate Obligations. Subordinate Obligations may be incurred...
	(c) The Authority shall have the right to covenant with the holders from time to time of any Subordinate Obligations issued or incurred by the Authority to add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions under which Additional Bonds and Refunding ...
	(d) There shall be initially issued under and secured by this Resolution, in one or more series as a Subordinate Obligation, a short-term revenue note of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount of up to Four Hundred Ninety-Five Million Dollars...
	(i) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, of this Resolution;
	(ii) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, of the Series Resolution or Resolutions adopted by the Board and, referred to above;
	(iii) a copy of the fully executed 2025 Lease Amendment;
	(iv) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the 2025 Note has been issued by the Authority and constitute valid obligations of the Authority; and
	(v) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) this Resolution has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance of the 2025 Note has been duly and validly authorized and all conditions precedent to the delivery of such 2025 ...

	(e) The Authority is permitted to issue additional Subordinate Obligations from time to time under and secured by this Resolution, subject to the conditions hereinafter provided in this subsection, for any purposes permitted under the Act.  Prior to o...
	(i) a copy, certified by the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, of the Series Resolution or Resolutions providing for the issuance or incurrence of such additional Subordinate Obligations and such other terms and conditions as may ...
	(ii) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the additional Subordinate Obligations have been issued or incurred by the Authority and constitute valid obligations of the Authority; and
	(iii) an opinion of the General Counsel of the Authority that (i) the Series Resolution referred to in subpart (i) above has been duly adopted pursuant to the Act and the issuance or incurrence of the additional Subordinate Obligation has been duly an...
	Section 511. Senior Obligations Fund.


	(b) If on any Deposit Day after making the transfer required by Section 504 the amount to the credit of the Senior Obligations Fund shall be less than required to pay the next succeeding monthly payment of Senior Obligations, then (i) the Authority sh...
	(i) from the Residual Fund by the Authority; and
	(ii) from the Revenue Stabilization Fund, if in existence, by the Trustee.


	Section 512. Residual Fund. A special fund is hereby created with one or more Depositaries and designated the "Virginia Port Authority Port Facilities Revenue Bonds Residual Fund" (herein called the "Residual Fund"). Pursuant to the provisions of Sect...
	(1) The Authority may use, pledge or encumber moneys held to the credit of the Residual Fund, for any lawful purpose of the Authority or may, subject to any such pledge or encumbrance, from time to time transfer or deposit to the credit of any Fund or...
	(2) The Authority shall have the right to covenant with the holders from time to time of any obligations issued by the Authority for the payment of which the moneys in or from the Residual Fund are pledged to add to the conditions, limitations and res...

	Section 513. Derivative Indebtedness. For purposes of the calculation of Principal and Interest Requirements and generally for any other purposes of this Resolution, the following rules shall apply with respect to Derivative Indebtedness: For so long ...
	Section 514. Money Held in Trust. All money set aside or deposited with the Bond Registrar or the Paying Agents for the purpose of paying any of the Bonds hereby secured, either at the maturity thereof or by purchase or call for redemption or for the ...
	Section 515. Cancellation of Bonds. All Bonds paid, redeemed or purchased, either at or before maturity, shall be delivered to the Bond Registrar when such payment, redemption or purchase is made, together with all unmatured coupons, if any, appertain...

	Article VI.  DEPOSITARIES OF MONEY, SECURITY FOR DEPOSITS  AND INVESTMENT OF FUNDS
	Section 601. Security for Deposits. All money deposited with the Trustee or any Depositary hereunder in excess of the amount guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or other federal agency shall be continuously secured by such Deposita...
	Section 602. Investment of Money. Moneys held for the credit of all funds and accounts under this Resolution shall be continuously invested and reinvested by the Trustee or the Depositary thereof at the direction of the Authority as specified or confi...
	Section 603. Valuation. For the purpose of determining the amount on deposit to the credit of any such Fund or Account, obligations in which money in such Fund or Account shall have been invested shall be valued (i) at original cost if the investment ...

	Article VII.  PARTICULAR COVENANTS
	Section 701. Payment of Principal, Interest and Premium and Pledge of Revenues. The Authority covenants that it will promptly pay the principal of and the interest on every Bond issued under the provisions of this Resolution at the places, on the date...
	Section 702. Covenant to Complete Projects. The Authority covenants that it will forthwith proceed to complete the acquisition and installation of each Project substantially in accordance with the contracts, plans and specifications therefor, and othe...
	Section 703. Covenant Against Encumbrances. With the exception of any lien or encumbrance existing as of the date hereof or to be created by VIG on VIGT, the Authority covenants that it will not voluntarily create or suffer to be created any lien or e...
	Section 704. Removal or Disposition of Property. Real or personal property constituting a part of the Port Facilities, other than VIGT, shall not be removed or disposed of by the Authority except in accordance with the provisions of this Section. Remo...
	(a) the Authority shall, at its own cost and expense, contract, install, replace or substitute real property, structures, furnishings, machinery, equipment or other improvements having a usefulness to the operation of the Port Facilities, other than V...
	(b) the Authority shall deliver to the Trustee an Officer's Certificate as to the estimated fair market value of the real property, structure, furnishings, machinery, equipment or improvement to be demolished, removed or disposed of and either
	(i) a copy of a report by a qualified engineer, employed by the Authority, determining that the property to be demolished, removed or disposed of has become obsolete, inadequate, worn out, unsuitable, undesirable or unnecessary or its disposal is in t...
	(ii) a report of the Management Consultant setting forth his estimate of the Net Revenue and Adjusted Net Revenue of the Authority for the next two (2) complete Fiscal Years after the date of the report and an Officer's Certificate of the Authority sh...


	Section 705. Employment of Engineer. The Authority covenants that it will for the purpose of performing and carrying out the duties imposed on the Engineer by this Resolution, employ or cause to be employed during the acquisition, construction and ins...
	Section 706. Employment or Management Consultant. The Authority covenants that it will, if and when required for the purpose of performing and carrying out the duties imposed by this Resolution, employ or cause to be employed a professional management...
	Section 707. Insurance Provisions. The Authority covenants that it or the Port Operators shall carry or cause to be carried dishonesty bonds (blanket protection) on all officers and employees of any Port Operator who collects or has custody of or acce...
	Section 708. Insurance Companies and Policies. The Authority covenants that each insurance policy required by Section 707 hereof (i) shall be by such insurance company or companies as are financially responsible and of recognized standing, (ii) shall ...
	Section 709. Insurance Claims. All insurance policies referred to in this Article shall be open at all reasonable times to the inspection of the Trustee and the Treasurer of the Commonwealth and their agents and representatives and shall be retained f...
	Section 710. Covenant as to Damaged or Destroyed Property. Subject to the provisions of Section 704, if any part of the Port Facilities is destroyed or damaged by fire or other casualty, the Authority shall promptly replace, repair, rebuild or restore...
	Section 711. Recording and Filing. The Authority covenants that it will cause any financing statements to be kept, recorded and filed in such manner and in such places as may be required by law in order fully to preserve and protect the security of th...
	Section 712. Further Instruments and Actions. The Authority covenants that it will, from time to time, execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further actions as may be required to carry out the purposes of this Resolution.
	Section 713. Authority Audits. For the purpose of causing to be performed and carried out the duties imposed on the Accountant under this Resolution, the Authority covenants that it will employ or cause to be employed as the Accountant the Auditor of ...
	(a) a statement of net positions of the Authority with respect to the Port Facilities; and
	(b) a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position of the Authority with respect to the Port Facilities.

	Section 714. No-Default Certificate. The Authority covenants that it will deliver to the Trustee within one hundred eighty (180) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, a certificate signed by the Chairman of the Board and the Executive Director of ...
	Section 715. Covenant as to Revenues. The Authority covenants that none of the Gross Revenue or Net Revenue or any other money pledged under this Resolution will be used for any purpose other than as provided in or permitted by this Resolution, and no...
	Section 716. Maintenance of Port Facilities. The Authority covenants that it shall, from Gross Revenues or other funds made available therefor, or shall cause the Port Operators, at all times during which Bonds are Outstanding under this Resolution, t...
	Section 717. Operation of Port Facilities. The Authority covenants that it shall use, maintain and operate, or cause to be used, maintained and operated, the Port Facilities at all times during which Bonds are Outstanding under this Resolution as mari...
	Section 718. Port Operators. Subject to the provisions of Section 719(c), the Authority covenants that it shall cause each Port Operator and its Subsidiaries:
	(a) annually, prior to or simultaneously with the adoption by the Authority of its Annual Budget referred to in Section 502, to adopt an Annual Budget, that has been previously approved by the Authority, not inconsistent with the provisions of the Aut...
	(b) to deposit the Gross Revenues of the Port Operator and its Subsidiaries with one or more Depositaries as soon as practicable after the receipt thereof and monthly, not later than the 20th day of such month provided such payment may be made on the ...
	(c) annually, within ninety (90) days after the close of the Port Operator's Fiscal Year to cause an audit to be made by a firm of independent public accountants of the books and accounts of the Port Operator, on a consolidated basis with all of its S...
	(d) not to incur any Indebtedness; provided, however, that this prohibition shall not be construed to restrain any Port Operator or its Subsidiaries from substituting an "Eligible Credit Facility" for up to and including fifty percent (50%) of the Por...
	(e) to observe the covenants of the Authority under this Resolution and to the extent delegated by the Authority the responsibilities of the Authority under this Resolution to carry out the covenants of the Authority correlative to such responsibiliti...
	(f) not to take any action inconsistent with the provisions of this Resolution or the covenants of the Authority or of the Authority on behalf of its Port Operators under this Resolution.

	Section 719. Additional Financial Covenants of the Authority. The Authority covenants that:
	(a) After the date of the original adoption of this Resolution, the Authority will not incur any further Indebtedness (with the exception of Subordinate Obligations), except pursuant to Sections 208, 209, 210 and 720.
	(b) The Authority shall adopt and maintain a five-year or longer capital improvement plan for land acquisition and capital construction, improvements, replacements, reconstruction and additions necessary, in the judgment of the Authority, to maintain ...
	(c) The Authority reserves the right to terminate the Port Operator Agreements in accordance with their terms. The Authority covenants that if the Authority shall terminate the Port Operator Agreements in accordance therewith, the Authority shall eith...
	Section 720. Parity Indebtedness.

	(b) The Authority covenants that it will faithfully fulfill all lawful requirements of all contracts or agreements creating such Parity Indebtedness and that it will require all other parties thereto to fulfill their lawful obligations thereunder.

	Section 721. Covenants with Credit Providers. The Authority may make such covenants as it may in its sole discretion determine to be appropriate with any Credit Bank or Insurer that shall agree to insure or to provide a Credit Facility, Reserve Accoun...
	Section 722. Covenant Limiting Incurrence of Additional Senior Obligations. The Authority shall not incur any Indebtedness, other than the Senior Obligations, which are secured by any lien on Gross Revenues prior to or superior to the lien in favor of...

	Article VIII.  REMEDIES
	Section 801. Events of Default. Each of the following events is hereby declared an "Event of Default", that is to say, if
	(a) payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds, or Parity Indebtedness, shall not be made when the same shall become due and payable; or
	(b) payment of the principal or of the redemption premium, if any, of any of the Bonds, or Parity Indebtedness, shall not be made when the same shall become due and payable, either at maturity or by proceedings for redemption, whether optional or purs...
	(c) the Authority shall: (i) become insolvent or the subject of insolvency proceedings; or (ii) be unable, or admit in writing its inability, to pay its debts as they mature; or (iii) make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or to an age...
	(d) the Authority shall default in the due and timely performance of any of the covenants, conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds, Parity Indebtedness, or in this Resolution or any resolution supplemental hereto on the part of th...

	Section 802. Enforcement of Remedies. Upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default, then and in every such case the Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds and...
	Section 803. Pro Rata Application of Funds. Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, if at any time the money in the Debt Service Fund shall not be sufficient to pay the interest on or the principal of the Bonds and Parity Indebted...
	(a) If the principal of all the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall not have become or shall not have been declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied:
	(b) If the principal of all of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall have been declared due and payable, all such moneys shall be applied:
	(c) If the principal of all the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness shall be due and payable, then the moneys then remaining in and thereafter accruing to the Debt Service Fund shall be applied in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (a) of this Sect...

	Section 804. Effect of Discontinuance of Proceedings. In case any proceeding taken by the Holders on account of any default shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, then and in every such case, the Authority, the Trustee and the Holde...
	Section 805. Control of Proceedings by Bondholders. Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding hereunder shall have the right by an instrument or c...
	Section 806. Restrictions Upon Individual Bondholder Actions. No Holder shall have any right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the execution of any trust hereunder, or for any other remedy hereunder, unless (i) such H...
	Section 807. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies herein provided, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in...
	Section 808. Delay Not a Waiver. No delay or omission of the Trustee or any Holder to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or acqui...
	Section 809. Notice of Event of Default. The Trustee shall give notice of each Event of Default hereunder known to the Trustee to the Holders within thirty (30) days after knowledge of the occurrence thereof, unless such Event of Default shall have be...

	Article IX.  CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE, THE BOND REGISTRAR AND DEPOSITARIES
	Section 901. Acceptance of Duties. The Trustee and Bond Registrar undertake to perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Resolution, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Resolution agains...
	(a) prior to any such Event of Default hereunder, and after the curing of any other Events of Default that may have occurred:
	(i) the duties and obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely by the express provisions of this Resolution and the Trustee shall not be liable except for the performance of such duties and obligations of the Trustee as are specifically set ...
	(ii) in the absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may conclusively rely, as to the accuracy of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon any certificate or opinion furnished to it conforming to the requirements...

	(b) at all times, regardless of whether or not any such Event of Default shall exist:
	(i) the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a responsible officer or officers of the Trustee unless it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, and
	(ii) the Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness...


	Section 902. Indemnification of Trustee as Condition for Remedial Action. The Trustee shall be under no obligation to institute any suit or to take any remedial proceeding (including, but not limited to, the operation of the Authority or the appointme...
	Section 903. Limitations on Obligations and Responsibilities and of Trustee. The Trustee shall be under no obligation to effect or maintain insurance or to renew any policies of insurance or to inquire as to the sufficiency of any policies of insuranc...
	Section 904. Trustee Not Liable for Failure of Authority to Act. The Trustee shall not be liable or responsible because of the failure of the Authority or of any of its employees or agents to make any collections or deposits or to perform any act here...
	Section 905. Compensation and Indemnification of Trustee and Bond Registrar. Subject to the provisions of any contract between the Authority and the Trustee or the Bond Registrar relating to the compensation of the Trustee or the Bond Registrar, the A...
	Section 906. Semi-Annual Statements  from Trustee. It shall be the duty of the Trustee, on or before the 31st day of January and July in each year, beginning with January 31, 2017, to file with the Authority a statement setting forth in respect of the...
	(a) the amount withdrawn or transferred by it and the amount deposited with it on account of each fund or account held by it under the provisions of this Resolution,
	(b) the amount on deposit with it at the end of such semi-annual period in each such fund or account,
	(c) a brief description of all obligations held by it as an investment of money in each such fund or account,
	(d) the amount applied to the purchase or redemption of Bonds under the provisions of Articles III or V of this Resolution and a description of the Bonds or portions thereof so purchased or redeemed, and
	(e) any other information that the Authority may reasonably request.

	Section 907. Trustee May Rely on Certificates. If at any time it shall be necessary or desirable for the Trustee to make any investigation respecting any fact preparatory to taking or not taking any action or doing or not doing anything as such Truste...
	Section 908. Notice of Default. Except upon the happening of any Event of Default specified in clauses (a) and (b) of Section 801 of this Resolution, the Trustee shall not be obliged to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any Event of Default u...
	Section 909. Trustee Not Responsible for Recitals. The recitals, statements and representations contained herein and in the Bonds shall be taken and construed as made by and on the part of the Authority and not by the Trustee, and the Trustee assumes ...
	Section 910. Trustee Protected in Relying on Certain Documents. The Trustee shall be protected and shall incur no liability in acting or proceeding, or in not acting or not proceeding, in good faith, reasonably and in accordance with the terms of this...
	Section 911. Resignation and Removal of Trustee Subject to Appointment  Successor. No resignation or removal of the Trustee and no appointment of a successor Trustee pursuant to this Article shall become effective until the acceptance of appointment b...
	Section 912. Resignation of Trustee. The Trustee may resign and thereby become discharged from the trusts hereby created, by notice in writing given to the Authority, not less than sixty (60) days before such resignation is to take effect, but such re...
	Section 913. Removal of Trustee. The Trustee may be removed at any time by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, executed by the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outs...
	Section 914. Appointment of Successor Trustee. If at any time hereafter the Trustee shall resign, be removed, be dissolved or otherwise become incapable of acting, or the bank or trust company acting as Trustee shall be taken over by any governmental ...
	Section 915. Vesting of Duties in Successor Trustee. Every successor Trustee appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor, and also to the Authority, an instrument in writing accepting such appointment hereunder, and t...
	Section 916. Depositaries. The Authority shall designate and appoint, from time to time, one or more Depositaries to receive and hold the moneys to the credit of the Operating Account, the Construction Fund and any other Fund or Account created under ...
	Section 917. Co-Trustee. At any time or times, in order to conform to any legal requirements, the Trustee and the Authority shall have power to appoint, and upon request of the Trustee, the Authority shall join with the Trustee in the execution and de...

	Article X.  EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY HOLDERS AND  PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF BONDS
	Section 1001. Execution of Instruments by Holders. Any request, direction, consent or other instrument in writing required or permitted by this Resolution to be signed or executed by Holders may be in any number of concurrent instruments of similar te...
	(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be proved by the verification of any officer in any jurisdiction who, by the laws thereof, has power to take affidavits within such jurisdiction, to the effect that such i...
	(b) The ownership of Bonds shall be proved by the registration books kept under the provisions of Section 206 of this Resolution.


	Article XI.  AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE RESOLUTIONS; AMENDMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO THE PORT OPERATOR AGREEMENTS
	Section 1101. Adoption of Supplemental Resolutions by Board. The Board may, from time to time and at any time, adopt such resolutions supplemental hereto as shall not be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Resolution, for any one or mor...
	(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in this Resolution or in any Supplemental Resolution, or
	(b) to grant to or confer upon the Holders any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority or security that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Holders, or
	(c) to modify, amend or supplement this Resolution or any Supplemental Resolution in such manner as to permit the qualification hereof and thereof under any Federal statute now or hereafter in effect or under any state blue sky law, and, in connection...
	(d) to add to the conditions, limitations and restrictions on the issuance of Bonds under the provisions of this Resolution other conditions, limitations and restrictions thereafter to be observed, or
	(e) to provide by Series Resolutions for the issuance of the 2025 Bonds authorized by Section 208 and of Additional Bonds and Refunding Bonds pursuant to the provisions of Sections 209 and 210, respectively, of this Resolution and, as contemplated by ...
	(f) to provide for the issuance of Bonds (i) in coupon form or (ii) in uncertificated form and, in each case, for the exchange, redemption and payment thereof, or
	(g) to carry out the intention of this Resolution in the event that the Fiscal Year of the Commonwealth, the Authority or a Port Operator or its Subsidiary shall be other than July 1 of one year until June 30 of the next succeeding year, or
	(h) to modify or amend the covenants and agreements of the Authority in this Resolution in any manner that shall not, in the opinion of the Trustee and the Authority, in reliance upon opinions and certificates furnished to them, be adverse to the inte...
	(i) if not otherwise authorized by one of clauses (a) to (h), to comply with any valid Governmental Restriction.
	Before the delivery of the 2025 Bonds, each of the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer, is authorized to revise this Resolution to the extent the revision does not conflict with the intent of this Resolution or any future resolution by t...

	Section 1102. Modification of Resolution with Holder Consent. Subject to the terms and provisions contained in this Section, and not otherwise, the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness ...
	Section 1103. Supplemental Resolutions a Part of this Resolution. Any Supplemental Resolution adopted in accordance with the provisions of this Article shall thereafter form a part of this Resolution, and all of the terms and conditions contained in a...
	Section 1104. Supplements and Amendments to Port Operator Agreements. Without: Bondholder Consent. Without limiting the right of the Authority to terminate any Port Operator Agreement pursuant to Section 719(c) of this Resolution, the Authority and th...
	(a) to cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission or to correct any inconsistent provisions in the Port Operator Agreements, or in any supplement or amendment to such agreement, or
	(b) to make any other change in, or waive any provision of, the Port Operator Agreements, provided only that, in the judgment of the Executive Director of the Authority, expressed in writing to the Trustee, the ability of the Authority to comply with ...

	Section 1105. Supplements and Amendments to Port Operator Agreements Without Bondholder Consent. Except for supplements or amendments provided for in Section 1104 of this Article, the Authority shall not agree to any supplement or amendment to the Por...

	Article XII.  DEFEASANCE
	Section 1201. Cessation of Interest of Bondholders.
	(b) If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid to the Holders of less than all of the Bonds and Parity Indebtedness then Outstanding, the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, or such portions thereof...
	(c) Outstanding Bonds and Parity Indebtedness (or any portion thereof) shall be deemed to have been paid for the purposes of subsection (a) or (b) of this Section when (i) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either moneys in an amount, wh...
	(d) The moneys and Government Obligations deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this Section and all payments of principal or interest on any such Government Obligations shall not be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and shall be held in ...
	(e) If Bonds, or portions thereof, and Parity Indebtedness, if any, are deemed to have been paid in accordance with the provisions of this Article by reason of the deposit with the Trustee of moneys or Government Obligations, no amendment to the provi...
	(f) The Authority may provide in the Series Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Bonds for the defeasance of Bonds constituting Variable Rate Indebtedness or Optional Tender Indebtedness.
	(g) All money and Government Obligations held by the Treasurer of the Commonwealth, the Bond Registrar or the Paying Agents pursuant to this Article shall be held in trust and applied to the payment, when due, of the Bonds, or portions thereof, and Pa...
	(h) In connection with the defeasance of the Bonds or Parity Indebtedness pursuant to this Article XII, the Trustee shall be entitled to receive an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that all conditions precedent in this Resolution relating to defeasanc...

	Article XIII.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	Section 1301. Successorship of Bond Registrar and Paying Agents. The Authority may at any time remove the Bond Registrar or any Paying Agent, and any Paying Agent and the Bond Registrar may at any time resign. If the position of the Bond Registrar or ...
	Section 1302. Dealing in Bonds. Any person acting as the Trustee, a Depositary, the Bond Registrar or a Paying Agent under this Resolution and its directors, officers, employees or agents, and any officer, employee or agent of the Authority may in goo...
	Section 1303. Manner of Giving Notice. Any notice, demand, direction, request or other instrument authorized or required by this Resolution to be given to or filed with the Authority or the Treasurer of the Commonwealth, shall be deemed to have been s...
	Section 1304. Authority, Trustee and Holders Alone Have Rights Under Resolution. Except as herein otherwise expressly provided nothing in this Resolution, express or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corpora...
	Section 1305. Effect of Partial Invalidity. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid such illegality or invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this Resolution, but this...
	Section 1306. Effect of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Authority contained in this Resolution shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Authority to the full extent perm...
	Section 1307. Expenses Payable. Under Resolution. All expenses incurred in carrying out this Resolution shall be payable solely from funds provided under the authority of this Resolution, and no liability or obligation shall be incurred by the Authori...
	Section 1308. Resolution Effective. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.


	Resolution 25-09 VPA - Resolution (Line of Credit)(202372809.5).pdf
	Section 1. Authorization of Line of Credit. (a) (i) Pursuant to Section 510(d) of the Bond Resolution, the Authority is hereby authorized to issue the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $495,000,000 for the ...
	(ii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, if upon delivery of the Series 2025 Line of Credit Note and the Credit Agreement, Resolution 16-9 adopted September 21, 2016 (the "2016 Resolution") and the bonds and subordinate obligations issued thereunder have ...
	Section 6. Other Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Bond Resolution.

	Resolution 25-10 VPA - Resolution (Series for Bonds)(202400467.7).pdf
	Section 1. Authorization of Bonds. (a) Pursuant to Section 208 of the Bond Resolution, the Authority is hereby authorized to issue the Series 2025 Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $350,000,000 for the purpose of providing funds, wi...
	Section 2. Debt Service Reserve Account. (a) Pursuant to Section 508 of the Bond Resolution, there is hereby created with the Trustee a Debt Service Reserve Account for each of the Series 2025 Bonds designated, "Series 2025 Debt Service Reserve Accoun...
	Section 3. Revenue Stabilization Fund. (a) Pursuant to Section 509 of the Bond Resolution, a special fund has been created with the Trustee and designated the "Virginia Port Authority Series 2025 Bonds Revenue Stabilization Fund" (the "Revenue Stabili...
	Section 4. Optional Redemption. The Series 2025 Bonds may be subject to optional redemption as market conditions shall dictate at the time of sale upon the payment of such redemption premiums, if any, as such market conditions shall dictate; provided ...
	Section 5. Terms of Purchase. The Executive Director or Chief Financial Officer, either of whom may act, is hereby authorized, if the Authority's Financial Advisor shall so recommend, to accept an offer of the Underwriters in the form of the Bond Purc...
	Section 6. Approval of Bond Purchase Agreement. The form of the Bond Purchase Agreement presented at this meeting relating to the offering and sale of the Series 2025 Bonds to the Underwriters and the execution and delivery thereof by the Authority ar...
	Section 14. Other Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Bond Resolution.

	Resolution 25-06 VPA - Authorizing VIG Deed of Lease Amendment  (4-15-25) v3.pdf
	VPA - First Amendment to Deed of Lease (Form Final - 4-21-2025) 4929-7544-2710-v31.pdf
	1. Conditions Precedent; Termination; Remedies.
	(a) First Amendment Effective Date.
	(b) Payment.
	(c) Lessor Conditions Precedent to First Amendment Effective Date.
	(i) Lessee’s representations and warranties in Section 5 shall be true and correct, in all material respects, on the First Amendment Effective Date.
	(ii) Lessor shall have obtained board approval, and all other internal approvals, necessary in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereby.
	(iii) Lessor shall have obtained any Lessor Financing approvals (including any required bondholder approvals) necessary in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereb...
	(iv) Lessee shall have provided to Lessor an opinion of Ballard Spahr, counsel to Lessee, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1(c)(iv);
	(v) Lessee shall have delivered to Lessor written evidence, in a form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Lessor, of the following:
	(A) Lessee having obtained all necessary approvals of the Board of Commissioners in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereby;
	(B) Lessee having obtained all state and local approvals necessary in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereby (including any necessary approval of the Governor of...
	(C) Lessee’s Board of Commissioners having adopted (y) a new Bond Resolution (the “2025 Bond Resolution”) and (z) a series resolution authorizing the issuance of 2025 Port Facilities Revenue Bonds (the “2025 Indebtedness”, and such resolution being th...
	(D) Lessee having issued the 2025 Indebtedness to the extent necessary; and
	(E) Lessee having extinguished any existing liens under the 2016 Bond Resolution.

	(vi) Lessee shall have executed and delivered the First Amendment Sub-Sublease in the form and substance set forth in Exhibit M-1 (Form of Second Amendment to Sub-Sublease Agreement) and the First Amendment Memorandum of Lease in the form and substanc...

	(d) Lessee Conditions Precedent to First Amendment Effective Date.
	(i) Lessor’s representations and warranties in Section 5 shall be true and correct, in a material respects, on the First Amendment Effective Date.
	(ii) Lessor shall have provided to Lessee an opinion of Holland & Knight, LLP, counsel to Lessor, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 1(d)(ii).
	(iii) Lessee shall have retired all of its existing indebtedness secured under the 2016 Bond Resolution, caused the release of the existing liens under the 2016 Bond Resolution and retired the 2016 Bond Resolution.
	(iv) Lessee’s Board of Commissioners has adopted (A) the 2025 Bond Resolution and (B) a series resolution authorizing the issuance of the 2025 Indebtedness and the Series 2025 Resolution, to the extent necessary.
	(v) Lessee shall have extinguished any existing liens under the 2016 Bond Resolution.
	(vi) Lessee shall have obtained all Board of Commissioners approvals necessary in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereby.
	(vii) Lessee shall have obtained all state and local approvals necessary in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereby (including any necessary approval of the Gover...
	(viii) Lessor shall have delivered to Lessee written evidence, in a form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Lessee, of Lessor having obtained board approval, and all other internal approvals, necessary in connection with the execution, deliver...
	(ix) Lessor having obtained any Lessor Financing approvals (including any required bondholder approvals) necessary in connection with the execution, delivery, and performance of this First Amendment and the Transaction Documents as modified hereby or ...
	(x) Lessor shall have executed and delivered the First Amendment Sub-Sublease in the form and substance set forth in Exhibit M-1 (Form of Second Amendment to Sub-Sublease Agreement), the Second Amended and Restated Facilities Maintenance Agreement in ...

	(e) Termination.
	(i) by the mutual written consent of the Lessor and the Lessee;
	(ii) by the Lessee in the event that, Lessee has used all reasonable best efforts to satisfy such condition(s) precedent to the First Amendment Effective Date, and Lessee determines in its reasonable discretion that it will be unable to satisfy any co...
	(iii) by either of the Lessor or the Lessee:
	(A) if the First Amendment Effective Date shall not have occurred on or before December 31, 2025 (the “Outside Date”); provided, however, that the right to terminate this First Amendment pursuant to this Section 1(e)(ii)(A) shall not be available to a...
	(B) if any domestic or foreign government or quasi-governmental authority, or political branch, department, or subdivision thereof, whether on a federal, local, provincial, state, or territorial level, and whether administrative, executive, judicial, ...



	2. Covenants
	(a) Efforts for Consummation
	(b) Additional Covenants
	(b)
	(c) Financing.

	3. Effect of Termination/Remedies.
	(a) Effect
	(b) Specific Performance

	4. Modifications to Lease.
	(I) FIRST AMENDMENT UPFRONT RENT PAYMENT AND BASE RENT
	(A) Upfront Rent Payment.
	(B) Modification to Base Rent.
	(1) Schedule 4(a) (Notional Base Rent Amount) to the Lease is hereby amended and restated to state an amount, in U.S. dollars, equal to the sum of (A) the Base Rent due under the Lease as of July 1, 2025 and determined in accordance with the Lease, an...
	(2) It is agreed and understood among the parties that Section 4(a) (Base Rent and Phase II Expansion Rent) to the Lease is hereby deemed to set forth that (i) from July 1, 2025, the Notional Base Rent Amount (and then-current Base Rent amount) shall ...


	(II) LESSEE IMPROVEMENTS/REPLACEMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY
	(A) Lessee Improvements.
	Section 14 (Lessee Improvements) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(B) New Definitions.
	Schedule 1 (Definitions) of the Lease is hereby amended to add the following definition:
	(C) Transferred Assets.
	The definition of “Transferred Assets” is hereby amended to include the “Post-First Amendment Effective Date Personal Property”.
	(D) Recapture Amount.
	The definition of “Recapture Amount” is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(E) Taxes.
	Section 16 (Taxes/Utilities) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(a) Allocation:
	(1) If the City of Portsmouth, Virginia, or any other Governmental Authority (the City of Portsmouth, or such other Governmental Authority, being the “City”) with the ability to assess property taxes on the Facility and/or the Premises (property taxes...
	(A) Lessee shall be responsible for that portion of the City Property Tax for real property paid with respect to any increase in the assessed value of the Facility real property over the assessment in Q1 2021, such initial assessed value for purposes ...
	(B) With respect to that portion of the City Property Tax for personal property:
	(I) Lessor shall be responsible for that portion of the City Property Tax for those specific items of equipment listed on Schedule 16(a)(1)(B)(I) (the “Current Personal Property”); provided that, for the avoidance of doubt, (1) subject to the provisio...
	(II) Subject to the provisions of Section 16(a)(1)(B)(III), Lessee shall be responsible for that portion of the City Property Tax for all Lessee Improvements; and
	(D) If the City elects to use a New Valuation Method then, in any tax year, until the determination of the Lessee Portion pursuant to either Section 16(a)(3)(A) or Section 16(a)(3)(B) for such tax year, Lessee shall pay to Lessor that portion of the t...
	(e) For the avoidance of doubt, (1) the Parties agree and acknowledge that the Lessor’s City Property Tax assessment from the City currently includes the Surplus Land and agree that, so long as the Facility and Surplus Land are taxed in a single asses...
	(f) Lessor shall (1) include Lessee on all written communications, meetings, and other formal discussions with the City regarding the Facility’s real property and personal property tax assessment; and (2) provide Lessee the opportunity to appeal, at t...
	(g)  If Lessee elects to not appeal any tax assessment, Lessee shall reasonably cooperate with Lessor, but (except with respect to any Lessee expenses incurred with respect to satisfying its obligations with respect to payment of City Property Tax as ...
	(h) Each year, Lessee shall pay to Lessor Lessee’s portion of all property taxes for such year, determined pursuant to this Section 16, prior to the date such taxes for such year are due and payable to the City.
	(i) Subject to the allocation of City Property Taxes pursuant to this Section 16, Lessor shall be responsible for any and all charges or fees applicable to the Premises.
	(j) Lessee shall directly pay all electricity, gas, telephone and other utility services provided to the Facility.  All such utilities shall be separately metered.
	(F) Granting of Easement.
	Section 2(b) (Letting and Granting of Easement) of the Lease is hereby deemed amended and restated as follows:
	(G)

	(III) USE OF AND RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE FACILITY
	(A) Section 7 Amendment.
	Section 7 (Use Restrictions) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(B) Section 9 Amendment.
	Section 9 (Method of Operation) of the Lease is hereby renamed Section 9 (Facility Operation and Maintenance) and amended and restated as follows:
	(C) Subleasing and Port Operators.
	(1) Section 12(b) (Assignment, Mortgage and Sublease) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:

	(D) Rights of Entry.
	Section 17(a) (Rights of Entry Reserved) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(E) Air Rights.
	(1) Letting and Easement.
	The third sentence of Section 2(a) (Letting and Granting of Easement) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(2) Privileges.
	Section 18(c) (Privileges Granted) of the Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety.
	(3) Additional Air Rights.
	The Lease shall henceforth be interpreted consistent with the inclusion of all air space and air rights within the Leased Assets.

	(F) Liens.
	Section 18(d) (Privileges Granted) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(G) Section 41.
	(1) Sublease of the Facility.
	(2) Exhibit M.


	(IV) RIGHTS TO PURCHASE.
	Section 29 of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:

	(V) FINANCING
	(A) Section 31.
	Section 31 of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(B) Additional Definitions.
	The following definitions are hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(C) Remedies.
	Section 20(c) (Remedies upon Event of Default or Event of Non-Appropriation) is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(D) Financing.
	Section 49 (Financing) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:

	(VI) ADDITIONAL MODIFICATIONS
	(A) Information Rights.

	Section 28 (Information Rights) of the Lease is hereby amended and restated as follows:
	(B) Exhibit J.
	(1) Any existing references specific to monthly reporting requirements in Exhibit J (Form of Monthly and Annual Information Reports) are hereby deleted in their entirety; and
	(2) Exhibit J-1 (Form of Monthly Reporting Requirements) is hereby appended thereto and made a part thereof.



	5. Representations and Warranties.
	6. Definitions.
	7. Memorandum of Lease.
	8. Consideration.
	9. Counterparts.
	10. Severability.
	11. Construction.
	12. Integration.
	13. Governing Law.
	14. Parties Bound.
	15. Sovereign Immunity/Full Faith and Credit of the Virginia Port Authority and the Commonwealth.
	16. Authority to Execute.
	17. Good Faith.
	18. Status of Lease and Other Transaction Documents; Conflicting Provisions.
	19. Exhibits and Schedules.



	04.29.2025 VPA Board Regular Public Presentation DRAFT NEW 042525.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	�Special Presentation by �Northern Shenandoah Valley �Regional Commission
	�Executive Committee Report
	�Finance and Audit Committee �Report
	�Quarterly Financial Results
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	�Operations and Infrastructure �Committee Report
	�Safety Update�
	Slide Number 22
	�Operations Update�
	Slide Number 24
	�Infrastructure and Projects Update�
	Slide Number 26
	�Growth Committee Report
	�Sales and Volume Report�
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	�CEO/Executive Director Report�
	�Virginia Inland Port�Project Update/Tour
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	�Other Business
	Slide Number 39




